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THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND
REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

If you are in any doubt as to the action you
should take, you are recommended to seek
your own independent financial advice
immediately from your stockbroker,
accountant or other appropriate independent
financial adviser who is licensed by the
Securities and Commedities Authority. No
person should construe the contents of this
Shareholders Circular as legal, financial or
tax advice.

If you have sold or otherwiss transferred all of
your RAKWCT Shares (other than pursuant to
the Offer), please send this Shareholders
Circular as soon as possible to the purchaser or
transfaree or to the bank, stockbroker or ather
agent through whom the sale or transfer was
affected for delivery to the purchaser or
transferee.  However, this Shareholders
Circular must not be forwarded or
transmitted in or into any Restricted
Jurisdiction {as defined below) or in or into
any jurisdiction where to do so would
constitute a violation of the relevant laws in
that jurisdiction. If you have sold or transferred
only pant of your holding of RAKWCT Shares,
you should retain this Shareholders Circular and
consult the bank, stockbroker or other agent
through wihom the sale or transfer was effected

Capitalized terms in this Eharehnlderﬁ Circular
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SHAREHOLDERS CIRCULAR

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONAL CASH
ACQUISITION OFFER

FOR RAS AL KHAIMAH CO. FOR WHITE
CEMENT & CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
PSC (“RAKWCT" or the “Company")
BY

ULTRATECH CEMENT MIDDLE EAST
INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“UltraTech"}

Motice of the RAKWCT GM, to be held at 11:00
am on Tuesday 9 July 2024 at Waldor! Astoria
Hotel - Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab Emirates is
get out in Annex 1 to this Shareholders Circular.

The approval of the Securities and Commodities
Authority permitting the publication of this
Sharehoiders: Circular does not consfitute an
endorsement of the merits of the Offer, ar of the
accuracy, completeness or adequacy of the
infarmation contained herein. The Securities and
Commeodities Authority accepts ne responsibility
or liability for any damages or losses suffered or
incurred by any person as a result of reliance on
this Shareholders Circular or any part thereof.

RAKWCT accepts respansibility for the validity
and accuracy of the Infermation contained in this
Shareholders Circular. To the best of the
knowledge of RAKWCT ({which has taken
reasonable care to ensure that such is the case),
the infermation contained in this Shareholders
Cireular for which it is responsible is in
accordance with the facts and does not
intentionally aREEOr igpore any matenial fact likely

! or completensss of such
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information within this Shareholders Circular.

Statements contained in this Shareholders
Circular are made as at the date of this
Shareholders Circular, unless some other time is
specified in ralation to them, and the publication
of this Shareholders Circular (er any action taken
pursuant te i) shall not give rise to any
implication that there has been no change in the
facts or affairs of RAKWCT as sat aut in this
Shareholders Circular since such  date
RAKWCT expressly disclaims any obligation fo
update such statements other than as required
by law or by the rules of any competent
regulatory authority, whather as a result of new
information, future events or othenvise.

No person has been authorised to give any
infermation or to make any representations other
than those contained [n this Shareholders
Cireular and, if given or made, such informaticn
or representations must not be relied on as
having been authonsed by RAKWCT or any of
the advisers in connaction with the Offar,

Thizs Sharehalders Circular will not be posted fo
RAKWCT Shareholders but copies can be
obtained fwithout charge) from the head office of
RAKWCT and from the RAKWCT websile at
www.rakwhitecement.ae.  Neiher the
content of any website of RAKWCT nor the
confent of any website accessible from
Hyperinks an any such website is incorporated
into, or forms part of, this Sharehaolders Circular
and no person accepts any responsibility for the
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KPMG Lower Guif Limited, which Is authonsed
and regulated in the UAE by the Securities and
Commoditias Authority, is acting exclusively as
financial adviser to RAKWCT and for no one else
in connection with the Offer and will not be
respensible to anyone other than RAKWCT for
providing the protections afforded to clients of
KPMG Lower Guif Limited or for providing
advice in relation o the Offer, the content of this
Shareholders Circular or matters referred to in
this sharehalder circular,

MNone of the advisers o RAKWCT in connection
with the Offer (or any of their respective affiliates)
make any representation or warranty, express or
implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of
the information contained in this Shareholders
Circular, and nothing contained in this
Shareholders Circular is, or shall be relisd upon
as, a promise or representation by any such
edviser (or any of its affiiates).

Cerain figures included in this Shareholders
Circular have been subjected fo rounding
adjustments. Accordingly, figures shown for the
same category presentad in gifferant tables may
vary slightly and figures shown as totals in
certain  tables may not be an arithmetic
aggregation of the figures that preceds them

This  Shareholders  Circular  [{including
information incorporated by reference in this
charsholders Circulan), oral statements made
regarding the Offer, and other information
published by RAKWCT contain statements
which are, or may be deemed to be, “forward
looking statamun!s Such forward looking

fS&re. praspective in nature and are nol
&l facts, but rather on current
LB numerous assumptions
SiMBss  strategies and the
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environment in which RAKWCT operates in the
future and are subject to risks and uncertaintias
that could causa actual results to differ matenally
from those expressed or implied by those
statemenis. The forward-looking statements
contained in this Sharehoiders Circular relate to
FAKWCT s future progpects, developments and
business strategies, expeciations in relation to
the timing of the Offer and other statemanis
which are not historical facts. In some cases,
these forward locking stetements can be
identified by the use of forward |ooking
tarminclogy, including the terms “believes”,
“estimates”’, “will look to”, “would look to”, “plans”,
‘prapares”, “anticipates” “expects”, “is expected
o', "is subject to", “budget”. "scheduled®,
“forecasts”, “synergy”, “strategy”. ‘goal”, "cost-
saving”, “projects” “intands”, “may”’, ‘will*, *shall’
or “should” or their negatives or other varations
or comparable terminology. Forward-looking
statements may include statements relating to
the following: () fulure capital expenditures,
expenses, revenues, eamings, Ssynerges,
economic performance, indebtedness, financial
conditton, dwvidend policy, losses and future
prospects; (i) business and managemeant
strategies, and (i) the effects of global economic
conditions and governmental regulation on
UltraTech's ar RAKWCT's business. By their
nature, forward-looking statements involve risk
and uncerfainty because they relate to events
and depend on circumstancas that may oceur in
the future. These events and circumstances
include changes in the global, political,
econamic, business, competitiva, market and
regulatory forces, future exchange and interest
rates, changes in tax rates and/or ragimes and
future business combinations or disposals. If any
one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialiess or H any one or more of the
assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may
differ materially from those expected, estimated
or pm]&cﬂ.ed_,Such forward I-:ehm-g statﬁmenta

BWCT, nor any of its
it Officers or advisers,
EEflation, assurance or

hadlinl ogade dpie SLalAE (s
eiianall (§ A5 W Jans 3 Bdly Jlaei
B D 03 Sy bl Aaye  pg
BigSall Il e duptigor 5)gac Adaill E',f;.;.h
ety bl e § Las ] jloll 5l a0
rhaddl B3 3 Sylell Addineall bl
Adunad] BSAN ladgl ok enliol
dilazall giladgiy Lellael wibendliulg L),

Sllis and Y Bl gl il el ool
CRT- R VR S, CURCT | B | - dy Al
Dilmbbana alaciwl M e dd i el el
il aadl el L} ot cdubidiuwa a3y Sild
ry.h:; 45" ol " o a.!.h..;.,. _g.l " AA" gl M Adias"
o aBg 5l gt gl il ol ks g )
9 Aot ol Y mamsa® gl "Gl adgnall oy
"Rl A" gl ™, 3B grl"ﬁ.ﬁlﬁ.ddl" al "y Ball”
F E_,LHJ ol "aJE abgt gl MBaglt sl
" gl M gl M ol " jaa o Mg a
B9 dlilan Cilollaiae ol lghe (5,51 fune o Lgaii 5
Loy dilaiall Cibiledl Adidnaell Gl fpanas
sdabidizonall  Adlend)l  cdaad (1) sk
OB azgly rlYls cnloluily cinlmalls
sdlall passlly Adgdally (@abaidl sV
kel gilly o PHlawddly pganl ELI_]Ii aias Aunlessg
Eladls JlaeNl Cilaslial (2)y fElasal
mlgllly adlall Lolaci¥l Cagplall BT (3)s
Gybdy, 45l 51 QAN Jlasl de AagSall
solxa e pauk Sou dddtaal UL
g o dasaly Slasb Gl WY Sy
GldsYl el ey o aiTasll (§ dadad
Gpabadly Bealladl SRl (& wlads LBy lalls
ddguwlly  Aendlalls bl Aolaiidiy
cdudiiiinall BSlaNg wiaall lawls cdiadaiilig
Sllasy Ilaall Al glfy ¥lama § Cilpis
9l delg 3o I RE- Jlagi s 5 fLad




o .,?-..-L.-.H- .}.I_)-_-u..l-

2N

ua]I:C.AJIr RS2

a5 ﬁLEH&MEED.FDR'ﬁ"HITELE&LEHT&ﬂBHﬂ MATERIALS PR.C,

guarantee that the occurrence of the events
expressad or implied In any forward locking
statements in this Shareholders Circular shall
actually occur. Given these risks and
uncertainties, shareholders should not place any
reliance on forward looking statements.

This Sharsholders Circular has been prepared in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations
of the UAE and the information disclosed may
not be the same as that which would have been
disclosad if this Shareholders Circular had been
prepared in accordance with the laws andior
regulations of jurisdictions outside the UAE. Tha
Offer is being made in relation to securties of a
UAE company and you should be aware that this
Shareholders Circular and any other documents
relating to the Offer have been or will be
prepared in accordance with UAE disclosure
requirements, format and style, all of which may
differ from those applicable in other jurisdictions.

The Offer is not being made, directly or indirectly,
in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction where to
do so would viclate the laws in that jurisdiction,
and the—ﬂ‘fer s n-ut r:apable nf mp!anm from

i : rehnld&rs l:lmular and any
ents are not being, and
aelly or indirectly, mailed or
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otherwise forwarded, distributed or sent in, into
or from a Restricted Jurisdiction where to do so
would violate the laws in that jurisdiction, and
persons receving this Shareholders Circular and
any accompanying document  (including
custodians, nominees and trustees) must not
rnail or otherwise distribute ar send them in, into
or from such jurisdictions as doing so may
invalidate any purported acceptance of the Offer.
The availability of the Offer to RAKWCT
Shareholders who are not resident in the United
Arab Emirates may be affected by the laws of the
relevant jurisdictions in which they are resident.
Such persens should inform themselves about
and observe any applicable legal or regulatory
reguirements of their jurizdiction.

If you are a resident of the United States,
please read the following:

The Offer is being made to acquire the sacunties
of RAKWCT, a8 company incorporated and
registered in Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab
Emirates, and is being made in the Unitad States
in reliance on, and compliance with, the
exempfion from the US Securilies Exchange Act
of 1834, as amended, afforded by Rule 14d-
1{c)Section 14{e) and Regulation 14E
thereunder. The Offer shall be made in the
United States by UltraTech and no one else.

The Offer is subject to the disclosure and
procedural requirements of the United Arab
Emlra’tes wn_tph differ from those in tha Linited
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and seftlement procedure with respect to the
Offer shall comply with the relevant United Arab
Emiratas rules, which differ from United States
payment and settlement procedures, panticularly
with regard to the date of payment of
consideration. Neither the United States
Securities Exchange Commission, nor any
securities commission of any state of the United
Gtates, has approved the Offer, passed upon the
farmmess of the Offer or passed upon the
adequacy or accuracy of this Shareholders
Circular. Any representation to the contrary is a
criminal offence in the United States.

Financial information relating to RAKWCT
included in this Shareholders Circufar has been
prepared in accordance with IFRS and ofther
mandatory reporting requirements applicable in
the UAE and may not be comparable te financial
infarmation of US companies or companies
whose financial staternents are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States.

It may be difficult for investors 1o enforce their
rights and any claim they may have arising under
US federal securities laws, since UltraTech and
RAKWCT are UAE companies, and some or all
of their officers and directors are residenis of
countries other than the United States, Investors
may not be able to sue a non-US company or its
officers or directors in a non-US court for
violations of the US securties laws. It may be
difficult to compel a non US company and its
affiiates tnje-cl themselves to 8 US court's
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The receipt of cash pursuant to the Offer by a US
holder of sscuribes of RAKWCT may be a
taxable fransaction for US federal income tax
purposes and under applicable state and local,
as well as foreign and other tax laws, Each
holder of sscurites of RAKWCT is urged to
consult his independent professional advisor
immediately regarding the tax consequences of
acceptance of the Offer

Any person (including custadians, nominees and
trustess) who would, or otherwise intends to, or
may hawve a confractual or legal obligation to
forward this Shareholders Circular to any
jurisdiction outside the United Arab Emirates,
should read [paragraph 5 of Section 1l (Further
Terms of the Offer) of the UliraTech Offer
Document] before taking any action.

This s an unofficial Engligh translation of the
formal Shareholders Circular published in the
Arabic language. No reliance should be placed
aon this English translation which may nat entirely
reflect the official Arabic language Shareholders
Circular.

All references to dates and times shown in this
Shareholders Circular are to the Gregorian
calendar and UAE tima, respectively, unless
otharwize stated
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07 June 2024
Dear RAKWCT Shanreholders

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONAL CASH
OFFER FOR THE ACQUISITION BY
ULTRATECH CEMENT MIDDLE EAST
INVESTMENTS LIMITED OF 31.6 % OF THE
ISSUED AND FPAID-UP ORDINARY SHARE
CAPITAL OF RAS AL KHAIMAH CO. FOR
WHITE CEMENT & CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS PSC

1. Introduction

On 27 May 2024, ULTRATECH CEMENT
MIDDLE EAST INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(UltraTech} approached the board of
directors of RAS AL KHAIMAH CO. FOR
WHITE CEMENT & CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS PSC (the Company or
RAKWCT) to present a conditional cash
offer to acguire 158043610 shares,
representing 31.6% of the issued and paid
up ordinary shares of RAKWCT, not already
heid by UltraTech (the Offer). UltraTech
currently holds 147 000000 RAKWCT
Shares, representing approximately 29.39
% of the existing issued ordinary share
capital of RAKWCT.

On 27 May 2024 A RAKWCT announced
that il;‘_-_-bparﬁ of directors (the RARKWCT

) he d receved the Offer and

pilbjished - 1h& statement of the Offer
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received from UltraTech.

On 7 June 2024, RAKWCT announced that
the RAKW CT Board had recommended the
Offer and UltraTech published its offer
document in relation to the Offer (the
UltraTech Offer Document). A copy of the
UltraTech Offer Document can be found on

RAKWCT's website at
www. rakwhitecement. ge AS a
RAKWCT Sharsholder, you are

encouraged to read the UlbraTech Offer

Document and this Shareholders Circular in
full.

On 25 May 2024, UltraTech and RAKWCT
entered into an implementation agreemeant
setting out tha rnghts and obligations of the
parties as they relate to the Offer among
other things.

| am writing to you, on behalf of the
RAKWCT Board, to: (i) explain the
background to and terms of the Offer; {ii)
encourage you to attend and vote if headad
at the RAKWCT GM to be held on 9 July
2024 in connection with the Offer; and (iii)
explain why the RAKMWCT Board, who have
teen so advised by KPMG Lower Gulf
Limited , consider the price of the Offer is in
compliance with Article (8) of the Takeover
Code so0 far as RAKWCT Shareholders are
concarnad and  are  unanimously
recaommending that you accept the Offer

2. Summary of the terms of the Offer
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RAKWCT (which are not already owned by
UttraTech) for cash.

UltraTech and RAKWCT entered into an
Implementation Agreement setting out the
nghts and obligations of the parties as they
relate to the Offer among other things. In
particular, UltraTech shall undertake to pay
the Offer Price for the RAKWCT Shares
which it acguires pursuant to the Offer,
subject to satisfaction of certain conditions
including those in paragraph 5 of Section |
of Ulratech Offer Document (Genaral
Terms and Details of the Offer).

Under the terms of the Offer, holders of
RAKWCT Shares (excluding UlraTech)
shall receive the following offer price (the
Offer Price):

for each RAKWCT Share AED 1.45 in
cash

The total amount of the Offer, in respect of
the RAKWCT Shares which are the subject
of the Offer (being 158,049 610 ordinary
shares of nominal value AED 1.15 each in
RAKWCT), will ba AED 181,757,052

The RAKWCT Shares will be acquired by
UltraTech under the Offer on the basis that
the RAKWCT Shares are fully paid and
free from all liens, charges, equities,
ancumbrances, options, rights of pre-
ﬁ'nptlun anﬁ any other third parly rights

It _ 0 them, Including,
, watifg rights and the right
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to receive and retain in full &l dividends
and other distributions (if any) declared,
made or paid, or any other return of value
{whather by reduction of share capital or
share premium account or otherwisa)
made, on or after the date of the UltraTech
Offer Document.

If the number of RAKWCT Shares offered
at the end of the Offer Pariod is mare than
the specific number of shares set outin the
Offer, UktraTech will acquire from all the
RAKWCT  Shareholders who  have
accepted the Offar a number of RAKWCT
Shares pro rata to the total number of
shares set out in the Offer. With rounding
of fractions to the benefit of minority
RAKWCT Shareholders.

RAKWCT Shareholders whose names
appear in the BAEWCT share register
during the Offer Pericd will be eligible to
receive the Offer and any RAKWCT
shareholders willing to accept the Offer
may do so by following the steps sst out
under section 10 below

The Offer is subject to the conditions (the
Conditions) and further terms sel oul or
referred to in the UltraTech Offer
Document.

On 25 June 2024 { (being the day following
the Offer closing date), UlraTech will

announce the acceptance resulis of the
Offer and provided that all conditions,
requirements and approvals related to the
Offer are met so that the Offer becomes
unconditional in all respects UitraTech will |
settle

the consideration due to the
INGERAKWCT Shareholders no later
liy 204 tbrough payment by ADX

o

SidEration to the broker who
8l iOrder who will in turn
gt into each accepting
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RAKWCT Shareholder respective accourt
with them.

3. Background to and reasons for the
Offer:

Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement &
Construction Materials PSC, a public joint
stock company listed on ADX, incorporated
in the Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah in the
United Arab Emirates, having its registered
office address at PO Box 1492, Ras Al
Khaimah, United Arab Emirates The
Caompany is a prominent player in the white
cement and construction materials sector,
Headguartered in Ras Al Khaimah, United
Arab Emirates, the Company has
positioned itself as a key contributor to the
region's thriving construction  industry.
RAKWCT's success is its state-of-the-art
manufacturing facility, equipped with
advanced fechnology to produce high-
guality white cement. The Company's
dedication to fechnological excellence
ensures that its products meat siringant
industry standards, With a focus on
sustainability, RAKWCT implements aco-
frendly practices in it8 manufacturing
processes, contributing to  both
environmental conservation and the
production of sustainable construction
materials beyond its commitment to
produce excellence,

By increasing its ownership percentage in
the share capital of RAKWCT, UltraTech
wishes to befter benefit fram its experiise
in the field of white cement manufacturing
1I1rnug=h gxpanding  the business of

; Wregionally and globally,
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Key benefits for RAKWCT Shareholders

Urder the terms of the Offer, RAKWCT
Shareholders will be entitled to receive:

AED 1.15 in cash for each RAKWCT Share
(the “Offer Price")

The Offer Price may not be lower than the
highest price of the following:

i.  The market price on tha first day of the
Offer.

iL.  The closing price prior to the first day of
the Offer commencement,

iil. The average price during the 3 months
preceding the start of the Offer.

tv. The highest price paid by the acguiring
party to buy the shares during the 12
months pracading the submission of the
Offer,

Pigase refer to  RAKWCTE  audited
consolidated financial statements for the three
years ended 31 December 2021, 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2023 as asttached in
Annex 4 for further information about the
financial performance of RAKWCT,

4. Information on UltraTech
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(JAFZAY, United Arab Emirates with
commercial registration number 132239
and is a wholly owned subsidiary of
UltraTech Cement Limited, incorporated in
India. There have been no dealings of
RAKWCT shares by UltraTech or its
associated group dunng the six months
preceding the date of the UltraTech Offer
Document.

Given thae Offer iz an offer of cash
consideration, RAKWCT Shareholdars will
not be iwsued shares in UltraTech and
therefore any accepting RAKWCT
shareholder will not be affected by future
prafits or losses or changes to the assets
or business of UitraTech. There have been
no dealings of RAKWCT shares by
UltraTech or its associated group during
the six months preceding the date of the
UltraTach Offer Document.

5. Financing the Offer and cash

confirmation

The source of financing for the cash
consideration payable in full under the Offar
is financing from Abu Dhabi Commercial
Bank in the United Arab Emirates which is
licenzed by the Central Bank of the United
Arab Emirates.

6. Management, employees and UltraTech
plans for RAKWCT

UltraTech has stated that it attaches great
importance to the skills and expertise of the
exisling management and employees of
HAHWC'-T Elnd intends to retain the sktlls
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made in the ordinary course of business (as
determined by the RAKWCT Board or the
management team of RAKWCT), UltraTech
has no intention to change the existing
governance model of RAKWCT or
employment  nghts of RAKWCT's
emplovees.

The RAKWCT Board welcomes UltraTech's
confirmatiens in relation to management,

employees and its plans for the Company
set oLt above.

Conditions

The Offer is subject to the Conditions and
further terms set out or referred to in the
UitraTech - Offer Document For more
information about the conditions of the
Offer, please refer to UltraTech Offer
Document,

Interests and dealings

(a) Interests in RAKWCT Shares

Az at the Latest Practicable Date:

(i

(i}

RAKWCT does not have an ownership
interast of 5% or more in UltraTech;

the members of the RAKWCT Board do
not have an ownership interest of 5% or
maore in UltraTech:

{ii) the members of the RAKWCT Board do

WCT, or pension fund
FRAKWCT or an affiliate
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of RAKWCT, or any consuitant to
RAKWCT or any person acting in
agreement with RAKWCT has an
ownership interest of 5% or more in
RAKWCT Shares;

no person, with whom RAKWCT or
parsons acting in concert with RAKWCT
has a Dealing Arrangement, had or
controlled an ownership intarast of 5% or
mare in RAKWCT Shares; and

no fund manager related to RAKWCT
manages an ownership interest of 5% or
mora in RAKWCT Shares.

(b} Dealings

In the 12 months preceding the
Offer until the day prior to the
date of this Shareholders
Circular

i) RAKWCT has net dealt
in any RAKWCT Shares;

(i) naone of the membears of
the RAKWCT Board has
dealt in any RAKMWCT
Shares.

During the Offer Period until the
day prior to the date of this
Shareholders Circular:

no affiliate of RAKWET,
or pension fund affiliated
to either RAKWCT or an
affiliate of RAKWCT, or
any consultant to
RAKWCT or any parson
acting in agreement with
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RAKWCT has dealt in
any RAKWCT Shares;

(i no parson, with whom
FRAKWCT or persons
acting in concert with
RARWCT has a Dealing
Arrangement, has dealt
in any RAKWCT Shares;
and

(fi)  no fund manager related
to RAKWCT has dealt in
any RAKWCT Shares.

9. Background to and reasons for the

recommendation

Tha offer price was determined in
accordance with the provisions of Article ()
of the Takeover Code which provides that
the Offer Price may not be lower than the
highest price of the following;

i.  The market price on the first day of the
Offer.

ii.  The closing price prior to the first day
of tha Offer commencement.

ili. The average prce during the 3
months preceding the start of the
Difer.

v, The highest price paid by the
acquining party to buy the shares
during the 12 months preceding the
submission of the Offer.

HFMG Lower Gulf Limited prepared a
ial. s udy for the RAKWCT Board to
e3fthe,Offer is in compliance with

: akeover Code.
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The closing price of RAKWCT Shares, for K -0 Ja¥1 asdl 3 (3520 agad GMEI
the first day of each of the six months W G e i

immediately preceding the date of =% Eull AL Sl g e sed

publication of UltraTech Offer Document is: 198 GBLA aye
Date Closing Price (AED) oAl [p232) EMEYI
01/05/2024 0.98 2024/05/01 0.98
01/04/2024 1.06 2024 /04701 1.06
01/03/2024 1.15 2024,/03/01 1.15
01/02/2024 1.16 2024/02/01 1.16
0170172024 1.14 2024/01/01 1.14
01/12/2023 1.7 2023/12/01 1.17
01/11/2023 1.18 2023/11/01 1.18

The price of RAKWCT Shares on the last day sy Best (5ol Pl peall (3 A2 1""'5‘""IJ""‘""' al
preceding the commencement of the Offer Jeiift : : -4
Period is AED 1.08 and the UltraTech offer 3 SEU0 U255 sais (2 1.09 58 (o)l 88

price is AED 1.15. e2y3 1,15

Following  detailed  consideration, the 5, otzee elac] A8t ddoalddl Al aeg
RAKWCT independent Board membars : " .

i : | ] PRRE - | ||
believe that the Offer iz fair and has been Sly Bl _F b ne Ol e ﬂ"r“"
determined In compliance with SCA's rules  adlall Blsl dice milsls el gal Tady s o5 4B
and regulations and that the independent _.15")_;]1 bl ds ooqg :|,,,||_.,I
Board members recommend the Offer to the ) R

RAKWCT Sharehalders,

ol J gl ATy Ladlsad) gl Silely> ) 10
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RAKWECT Shareholders wishing to accept
the Offer must contact their broker where
their shares are deposited and instruct them
to place their Sell Order a5 & good fill
cancelled order with a limited price equating
the Offer Prce no |ater than 2.00 pm on 24
June 2024 (er such later date as may be
notified by UltraTech to RAKWCT).

Submission of the Sell Order shall be
construed as acceptance of the Offer
Further guidance on the procedures for
accaptance of the Offer and placing the Sell
Cirder are set out in this UltraTech Offer
Docurment.

if you have any gquestions relating to the
procedure for acceptance of the Offer,
please contact the representative of Abu
Dhabi Commercial Bank on +97128126481
between B8.00 A M, and 4,00 P.M, from
Monday to Friday ar at
CapitalMarkstsTeam@adeb com, or you
may contact your broker. The Transaction
Manager cannoct provide advice on the
merits of the Offer nor give any financial,
lagal or tax advice

You are advised to read the whole of this
document carefully.

THE OFFER CLOSING DATE IS 2.00 P.M.
ON 24 JUNE 2024,

The Offer is in accordanca with the procedure
applied by the ADX and will be executed as
follows:

{a) the Shares of RAKWCT shall be traded
1 a_cmrdanne with the trading rules

I.;E. i * :1-_ & to ADX,

fated Deal’ board of ADX
E LftraTech's Buy Order will be

delial dacill Wy 355 3 (retloall e o
Cpdd! E_r‘l'::r -ﬂ.:..,‘rL.‘u.h'_':.-'l algalls ,__;.EL_-.;:JL AP, |
i gl gl Tl ol Jaad (8 Ok
) ol poddil @aslily pgagad Pl o o
gt ] eli] i g plle B g Lol
deledl dgla ¥ dega 3 apall e Jola Spdone
Blowiall duall Cililedt dley codgl 15yl 2.00
e e 32 A6 gl al) 2024 o0 24 Aojls
dasdd) ey 454 ] wBIAT A58 asls U3 Jualt
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pd e Gl bl e Bee JLaB 208
deldly Bluo 8,00 dsl) s +97128126481
opt Blmdiall dapadl Lyl dlga digis Blaws 4,00
JaAY Wl e gl dmemll ) Yl pg
wlifes 3l CapitalMarketsTeam@adcb.com
dadgall paal oS Y el Lol duwgll Jlasil
Bdhe 51 e Wy 2l Ll Glda B9l madis
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placed daily with ADCB Securities LLC,
the brokerage subsidiary of the
Transaction Manager ("ADCBS™);

(¢} Sell Orders will be placed on the
"Megotiated Deal” board daly by a
licensed broker,

id) Sell Orders placed on the *Negotiated
Deal” board of ADX are valid for one
day only;

(@) ADX will cansgider Sell Orders placed on
the “Megotiated Deal” board which are
caonsistent with the terms of the Offer,
Sales Orders which are placed on the
“Negotiated Transactions” board but
whose prices differ from the price
shown in LHtratech Offar Document will
be cancelled;

(fy orders will only be entered during the
Offer Period, with no execution until the

closing dateltime of the Offer Period;
and

{g) Sell Orders on the |last day of the Offer
Periad shall be entered in the electronic
trading system starting 10:00 am until
2:00 pm of the same day without
executing any such order and the
trading system shall procesd to the
exacution of these orders (as per the
meachanism stipulated in Uitratech Offer
Documents ) after trading hours.

Any RAKWCT Shareholder, whoe has
pledged or otherwise subjected his
RAKWCT Shares to any form of security,
must contact the bank or entity in whose
favour the RAKWOCT Shares have been
pledged or any other security owver the
shares has been granted and obtain written
clearance from that bank or entity to transfar
those RAKWCT Shares (as relevant) to
UiraTech. The written clearance (or a

Bl Bph Sl Lags SBIAN (LS e el 201
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relevant) will not be transferred to LitraTech
and the Offer wall not have been acceptad in
respect of such shares,

If a RAKWCT Shareholder lodges the Sell
Order in respect of RAKWCT Shares, bt
subsequently transfers all of s RAKWCT
Shares to a third party prior to the Offer
Clesing Date, its Sell Order in respect of
RAKWCT Shares will be deemed invalid
and it will not have accepted tha Offer in
respact of such shares,

General Assembly Meeting

Tha RAKWCT Shareholders are invited to
attend a general assembly mesting to be
held on 9 July 2024 to consider the agenda
itams as set out In the general assembly
invitation set out in Annex 1.

The required resclutions will be proposed at
the RAKWCT GM, to be held at 11:00 am
on Tuesday 9 July 2024 at Waldadf Astona

Hotel - Ras Al Khamah, United Arab
Emiratas

A copy of the invitation 1o the RAKWCT GM
is attached to this Sharsholders Circular as
Annex 1.

are the key dates for the Offer
hat these dates are indicative
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only and will depand, among other things,
on the dates on which the conditions to the
Offer are satisfied.

pliwy kdd daalddul @ ftead! PR
paz @ el de (5,3 gal et (s Slaze
oAl g el g

Event Time and/or date

Anncuncement  of | Monday, 27 May
the Offer 2024

Dispatch  of the | Monday, 27 May
UltraTech Offer | 2024

Dacument to

RAKWCT

Publication of this 10 June 2024
Shareholders

Circular

QOffer opening date ETl.lnlisu::r:aj,.l, 28  May
| 2024
|

Record Date | B July 2024

Time and date of | Tuesday, B July 2024
RAKWCT GM

Offer Closing Date | 2.00 p.m. on
: Monday, 24 June

2024
Tuesday, 25 June

2024
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Seftlement of the | No later than 18 July
applications for | 2024
acceptance

Mo later than 18 July
2024

Re-ragistration  of
RAKWICT  Shares
relabing fo the
shareholders  who
accepted the Offer in
the Fame of

18 obadl dege 4

1

2024 sz

Jgeall il day

UkraTech

a5 all .Fu.ﬁ...uE e k] |
Cl rpedleaall dualsdl |
SRS oy ol 151

18 shadl dege 3
2024 sy

13. Recommendation

KPMG Lower Guif Limited, considers the
price of the Offer is in compliance with
Article (B) of Takeover Caode,

IERAHIM .N. PARTHERS canfirms that the
Company has adhered to all necessary
proceduras conceming the acquisition
offer received from UltraTech to acguire
31.6% of the Company's total share
capital. The Company has complied with
all the legal procedures stipulated in the
Board of Directors' Resolution of the
Securities and Commodities Authority No.
18/R.M of 2017 regarding the rules of
acquisition and merger of public joint stock
companies, as well as the Administrative
Resolution No, B2/R.T of 2017 concerming
the technical requirements for the
acquisition and merger system of public
joint stock companies.

The RAKWCT Board, consider the terms of
the Offer to be fair and reasonable so far
as RAKWCT Shareholders are concermed.

8 RAKWCT independent
ﬁer tah;mg the adwce of

do gl 13
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as per Article & of Takeover Code and the
legal counsel, consider and beliave that the
Offer is fair and has been determined in
compliance with SCAs rules and
regulations, and that the independent
Board members recommend the Offer to
the FRAKWCT Shareholders.

Yours fathfully

Dr. Mohammed Abdullatif Al Shehhi

Vice-Chairman of RAKWCT
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Annex 1

Invitation to Attend the General Assembly
Meeting for RAS AL KHAIMAH CO. FOR
WHITE CEMENT & CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS PSC (the “Company” or
“RAKWCT”)

The Board of Directors of the Company
("Board of Directors”) is honored to invite the
shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) to attend the General
Assembly Meeting (“”) which will be held
physically at 11:00 am on Tuesday 9 July 2024
at Waldorf Astoria Hotel - Ras Al Khaimah,
United Arab Emirates and electronically/from
distance to consider, discuss or, as the case
may be, approve the following:

1. Ratifying the entry into the implementation
agreement between the Company and
ULTRA TECH CEMENT MIDDLE EAST
INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“Ultra Tech”)
(“Implementation Agreement”) entered
into on 29 May 2024, setting out the rights
and obligations of the parties as they relate
to the conditional cash offer of Ultra Tech
to acquire 158,049,610 shares
representing 31.6% of the issued and paid
up ordinary share capital of the Company,
with a value of AED 1.15 in cash for each
share of the Company (according to the
terms and conditions set out in the Ultra
Tech Offer Document (“Offer”).

2. Ratify of the conditional cash Offer from
Ultra Tech to the Board of Directors to

1 G

Ao goad| dumozell glaiizr! ygsaze) B9
o2l Conwd! dslual dousdl uly 454
("AS 1" £ p. g ABLEYI Slgally

By (" gudmall") 4S80 Byl ulzma 40
b el L) Sl pradlis BoLu)
it s3and (bl 3] galnall i
SYCINII (A TRPN VRS WIVEL [ WPN
lue 11:00 dsldl ples § bygua> oolaas!
BIid ‘_g 20245<J5-_3 9 @-3)\» <M £ 9 g
OhlYl - dapsdl (ely Hlo) -bygieel Bl
3y dm 5e/log Sy ¢ Basioll Ayl
J oot cans 9 Ll ol dadlel

i o e eIl a3 13] ¢ dabdlgall

4S9 45,41 o k! 4B e g3l 1
owedinds) Gl Juse L./\M kR
("dakidl ABWSI") ("BLAN)  axed
(o2l (319 ¢« 2024 g3lo 29 gy dabgall
Oblfly Gei> 631 9ol Aoz o 0
il 2yl @lan Ld BLLY
gzl cldg bl Al epo pdall bog el
oo %31.6 Jind ogw 158,049,610 e
gl (o A g8uallg Byunnll doslall egudl
s 3hle) @25 1.15 Jalal depdy 4S54l
byl E3g) Al mgul oo oo S
o pdall (oyall Wik (3 Byl PSS
(" opyal") sl

byl gusdl oyl Ao Badl 2



4. Ratifying

acquire 158,049,610 shares, representing
31.6% of the issued and paid up ordinary
share capital of the Company, not already
held by Ultra Tech.

To approve the authorisation of the Board
of Directors, or any person so authorised
by the Board of Directors, to adopt any
resolution or take any action as may be
necessary to implement any of the above
resolutions including, without limitation, to
apply to Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange
to update the Company’s share register to
record the shares of those who have
accepted the Offer in the name of Ultra
Tech following the close of the Offer
period. The Board of Directors is
authorised to communicate with the
Securities and Commodities Authority,
the Ministry of Economy, the Department
of Economic Development and the
competent authorities and Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange, and further to be
authorised to take all necessary action to
amend the records with all persons and
entities whether official or otherwise.

the Board of Directors'
recommendation to accept the acquisition
offer from UltraTech Cement Middle East
Investments Limited ("UltraTech") to
acquire up to 31.6% of the issued and
paid-up ordinary shares in the company's
capital, and to explain the impact of the
acquisition offer's implementation on the
company.

Ratifying and presenting of the results and
recommendations submitted by the
financial advisor and the legal advisor
regarding the acquisition offer from
UltraTech.
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Notes:

2.

A shareholder who is entitled to attend the
GAM may delegate any person, who is
not a member of the Board of Directors,
employee of the Company or a brokerage
company or its employees to attend the
GAM on their behalf by virtue of a written
authorization/proxy made pursuant to a
written delegation. A proxy holder may
not represent a number of shareholders in
excess of 5% of the Company’s capital.
However, if the proxy is representing one
single shareholder, his/her proxy may
exceed 5% of the Company’s share
capital. Minors and those who have no
legal capacity shall be represented by
their legal representatives. In case the
quorum was not achieved in the first
meeting, the proxies issued for the first
meeting shall be considered valid for any
later meetings unless expressly cancelled
by the shareholder through a notification

to a.ayash@rakwhitecement.ae, at
least two days prior to the second
meeting. The requirements under
Clauses No. 1 and 2 and 4(c) of Article 40
of the Governance Guide on adopting
proxies shall be met. These requirements
are set out in the explanatory disclosure
on adopting proxies.

If a shareholder is a corporate person, it
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may delegate one of its representatives or
those in charge of its management by
way of a resolution passed by its board of
directors or any authorized person to
represent the corporate person in the
GAM. The delegated person shall have
the authority as determined by the
delegation resolution.

Electronic Registration, Attendance and
eVoting:

a)

b)

d)

e)

One day prior to the GAM on 8 July 2024 a
text message with the registration and
voting link will be sent to all investors.

Each investor can register for attendance
and vote from the time of receipt of the link
until the beginning of the GAM at 10:00 am
on Tuesday 9 July 2024 at Waldorf Astoria
Hotel - Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab
Emirates.

The voting will be valid during the meeting
and the investors have the right to attend
the online meeting and keep or change
their vote.

Shareholders may watch the live broadcast
of the meeting through the registration and
voting link referred to above and submit
questions using the same link.

For inquiries please call Mr. Alaa Ayash —
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f)

Mob. No. 055/2522515 and Mr.
Abdelwahed Fathallah No. 072034227

The shareholders may review the
disclosure in relation to the procedure for
the adoption of a proxy published on the
Company’s website and the ADX.

Every shareholder whose name is
registered on 8 July 2024 shall be entitled
to attend and vote at the GAM. In case the
GAM is held on 16 July 2024 due to lack of
quorum in the first meeting, every
shareholder whose name is registered on
15 July 2024 shall be entitled to vote at the
GAM.

The shareholders can review the financial
statements and the Board report and the
auditors’ report by visiting the ADX
website www.adx.ae and the Company’s

website www.rakwhitecement.ae.

The GAM is valid only if attended by
shareholders holding or representing by
proxy at least 50% of the Company's
share capital. In the event that such
quorum is not achieved at the first GAM,
a second meeting will take place on
Tuesday 16 July 2024 at the same place
and time and the second meeting shall be
valid irrespective of the shareholders
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Private and confidential

Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction P.S.C.
Ras Al Khaimah
United Arab Emirates

03 June 2024
Dear Sirs,

Project Dome

We refer to our recent correspondence in relation to the engagement of KPMG Lower Gulf Limited
(“KPMG” or “we”) by Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction P.S.C. (‘“RAKWCT”) to
act as your adviser for providing limited support with regards to the proposed acquisition of
RAKWCT's listed shares on the Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange (“ADX”) by Ultratech Cement Middle
East Investment Limited (“UltraTech”) (“Transaction”).

As stated in our Engagement Letter, you have agreed that this final written presentation (the
“Presentation”) will supersede all previous oral, draft, interim advice, reports and presentations, and
that any reliance will be placed by you on such oral, draft, interim advice, reports or presentations
only at your own risk.

Our Report is confidential and is released to you on the basis that it is not to be copied, referred to or
disclosed, in whole or in part, without our prior written consent, save as permitted in our Engagement
Letter. The scope of work for this report has been agreed by the addressee and to the fullest extent
permitted by law we will not accept responsibility or liability to any other party, save as permitted in
our Engagement Letter (including the addressee’s legal and other professional advisers), in respect
of our work or the Report.

KPMG

KPMG Lower Gulf Limited
The Offices 5, One Central
Dubai World Trade Center
PO Box 3800

Dubai, United Arab Emirates

T: +971-2-401 4800
F: +971-2-6327612
www.ae-kpmg.com

In accordance with our Engagement Letter, you may disclose our report to your legal and other
professional advisers in order to seek advise in relation to our work for you, provided that when
doing so you inform them that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or
liability to them in connection with our Report and our work to you.

The scope of work is set out in our Engagement Letter. This details the agreed scope of our
enquiries, directed at those issues that you determined to be critical to you. You should note that our
findings do not constitute recommendations to you as to whether or not you should proceed with the
proposed course of action.

Yours faithfully, E 1 |

KPMG Lower Gulf Limites
B.O. Box: 3800, Dubai - UAE
Tel: 04 - £030200

KPMG Lower Gulf Limited




Important notice

This Presentation is prepared on the basis of information presented to us by the Company and/or its representatives, the offer submitted by UltraTech to the Board of Directors of RAKWCT (“BoD”), and publicly
available information.

We are not performing any management functions for you nor make any decisions. You are responsible for making management decisions, including accepting responsibility for the results. You should note that the
Presentation does not constitute recommendations to you as to whether or not you should proceed with the Transaction.

RAKWCT and its BoD will clearly retain complete and final control and responsibility of all key decisions, including but not limited to, those concerning the legal and financial structure for the Transaction; acceptance of
the offer from UltraTech, and the appointment of legal, accounting, tax and any other due diligence advisors, if required.

Please note that our scope does not include any valuation of business or any other assets, both tangible and intangible.

For clarity, the scope of work does not include the following elements: a legal, financial, commercial, technical and tax due diligence of the Company; preparation of a valuation or a fairness opinion, preparation of
budgets, forecasts or the business plan; current trading analysis; investing capital; provision of finance.

Neither KPMG, nor affiliated corporate bodies, nor its directors, shareholders, managers, partners or employees make any representation or warrant, expressly or by interpretation, as to the accuracy, reasonableness
or completeness of the information contained in the Presentation. All such parties and entities expressly disclaim any and all liability for, or based on or relating to any such information contained in, or errors in or
omissions from, this Presentation or based on or relating to the recipient’s use of this Presentation.

KPMG has undertaken a limited analysis of the current financial position of RAKWCT in relation to its financial performance. Information provided to KPMG has been mentioned in this report. We have not otherwise
undertaken an audit, investigation or enquiry into the affairs of RAKWCT and therefore express no opinion on the financial information contained in the Presentation.

In accordance with the requirements of auditing standards involving the use of an expert, the auditors of RAKWCT have the sole responsibility for its audit opinion expressed in respect of the financial reports. We do
not warrant or represent that the Report will provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the purpose of your auditors engagement, as in performing this engagement we may not have addressed matters in which
they may be interested or may be material to them. Accordingly, the auditors are not entitled to rely on this Presentation or the conclusions drawn.

We accept no responsibility or liability for any losses occasioned by any party as a result of our reliance on the financial and non-financial information that was provided to us or that we have obtained from third parties.
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Transaction overview

Conditions

Ultratech Cement Middle East Investment
Limited (“UltraTech” or “Acquiring
Party”) made a partial conditional cash
offer to the shareholders of Ras Al
Khaimah Co. for White Cement and
Construction Materials P.S.C.
(“RAKWCT”) to acquire 158,049,610
shared listed on the ADX, representing
31.6% of the ordinary shares of the
issued and paid-up share capital
(collectively, the “Offer”).

The Offer was made in accordance with
the terms and conditions set out in the
document prepared by UltraTech (the
“Offer Document”).

UltraTech notified the Board of Directors
of RAKWCT on 27 May 2024 (“Offer
Announcement Date”) of its intention to
submit the Offer.

Within 14 days of receiving the Offer
Document, the board of RAKWCT is
required to share a circular with the
RAKWCT shareholders with its
recommendation (“Offeree Circular”).

Under the terms of the Offer, RAKWCT
shareholders who will accept the Offer
(“RAKWCT Shareholders”) shall receive
AED 1.15 in cash for each RAKWCT
share (the “Offer Price”);

The offer period is from May 28, 2024, to
June 24, 2024 (“Offer Period”).

If the number of RAKWCT shares offered
at the end of the Offer Period is more than
the number of shares set out in the Offer,
UltraTech will acquire from RAKWCT
Shareholders a number of shares pro-rata
to the total number of shares set out in
the Offer.

The Offer and Offer Price was determined
in accordance with the provisions of
Article 6 of the Decision of the Chairman
of SCA Board of Directors (18/R.M.) of
2017 concerning the rules of acquisition
and merger of public companies (the
“Takeover Code”).

UltraTech and RAKWCT (the “Parties”)
will also enter into an implementation
agreement, which will set out the rights
and obligations of the Parties.

UltraTech is a company incorporated and
registered in the Jebel Ali Free Zone
(“JAFZA”), United Arab Emirates, and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of UltraTech
Cement Limited, incorporated in India.

As at the Offer Announcement Date,
UltraTech has an ownership interest
representing 29.39% (being 147,000,000
shares) of the shares in RAKWCT.

Ultratech is looking to further benefit from
RAKWCT’s expertise in the
manufacturing of white cement by
expanding the business of RAKWCT
locally, regionally, and internationally, as
well as expanding the core business by
providing modern products such as wall
care putty and other new products.

The Offer is subject to the waive or
fulfilment of, inter alia, the following
conditions:

o Obtaining all required governmental,
corporate, commercial, regulatory and
statutory approvals

o RAKWCT furnishing SCA with all
require/requested information

o Dispatch of Offeree Circular by
RAKWCT to its shareholders

o The RAKWCT shareholders passing
the requisite shareholder resolutions

o No material adverse changes occur
prior to the satisfaction of all
conditions.

Source: Management information, The Offer Document




Company overview

Company overview

Overview

Established in 1980 and listed on the Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange (“ADX”), RAKWCT manufactures and
distributes white cement, lime, and concrete blocks primarily across the UAE, wider GCC, and India. It
operates across 3 companies: Ras Al Khaimah White Cement (“RAK White Cement”), Ras Al Khaimah
Lime Co, (“Noora”) and Modern Block Factory (“MBF”).

Summary of brands

* One of the largest white cement producers globally
* Leading regional white cement exporter

RAK + 550k tonnes of white cement capacity annually White cement  White Portland
White Cement clinker cement

Largest exporter of lime stone products to industrials
which caters to the local market
» 1,000 tonnes per day capacity (lime stone burning)

NOORA
Noora

Various lime stone products
(quick / hydrated / dolomitic lime)

‘~ Leading force in the construction materials industry “ Interlocks
< * Produces concrete blocks and interlocking paving stones

MB“ o 0 _ : Concrete
VBF 100% automated press & robot-controlled curing chamber blocks ﬂ

Kerbstone

Source: Company website, Audited Financial Statements, ADX
Note: (1) Sourced from ADX, as at 27 May 2024, (2) Sourced from Audited Financial Statements; (3) Per annum

KPMG
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RAS AL KHAIMAH CO. FOR WHITE CEMENT & CONST. MATERIALS

Ownership structure(

Q0o
I &
R cwuies (i
Ultratech Allied Investment Government of .
Partners Ras Al Khaimah Public
29.4% 26.9% 9.1% 34.6%
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RAS AL KHAIMAH CO. FOR WHITE CEMENT & CONST. MATERIALS

% AED256m 97 ¢.3%

Revenue (FY23A) Revenue CAGR (FY21A-FY23A)

g 40% = 8.0%
Operating profit margin (FY23A) Net Profit margin (FY23A)
050k tonnes -f 1ktonnes/day

White cement capacity p.a.(® Lime stone burning capacity

o\
N



Financial overview (1/2) - Revenue and profitability

RAKWCT - Income Statement

AEDmM FY21 FY22 FY23 Q123 Q124
Local sales 103.3 95.9 88.2 n/a n/a
Exports sales 136.5 151.7 167.7 n/a n/a
Revenue 239.8 247.7 255.9 66.7 63.0
Cost of sales (202.4) (213.5) (224.5) (60.8) (46.0)
Gross profit 374 341 314 5.8 17.0
Operating expenses (24.1) (22.0) (21.5) (5.4) (6.3)
Other income 9.6 0.9 0.3 0.1 0.0
Operating profit 22.9 13.0 10.2 0.5 10.7
Dividend income 6.0 6.1 3.2 0.4 -
Interest income 0.0 1.3 9.2 1.5 3.6
Other investment income 5.8 2.7 (1.7) 1.7) -
Investment income 11.8 10.2 10.7 0.1 3.6
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses - (0.7) - - -
Foreign exchange loss (0.3) (0.7) (0.3) (0.0) (0.0)
Finance cost (1.6) (0.8) - - -
Profit before tax 32.9 211 20.5 0.6 14.3
Income tax expense - - - - (1.2)
Net Profit 32.9 211 20.5 0.6 13.1
KPIs

Revenue growth (%) 84% 33% 33% n/a n/a
Gross margin (%) 15.6% 13.8% 12.3% 88% 27.0%
Operating profit margin (%) 9.5% 53% 4.0% 08% 16.9%
Net Profit margin (%) 13.7% 85% 8.0% 0.9% 20.8%

Source: Company website, S&P Capital IQ, Audited Financial Statements
Note: (1) Includes Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss, Realized gain on sale of investments at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss, and Investment management fee

KPMG

Historical performance

Revenue grew at a CAGR c. 3% between FY21A-FY23A (“Historical Period”) mainly driven by the
growth in export sales, which generated AED 168m (FY23A), representing c. 65% of revenue.

Gross margin declined from 15.6% in FY21A to 12.3% in FY23A mainly due to an increase in
direct material costs and direct utility costs.

Operating expenses mainly consist of staff, marketing, office, and legal expenses. Operating
expenses declined at a CAGR of 5.6% over the Historical Period, as a result of lower legal fees
and marketing expenses.

Operating profit margin declined from 9.5% in FY21A to 4.0% in FY23A, in line with the decline in
gross profit, coupled with a decrease in other income attributable to a one-time reversal of liability
of AED 9.0m in FY21A.

Investment income consists of dividend income received from investments in quoted securities,
interest income from bank deposits, and others(.

Net profit margin declined from 13.7% in FY21A to 8.0% in FY23A, in line with the decline in
operating profit margins.

Current trading

.

RAKWCT generated AED 63.0m of revenue for the period ending 31 March 2024 (“Q1 24”),
representing a 5.4% decline (AED 66.7m) compared to revenue generated for the period ending
31 March 2023 (“Q1 23").

Gross profit increased from AED 5.8m in Q1 23 to AED 17.0m in Q1 24, primarily driven by a
decline in cost of sales.

Operating profit increased from AED 0.5m in Q1 23 to AED 10.7m in Q1 24, primarily driven by
the increase in gross profits across the period.



Financial overview (2/2) - Balance sheet position

RAKWOCT - Balance Sheet Overview of Balance Sheet

AEDm . Dec-21 Dec-22 Dec-23 Mar-24 + Total non-current assets primarily consist of plant, property, and equipment and

Property, plant, and equipment 4924 4661 4402 4352 investments at FVTOCI™M, which mainly relate to investments in UAE-quoted shares.

Investments at FVTOCI 174.0 107.3 59.7 56.3

Total non-current assets 666.4 573.4 499.9 491.5 * Total current assets mainly include cash and cash equivalents, inventories, and trade
and other receivables.

Inventories 81.2 78.5 79.9 76.1 . . .

Trade and other receivables 46.0 51.7 51.8 57.0 » Cash and cash equivalents reached c. AED 270m in Mar-24, out of which c. AED

Investments at FVTPL® 42.0 315 - d 246m relate to term deposits with maturity of 3+ months.

Cash and cash equivalents 127.5 147 .1 251.3 269.7 o tori inl ist of t K-i it d finished

Total current assets 206.7 308.8 382.9 402.8 nventories mainly consist of spare parts, work-in-progress items, and finishe

products. Inventory days averaged 162 days® over the Historical Period.

Total assets 963.1 8822 8828  894.3 + Trade and other receivables mainly consist of trade receivables, dues from related

End of service benefits 93 10.5 10.2 10.3 gartlt(e4s), refur;:at')_:g ?eposllt;, a_m(cji other receivables. Receivable days averaged 62

Bank borrowings 50.5 _ _ ] ays™ over the Historical Period.

Deferred tax liability - - - 0.1 + Current liabilities primarily consist of trade and other payables, including trade

Total non-current liabilities 59.8 10.5 10.2 10.3 payables, accrued expenses and advances, and dividends payable. Payable days
3) o :

Bank borrowings 295 i i | averaged 56 days'®) over the Historical Period.

Income tax liability - - - 1.2

Trade and other payables 87.0 89.5 76.4 76.9

Total current liabilities 109.5 89.5 76.4 781

Total liabilties 169.3 100.0 86.6 88.4

Share capital 500.2 500.2 500.2 500.2

Statutory reserve 116.0 118.1 120.2 120.2

Cummulative changes in FVTOCI (50.7) (38.9) (40.3) (43.8)

Retained earnings 228.4 202.8 216.2 229.4

Equity 793.8 782.2 796.2 805.9

Liabilities & Equity 963.1 882.2 882.8 894.3

Source: Company website, S&P Capital IQ, Audited Financial Statements
Note: (1) Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income; (2) Fair Value Through Profit and Loss; (3) Based on trade payables and cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization; (4) Based on net trade receivables, which include trade receivables less allowances for
expected credit losses

EHEH |7



Offer price

Summary of Article 6 %

According to Article 6 of the Takeover
Code, the Offer Price may not be lower
than the highest of the following:

» Market price on the first day of the Offer
(28 May 2024)

» Closing price prior to the first day of offer
Commencement (27 May 2024)

» Average price during the 3 months
preceding the start of the offer

» Highest price paid by the acquiring party
in the last 12 months prior to the offer

Comparison of Offer Price to regulatory price benchmarks, set out in Article 6 of the Takeover Code

Price per share (AED)

1.20

1.05

1.00

0.95

0.90

Offer Price

A

Market price
(28 May 2024)

1.09
1.03
A
Closing price vWAP
(27 May 2024) (Last 90 trading days)

Regulatory threshold

Max price by Ultratech
(Last 12 months)

Regulatory price benchmarks

v

Based on our analysis of the Offer Price, Ultratech’s Offer is higher than the regulatory threshold and is in compliance with Article 6 of the Takeover Code

Source: ADX, Securities and Commodities Authority, KPMG analysis

Note: (1) Volume weighted average price based on the last 90 trading days (i.e. 10 October 2023 and 27 May 2024), using volume and opening price data from ADX

KPMG




Process timeline and next steps

5 %

27 May 2024 28 May 2024

Offer announcement and dispatch of Offer opening date
Ultratech Offer document RAKWCT

f’*

9 June 2024
24 June 2024 = RAKWCT Board to dispatch to shareholders the RAKWCT
Offer closing date (2:00 pm) (PDF] Offeree Circular (expected to contain the board

recommendation to shareholders to accept the Offer)

o]

25 June 2024

Offer results announcement

Source: Management information, The Offer Document
Note: (1) Within 14 days of receiving the Offer Document

KPMG

G

18 July 2024

Settlement of the consideration due to
accepting RAKWCT shareholders




www.kpmg.com/ae

Follow us on:

@ (H@

@kpmg_lowergulf

The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of any particular individual or entity. Although we endeavor to provide accurate and timely information, there can be no guarantee that such information is accurate as of the date it is received or that it
will continue to be accurate in the future. No one should act on such information without appropriate professional advice after a thorough examination of the particular situation.

The logos used in this document are the intellectual properties of their respective owners.

This document is made by KPMG, the United Arab Emirates member firm of the KPMG network of independent firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited (“‘KPMG International”), and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement, satisfactory clearance of KPMG'’s client and engagement
evaluation process, and signing of a specific engagement letter or contracts. KPMG International provides no client services. No member firm has any authority to obligate or bind KPMG International or any other member firm vis-a-vis third parties, nor does KPMG International have any such authority to
obligate or bind any member firm.

© 2024 KPMG Lower Gulf Limited, licensed in the United Arab Emirates, and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved.

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.
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To the Independent Board Members of Ras Al Khaimah Company for White Cement and
Construction Materials (PSC) Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah United Arab Emirates

Date: June 6, 2024

Greetings,

Legal Recommendation to the Independent Board Members of Ras Al Khaimah Company
for White Cement and Construction Materials (PSC) (the "Company")

With reference to the aforementioned subject and in our capacity as the legal advisor to the
company, we are honored to present to you our legal recommendation regarding the acquisition
process and the offer made by UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited ("UltraTech")
to acquire 31.6% of the company's total share capital, as follows:

1. Procedures Followed

The Company has adhered to all necessary procedures concerning the acquisition offer
received from UltraTech to acquire 31.6% of the company's total share capital. The
Company has complied with all the legal procedures stipulated in the Board of Directors'
Resolution of the Securities and Commodities Authority No. 18/R.M of 2017 regarding the
rules of acquisition and merger of public joint stock companies, as well as the
Administrative Resolution No. 62/R.T of 2017 concerning the technical requirements for
the acquisition and merger system of public joint stock companies.

2. Determination of the Offer Price

The offer price was determined in accordance with Article 6 of the Board of Directors'
Resolution of the Securities and Commodities Authority No. 18/R.M of 2017. Therefore,
the determination of the acquisition price was made in accordance with the applicable
regulations and resolutions in this regard.

3. Approvals Obtained

For the purposes of the acquisition process, the necessary approvals regarding the
acquisition offer submitted by UltraTech have been obtained, particularly the approval of
the following authorities:

a. Securities and Commodities Authority

b. Ministry of Economy

c. Department of Economic Development in the Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah
d. Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange



This is our recommendation accordingly.

Ahmed Ibrahim
Managing Partner
Ibrahim & Partners Law Firm
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RAKWCT GM

the general assembly
meeting of RAKWCT to
be convenad in
connaction with the
Offar

RAKWCT
Sharaholdars

holders of RAKWCT
Shares that appear on
RAKWCT s share
register from time 1o
fime

RAKWCT
Shares

[the axisting

unconditionally issusad
and fully paid ordinary
shares of a nominal
value of AED1.00 each
in the capital of
RAKWCT, Being
500,157,000 shares as
at the date of this
Shareholders Circular

IFRS

International Financial =
Reporting Standards

Latest
| Practicable
Date

—_dune 2024 baing the
latest practicable date
prior to the date of this
Shareholders Circular

Restricted
Jurisdiction

any jurisdiction where

| extension or acceptance

of the Offer would
violate the law of that

Jurisdiction]
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BAS AL KHAIMAH 0, FOR WHITE CEMENT & CONST. MATERIALS PR.C,

Sell Order

means the deposit of
the sell order at the
Offer Price by a
RAKWCT Shareholder
wishing to accept the
Offer with the broker
where thair shares are
deposited which shall
be deemed an
acceptance of the Offer

Takeover Code

the Decision of the
Chairman of SCA Board
of Directors No. {18/
R.M.)of 2017
conceming the rules of
acquisition and merger
of public sharehalding
COMPEnes

Governance
Code

Securities and
Commuodities Chairman
Decision MNo.
{3/Chairman) of 2020 on
the Approval of Public
Joint Stock Companies
Governance Guide (as
ameanded)

Transaction

the completion of the
Offer

UAE

Linited Arab Emirates

the United States of
America, its territorias
and possessions, any
state of the United
States of America, the

District of Columbia and |

all ather areas subject

i to its jurisdiction and
any political sub-division
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction
Materials P.5.C. and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021



Ras Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C.
Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Table of contents

Directors' Repom

Independent auditor's report

Consolidated statement of financial position

Consolidated statement of income

Consolidared starement of comprehensive income

Consolidated statement of changes in ecquity

Consolidated staserment of cash flows

Motes to the consolidated fnancal statements

10

1

12



Has Al Khaimah Co, for White Cement & Constroction Matenials PLS.C,

Dhrectors” teport for the year ended 31 December 2021

The Directors submit their epon dlong-with the andited consolidsted financnl statements of Ras Al BKhamah Co
for White Cement & Construcuon Materals PE.C, and #s subsidianes for the year ended 31 Decsinber 2021

Incorporation and registered office

Ras Al Khaimah Co. for Whire Cement & Constrocnon Marerals P3G, Bas Al Khaimah (the “Company™) is
incorporatsl 2 4 pubbc shamholiing company by Emin decree numnbet 13781 dated 5 Ciorober 1981 ssued by Hs
Highness the Ruler of Bas Al Khamal, The addoess of the Company's registered office 1 PO, Box 1492, Ras Al
B hmmash, Unied Arab Eporates,

The “Group” comprses Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Manenals PSC. and s
subeniiancs

Frn'p-ulﬁm -EF
ownership Country of Pringipal
Blame of subsidianies interest inCorparation  activities
iy Modesn Block Factory 100% AR, Manufactunng of conceete Blocks, intedock
Eanibsdishment yilex amed cement pmd.:m.
by  Has Al Khamah Leme Co. L LLAE Aarmfactiunng of bme producis,

Mooes LLC
The poacspal actvies of the Groop are manufachsng and sopply of whate cement, loae products and coment
produces and tnvesang, estblesiong, and oy elevant sctivites.
Results and appropristion

The operanng resilta and the fnancial posnon of the Groonap ace fully sef ot i the ampched consoldared Grancol
smaigments. The Group mported 8 oct profic of AED 329 mibon for the year ended 31 December 2021
1 20k net peofit of AED 12.7 milliod)

Dividends
At the annual peneral meeting held on 12 Apal 2021, the Sharchedders approved cash dmadends of 5% fom

shate capital amounting to AED 2501 million o the shareholders in respect for the year ended 31 December
M0 'E'hl!!.' havie alsn ::p'prm":d the Hozrd of Dtrectior” recraneration tor an smoont of AEDD 114 milban.

At she annual geneml mesnng held on 21 June 2000, the Shareholders dil not appoeve any cadh disidend o the
sharchoddess 0 respect of the pear ended 31 Devomber 2019 and ot has approvel the Boand of Dhreciors'
remannetaion by an amounr of AED 1.2 million. Mo 21)

Aunditors

Grrast Thomton were appiinted as auditors of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and bemg elyplile,
have offered themselves for re-appointment.

These consolidated Grancial suatemeors for the vear ended 31 December 2021 {inchuding comparatives] were
approved by the Boand of Director oo 26 Febraary, 2022 anad were sipned on chiewr belalf by

in behalf of rhe Board

Chasrman General Manager
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

Tao the Shareholders of
Ras Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Construoction Materials P.S.C.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have sudited the consolidated Bnancial ssatements of Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cernent & Construction
Marterials PS.C. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™), which comprise the consolidated smrement
of Anancial padton as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated sratement of income, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash Sows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidsted financis] starements, including a summary of significant
accoumntng policies.

In our opinion, the acoompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial posigon of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its financis] performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basts for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemnanional Standsrds on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilides under
those standards ase farther deseribed in the Audivar’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statemnents seetion of our repost. We ase independent of the Group In sccordsnce with Internagonal Brhics
Srandards Board for Accountant's Code of Ethics for Professional Aceountants (TESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in sccordance with the requrements of IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obmined i sufficiene and appropriste to provide 2 basis for our opinion.

Eey Audit Maners

Key awdic matters are those matters thar, in our professionad edement, were of most sipnificance in the sudit of the
consolidated Ansncial starements of the cozrent yeas, These mamers were addressed in the context of our swdit of
the consolidated financial smremeénts as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide =

sEparate opinkon an these matters.
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o Grant Thornton

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Sharcholders of
Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement #& Constmction Materials P.5.C. (continned)

Key Andit Matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsihilities descrbed in the Awditrl reponndilider for the anddit of the mnrolidaied finarcial
wratessenty section of our repore, including in reladon to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to r=spond o our assessment of the deks of marerial msssternent of the
consolidared HAnancial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed o
widress the mamer below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the sccompanying consolidsted Enancial
flahiianlasieR

Impairment losses on trade receivables

As ar 31 December 2021, trade receivables were AED 43 84 million againss which impairment loss allowsnes of
AED 295 million was tecorded (Note 7 to the consolidated financial starements),

Management exerclses significant judgement when determining both when and how much o record a8 made
receivable impainment allowance aé per requirements of IFRS 9 “Finandal instraments”. Becouse of the significance
of these pdgements and the marerality of trade receivables, the audit of trade receivables impairmens loss allowance
i% a key ares of focos,

The work that we performed to address this key audit mater inchoded the following procedures:

®  We obuined an undesstanding of the Group’s process for estimastng impairment loss allowance.

®  Tested the reasonableness of management’s key assumptions snd judgments vsed in the determination
of impairment loss allowance and its consistency with IFRS 5.

®  Tested the scouracy and completeness of data used in the determination of impairment loss allowance.

= Tested the adequacy of the disclosutes pertsining to impairment loss allowances incloded in these
consolidated financial staterments.

Oiher information
The Board of Directors are responsible for the other informaton, The other information comprises the Disecuores'
repart of the Group (but does not indlude the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s repoet thereon),

which we obtzined pdos to the date of this auditors mpm-nﬁﬁ:rm;ﬂnghhmﬁmufﬁ:wm
which is expected 1o be made availahle ro ua after thar date.

Crar opinion on the consolidated finoncial sratements does not cover :huulﬁztiu&prmn&nﬂmdwuhmrm
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audic of the consobdated Bneocial statements, our responsibilicy is to mad the other
informaton identified shove and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is maverially inconsisent
with the consolidated financial statements o our knowledge obtained in the sudit, or otherwise appesrs o be
materially misseated.

If, baged on the work we have performed, on the other information that we obtained prioe to the date of this
auditor’s teport, we conchade that there s a maserial misstatement of this other information, we are required o
repart that fact. We have noching to report in thas regand.

When we read the remaining information of the annoal report of the Group, if we conclode that thers iz 1 manerial
migstatement therein, we are reguired to commundcase the mater o those charnged with povernance,



o Grant Thornton

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Sharcholders of
Ras Al Ehaimah Co, for White Cement & Constructon Materials P.5.C. (continued)

Responsibilities of the Management and the Those Charped with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is respansible for the preparation and fifr presentstion of these consolidated Branchl starements in
pecordance with Internationsl Finonda Reporting Standneds and thelr preparsdon in complisnee with the
applicable provisions of the articles of association of the Company, UAE Federal Law No. (Z) of 2015 ag smended,
and for such intemnal control &5 mansgement determines is necessary o enshle the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are Fres From materdal missmtement, whether due to frand or ereoc.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's abilicy w
continue 85 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and wsing the going conceen
basis of sceoundng unless management either intends o liquidate the Group or m cease operstions, or has ne
realistic alternative but to.do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's fnancial reporting process.
Aunditor’s Responsibilities for ihe Audit of the Consolidated Financal Statremenss

Chur objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 2 whole
are free from material misstarement, whether due o frvud or eeror, and to issue an audivor’s report that inchedes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is o kigh level of sssurance, but is not a guarantes that an sudis conducted in
sceordance with 15As will always detect 2 matedal misstaterment when it exists, Missttements can anse from frausd
or efror and are considersd materal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could ressonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of wsers taken on the basks of thess consolidared financial statements,

As part of an audit in sccordance with [5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
theoughoat the audic. We also:

®  Tdentfy nod assess the dsks of marecal musstatement of the consolidated fnancial starements, whether duee o
fraud or ersor, design and perform mdit procedures responsive to those risks, and obwain audie svidence thar
is sufficient and appropriace 10 provide & basis for our opinion. The sk of not detecting & material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from exror, a5 fraud may involve collusion,
foagery, intentdonal omissions, missepresentations, or the override of internal control

#  Obtain #n undersimnding of intermal control relevant to the audit in ooder to design audit procedures thar are
appropeiate in the ciscumetanoes, but not fior the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's incernal conerol.

L Evaluste the appeopeinteness of sceountag policies used and the reasonablensis of sceousting cstirmates and
related disclosures made by mansgement

*  Concude on the appropriatencss of management's use of the going concern basis of sccountng and based on
the sudit evidenced obuined, whether o matetial uncertainty exists selated to events or eoaditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability 1o continue as a going concern. If we conchude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are requited to dow attention in owr auditor's ceport o the redated disclosures in the
consolidared Anancial staternents or, if soch diselosose are inadequate, to modify our oplnicn. Our conclosions
are based on the mudit evidence obmined up w the date of our auditor’s repore. However, futare events ar
condifons mey cause the Group i cease b0 continue af 4 poing Sonoer,



o Grant Thornton

Independent Auditoss Report

To the Shareholdess of
Rag Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C, {continued)

Auditor’s Responsthilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Staterments {contimed)

*  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, strocture and content of the consolidated Gnancial statemenss, inclading the
disclosures, and whether the consolidared financial statements represent the underdying transactions and
events mn & mannet that schieves fair presenmdon,

*  Obmin sfficient sppropeiate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entites or business
sctivities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We aze responsible
for the direction, supesvidon and performance of the group andit. We remain solely respansible for oer sedit
opirdon.

We communicate m those changed with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant sudie findings, including any significant deficiencies in intermal control thar we idenrify

durinp our sudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a smrement thar we have eomplied with relevant pehieal

requirements segarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships snd other matters thar may

reasonahbly be thought o bear on our independence, and where applcable, related safeguands.

From the matters communicated w those charged with governance, we determine those matrers that weee of most

significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key

audie matters. We describe these matters in our audinoe's report unless law and regulstions prechade poblic disclosuse
ghout the matter or when, in extemely rane circumstances, we determine that o matter should nos be commumdcated

im gur report becanse the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh the public

fnterest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Repulatory Requirements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law Mo, (2) of 2015 as amended, we report thar for year ended
December 31 2021:

i) We have obmined all the information we consideted necessary for the purposes of our audit

iy The comsolbdated financial stremens have been prepated and comply, in all maredal respeess, with the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 as amended;

i) The Group has maintained proper books of seeoent;

v} the financal information incladed in the Ditectors” report is consistent with the books of aceount of the
Grroup;

% Mote 5 to the consolidated financial statements discloses investrent in shares by the Group during the
finuncial year ended 31 December 2021;



Q Grant Thornton

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Sharcholders of
Ras Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materdals P.8.C. (continued)

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

vi) note 20 to the consclidated fnanclal statements discloses matedal related party tmnsactions and balances,
and the terms under which they were conducted; and

vil) based on the information that has been made evailable 1o us nothing has come to our attention which canses
18 1o heliewe that the Group has, during the financial year ended 31 Diecember 2021, conttavened any of the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (Z) of 2015 as smended o, its Amicles of Association,
which would matesially affect its activities or its consolidated financial posidon a8 at 31 December 2021; and

viili} note 28 reflects the socdal contrbutons were made during the year ended 31 December 2021,

P.O. Bow: 1988
GRANT THORNTON | Sharjah - U.A &,




Ras Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Constroction Materials P.S.C.

Consolidated statement of financial position
Ay at 31 December 2021

Motes 21 2020
AED AED
ASZETS
Mon-current assets
Propesty, plant and equipment 4 492,412,716 313, M 2008
Investmente cartied ar fuie vilee throogh other
comprehensve meame (FYTOCT) 5 173,974,245 201655 656
ol B, TG ] R T
Current assets
Inventones i 94,705,074 RO, M 540
Trade and orher peceivalilia 7 4= 263,570 T2 A4 AT72
Investments curmed ar fairvilse thiough probt o
loss (FVTTL) 5 41,951,778 25,154.572
(Cash wnd cash eguisalints ] 127,510,334 43,130 406
308,44, R55 241,558 400
TOTAL ASSETS o7,.817,814 Q7,130,354
EQUITY ANMD LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Share capsial ] S, 157,000 S 157 000
Statwbory reserve 10 115,993 875 112, Tk, 499
Cumulative changes in far value [FVTOCT) {50,746, 724) (69 166,114
Betamed earndngs 2FE 3TL 952 2120480 555
TOTAL EQUITY 793,776,103 T55, 778,140
LIABILITIES
Mon-current liabilites
Emplisyees’ end of sendce benefis 11 4,261,158 B HAGE]S
Bank bormaings 2 540,511,745 73,261,798
50,772,903 B2 118,613
Current habilities
Bank Tearrowings 12 22, 5040, 000 23 245 047
Trade and other payables 13 99,768, B4 106,83 654
122 268, ROS 120 253 6]
TOTAL LIABILITIES 182,041,711 201552214
TOTAL EQUITY AMD LIABRILITIES oYE,B17 R4 967,130,354

The consodidured fnancial statements weee approved for dssue by the Board of Disectors on 26 Fehmuary

2022 and signed on their behalf by p
Greneral Manager

Chailrman

The sectenpantang actes from | to 29 form an mitegral pare of these consolidased Enancial statements,




Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement 8 Construction Materials P.5.C.

Consolidated statement of income
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Revene

Cost of sales
Gross prodit

Sefling, peneral and admimistrative expenses

Grh:rimﬁum
Operating profit
Investmens income

Foreign exchange (Joss)/ juin
Frmanoe costs
Profit for the year

Basic and diluted eamings per share

Mlates

14

16
18

17

19

2021 2020

AED AED
239,809,046 221,192,660
(202,443,235) {1B3.93B,67T)
37,365,311 3T 253,943
{24,067,641) (23,399,500
0,580, 465 513,281
22,874,635 14,367,764
11,826,258 1,187,722
(259,588) 97,756
(1,573,576) {2,963 354
32,671,759 12,689,848
0.07 (iTik}

The sccompanying notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these consolidated financial ststements.

8



HRas Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials PL5.C,

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the vear ended 31 December 2021

Motes 2021 2020
AED AED

Profit fod the year 32,871,754 12,689 848
Cither comprehensive income /(Ioss)
Iterns thas will nat be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of invesrments costied at
FVTOCT 5 18,41%,3090 {7,758 508}
Crainy (loss) in fuir valoe on disposal of
investmenis casned ac [FYOC] 12,854,664 {1,462.517)
Onher comprebensive income f (loss) for the
year 31,274,054 19,221 0125)
Total comprehensive income for the year 64,145,813 3 468,823

The accompanying notes from 1 to 29 farm an mtegral part of these consolsdated finpncial statéments,
]
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Ras Al KEhaimah Co. for White Cement & Constroction Marerials P.S.C.

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:

Proft for the year

Adjustments for:

Drepreciation of property, plane and eqoipment
Reversal of hability

Provision for expected credit lnszes

Provision for employess” end of service banefits
Divacend Moot

Intesest income

(Gran)/loss on dsposal of nvesments carmied ax FYTPL
Finanee cmets

Unrealized (gain}/logs on investments carded at FVTPL
Investment managenient fee

Cash flows before changes in working capital
Chiangres in working capital:

Irwentones

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Emplovess” end of seovics benefits paid

Board of Dizectors' Remunerzton paid

Met cash flows from operating activitics
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Dividend received

Purchase of investenes carried ar FWTOCT
Purchase of investments carmed at FYVTPL
Disposal of investments carged at FYTOCT
Disposal of invesmments carried at FYTPL
Interest recened

Investment management lee paid

Met cash flows generated from/ (wsed in} investing
petivities

Cash flows from Anancing activities:
Repayment of bank borrmaings

Finance costs paid

Dividends paid

Met cagh flows used In Bnoncing activities

Met increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalentes

Cash and cagh equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Motes

17
17

12

2021 2020

AED AED
32,871,759 | 2,689,848
33,486,259 12510, 106
. (410,436)

- 168,000

15,968 75,009
(5,942,416) (8,004,563}
(23,090 (17,062
(6,366,943) 22201488
1,573,576 2,963,304
(1,284,167) 4,180,735
1,800,328 532,680
57,021,274 47,606,185
6,04, B 22,635,371
27,185,402 {22.309.970)
(9,171,560) {714,005}
81,134,962 47,217 495
(511,625) {901,341)
(1,140,041 {1,200, 000
79,483,357 45,116,154
{11,986,967) (7.340,187)
5,942 416 B004,563
(36,962,776) {92,456, 827}
(65,559,554) {22812, 608)
105,922,241 N7 223
56,394,361 31,132,245
23,050 117,062
{1,800, 328) {532,680
52,012,483 {46,673 200
(ZL500.000) 32,500,000}
(1,550,053) (3,208, ARE)
(23,074,655) (1,061,758
(TIZATIZ)  (20.500,846)
84,371,128 (28,357 501)
43,139,406 71,496 907
127,510,534 43,130 406

The accompanying notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these consolidated Anancial starements,
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Ras Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Marerials P.5.C.

Motes to the consolidated Gnancial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. General infommation

Ras Al Khaimah Co, for White Cement & Construction Materials P5.C. (the "Company™) is incorporated as a public
sharcholding company by Emiri decose number 13/81 dated 3 October 1981 issued by His Highness, The Ruler af
Ras Al Khaimah. The address of the Company’s cegistered office is P.OY, Box 1492, Bas Al Khaimah, United Arab
Emirates.

The pancipal acavites of the Company and its subsidiaies (the “Growp™) are mamfacruring and supply of whire
cement, lime products, cement products and investing, establishing and managing similar sctvities

The "“Caroup” comprises of Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Constuction Materiake F3C and ies
subsidiaries.

Ditails of Company’s subsidiaties as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Proportion of
MName of subsidiary camership Place of incorporation  Principal activitdes
Modem Block Pactory 100%% Ras Al Khaimah, UAE.  Manuofacturing of concrete blnelks,
Establishrment interlock tiles and cement produces.
Ras Al Khaimah Lime Co. 100% Ras Al Kimimah, UAE  Manufacmuring of lime products.

Moo LLC

Federal Law By Decres No, 32 of 2021 on Commezcial Companies (the “MNew Compenics Law™) was issued on
Septemnber 20, 2021 with an effective date of January 2, 2022, and will entirely replace Federal Loar Mo, 2 of 2015 on
Commezcial Companies, as amended. The Group has twelve moaths from the effective date to comply with the
provisions of the MNew Companizs Law,"

2 Seandards, interpretations and amendments to existng standards

21 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are

effective in 2021
Following relevant new amendments to exstdng standards were lssued by the LTASE, which are effective for the
annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2021, and have been adopred by the Groep:

*  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 (Amendments wo IFRS 9, TAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

This amendment did not have a significant impact on these consclidated Bnancial staternents. and therefore, the
disclosures have not been made,

O May 28, 220, the ITASH issued Covid-19-Belated Rens Conesssions - amendment o IFRS 16 Lesses The
amendment provides velief to lessees from applving IFRS 16 puidance on lease modifieation aceounting for rent
concessions arising 25 a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not
to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this
election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Cowvid-19 relared rent concession the same vy
it woukd account for the chanpe under IFRS 16, if the change were not & kease modification. The amendment was
incended to apply untl June 30, 2021, but as the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is continuing, on March 31, 2021,
the LASH extended the period of application of the practical expedient o June 30, 2022. The amendment applies
anmual repoming pedods begmning on or after Apl 1, 2021,
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construoction Matedals P.5.C.

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements {contnued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 Standards, interpretations and amendmesnes 1 exdsting standards (contnued)

22 Standarde, amendments and interpretations to existing Standards chat are not yet effective and have
not been adopred eady by the Group
Other standards, amendments and interpeetations that are not vet effective and have not been adopted eady by the
Group include:
*  References 1o the Concepiual Framework
*  Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to LAS 16)
*  Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling & Conteact {Amendiments 1o [AS 37)
*  Annual Improvements to IFRS Smadards 2018-2020 Cycle {Amendmients 1 IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16, LAS
41)
#  Classification of Liabilites a5 Current or Moo-oorrent (Amendments to LAS 1)
®  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Lisbibicies from a Single Transaction

These standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected o have a significant impact on the consolidaged
Fstancial stmtements in the pedod of initsl spplication and therefore no disclosures have been made.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant sccounong policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated fnancial smtemens are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied o cach of the years presented.

3a Sratement of complinnce

The consolidated financial starements of the Growp have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") and IFRS interpretations committee [“IFRS 1C"} applicable to Goup companies
reporting under IFRS and applicable requirernent:s of the UAE Federal Law No. {2) of 2015 a3 armendad,

32 Basis of preparation

The eansolidated financinl statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the messurerment at
Fait walse of fnancial inserements. Historical cost i3 generslly based on the fir value of the consideratnion piven in

exchange for assets,

Fair value is the price that would be recefved wo sell an asser or paid to transfer a lighiliry in 2n osderly transacton
betasen market participants at the messueement date, repardless of whether that prnes s dirscdy observable or
estimated wiing another valuation technigue.

In cagmating the fair walue of an asset oc 2 Eability, the Group akes inte sccount the characteristics of the asser or
linbiliry if markest participants would take those charsctedistics into account when pricing the asset or lahility at the
mensurernent date. Fazr valoe for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in thess consolidated fnancial seatements
is deresmined oo such basds, and medsurements that have sorme sionflarities o faic valwe but are not fir valoe, such as
net realizable value in [AS 2 or valoe in wse in 145 36,

In addirion, for financil reporting purposes, fir value measurements are caegonsed inm Level 1, 2 o 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair valee measurements are observable and the sigmificance of the inputs w the fair
value measutements in is enteety, which ane described as folkows:

*  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities thas the entisy can
access At the measurement date;

*  Lewel 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices incloded within Level 1, that are obhservable foe the asset or
ability, either direcdy or inditectly; and

*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inpuss for the assets or liabilioy.

The Group presents its consolidated seatement of financial posttion broadly in order of bguidisy, with & distncton

based oo expectations regarding fecovery or sestbernent within toehve months after the reporting date {current) and

more than rachve months after the reporting date (non-current), presented in the notes.

13



Ras Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Marenals P.5.C.

Motes o the consolidated Bnancial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continoed)
3.3 Fiasiz of consolidatdon

The conzolidsted Oosncial staterments of Ras Al Khaimab Co for White Censent & Construction Mateeials TRS.C. and
its subsicharies (the “‘Group™) incorporate the financial staremensts of the Company and the entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries),

Comtrnl is achieved when the Groom

*  has power over the investes,

* s exposed, or has rights, oo variable tevarns fromn i involvement with the investes; and

*  has the ability to use its power to affect it5 refums.

The Growp reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are chanpes
1 ane or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majoricy of the voting rights of an mvestee, it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ahilicy o dicect the relevane activities of the investee unilatecally,
The Group considers all relevant facts and cirmumistances in assessing whether or not the (rroap's voong rghes inoan
imvestee are sufficient to piee it power, including:

* the size of the Group's holding of votng oghts relative to the size and dispersion of haldings of the other vore
holders;

*  potental votng rights keld by the Groap, other vore holders or other parmies;

= nghts arising from ather contractual areanpements; and

* any additional facts and ciscumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the curtent ability m
direct the relevant activioes at the ome thar decisions need to be made, ncleding voting pattems &t previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Coasolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Greoup obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses conol of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of durdng the
year are incloded 10 the consclidated income statement and consolidated statement of other comprshensive income
from the date the Group pains contral unal the daee when the Group ceases to eontrol the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statemenss of subsidiares o bring their secounting policies
in line with the Group’s aceounting policies.

Allintragroup assets and labilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating o transactions beoween members
of the Group are climimated in full on consolidaton,

14 Foreign currencies
Functieonal and presentation cutrency

Teems included in the consolidared financial starements are measured and presented in United Arab Emirares Drirhama
CAEDY, being the currency of the pomany ¢conomic environment bn which the Group operates [the fanctional
curreney’). The eonsolidated financial statements are presented in ABD, which is the Group®s fimetdonal and
[reseniaion Corrency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Forélgm currency transactions are translated ineo the funectional coerency wsing the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions of vabuation whete items ave e-messured. Forapn exchange goins and Josses resuldng foem
the settlernent of such tmnsactions and fram the tmnslation at pear.end exchange ttes of monetary assets and
liahilities denaminated in forelm eurrencies are recognised in the consolidared smternent of comprehensive income,
except when defetred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash florar hedges.

Balances and transactions denominated in U5 dollars USD™) have been transiated into the presentadon currency ac
# fixed rate a5 the exchange rate of AED to UAD has been peppred.
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Ras Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C,

Motes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 ﬂn:l!mhzr_gﬂﬂ']

kS Summary of significant accounting policies (contined)

A5 FProperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried af cost less sccomulated depreciation and any secwsmuaiated mpeirment
RREE,

Land ie stated at cost less impairment boss, if any,

Assets under construction is stated at cost, kess any recognized impairment loss, Depreaaton of these assets, on the
same basis as other property sssers, commences when the aisets are ready foe their intended use.

Subs 1 costs are included in the asser's carrying smeount e e ized A5 & BEPALALE A5SET, 85 riate,
whmnﬂﬁﬂpmbdble that future economic benefits ugmn:hm[ with ﬂ:emﬁum will Ao to the Grm:p ﬂiﬂﬂ ut'ﬂﬂ
item can be measured relishly, All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged o the profit or loss in the
pericd in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged 30 a8 to weite off the cost of assets, other than land and capiral work in progress, over thesr
estimated useful lives, using the suaight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate sccounted for on a prospective bazis,
The gain or loas arising on the disposal or retdrement of an tem of propeety, plant and equipment 8 detetmined as
the difference beraeen the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the profit or loss.
Deprectation is provided on the simaight-line method based on the anticipated aseful lives, as follows

Class of asse Life {years)
Buildings and buiding improvements 5-20
Plant and machinary 5-30
Took, equipment, furniture and fixbire 10-15
Wehicles B-10¢

1 Financial instruments

361 Classificatdon

The Group classifies ity finsncial assets in the following mepsurement cateponies;

*  those to be messured subsequentdy st fair value {either throupgh other comprehersive income, or through
profit or Inss), and
= those o be measured at amoriased coat
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the Brancial sasets and the sontractaal terms
of the cash flows.

For assens measured at fair value, gains and logses will either be recorded in paofit or koss or other comprebensive
income. For investments in eguity instrumenis that are not held for trading, this will depend an whether the Group
has made an Erevocable election at the time of inital] recognition to aecount for the equiry investment at fair value
thtough othet comprehensive income (FVOCT), The Group reclagsifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes,

Arinoal recognition, the Group measures a financial ssset at is fair vahoe plos, in the cese of 4 Goaccial assct not st
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), mansaction costs that are divectly anributable to the acquisition of the
financial assct. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or oss.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co, for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Motes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Financial instruments {contimued)
362 Cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables

Cash and cash cquivalents and trade and other receivables (ewcluding advances o sappliess and prepayments) are
mensured at amortsed cost usng the effecove interest method, less any impairment. Interest income i5 recognised by
applying the effective interest mate, except for short- term receivables when the recogmition of interest would be
immarezial,

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rae that exactly discounts estimased funare cash flows of the Gnancial
imstrument through the expected life of the fimancial instrument or, where appropoate, a shorter penod, to the net
carrying amount of the Arancial asser or Arancial Bability, The futere cash fows are estimared mking into secount all
the coneraciual rerms of the instument.,

The cakculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or teceived between partics w the contract that are
incremental and divectly attributable tm the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums ar
discounts. For Bnancial assets at FWTPL trandsction costs are recognised in profit o koss at initiasl recopmition,

Teadi antd otheer receivables I:I":I.dudi‘.l':ls :::]v.:.nn&: L] Eupplizts u.n-:] 'Fr:]:t:lm:nf.&}. Tride J.'El‘.ti'u:b]d'.l Afe simouanis i:ll.:u:
from customers in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the nosmal
eperating eycle of the business if longer), they are classified as curvent assess. If not, they are presented s non-oument
assets. Treade receivables ase recopnised initially ar the amount of considerstion that is unconditional unles they
contain significant financing components, when they are recognised ar fair vatue. Other recevables penerally arise
from transactions outside the viual operating activities of the Group, Collateral is not nosmally obeained for other

receivables,
363  Eguity instuments ar FVTOCT

The Group subsequentdy messures all squiry investments at fale valoe. Where the Group's management has elected
L Present fair walwe gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, theze is no subseguent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
fram such investments continue to be recognised in proafit os loss a2 other income when the Group's diht to receive
payments is established.

Chanpes in the fair value of financial assets at FWTOCT are recognised in other paine/ (losees) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment losses (ind reversal of impairment Insses) on equity
investments measured at FYOCT are not seported sepamtely from other chamges o fair value
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Ras Al Khammah Co, for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 Dr.cie_rlnhtl' s | b |

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
36 Financial instruments {contimaed)
363  Equity instruments ai FVTOCT (continued)

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s dght w
receive the dividends is established, unbess the dividends clearly represent a recovery of par of the cost of the
fnvestment, Other net gains and losses are recognased in OCH and are never reclassifed to profit or loss.

Jiod Debw nseroments at smortised cost o at FVTOCT

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business mode] for managing the asser and
the cash Bow characteristics of the asset. There are thres measurement categrories inte which the Group dassifies its
deht instrements:

*  Amortised cost Assers that are held for collecton of contractual cash flows where those cash fows represent
salely payments of poncipal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets je mcheded In finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any jmin o loss adzsing on
derccopnition is recognised directly in profit or Ioss and presented in ocher gains/(losses) ogether with foteign
exchanjre paing and losses. Imparment losses are presented a5 separate ling item in the cansolidased statement of
COMPTEHensive MCome,

= FWOCI: Assers that are held for coflection of contreetal cash lows and for selling the financial sssers, where the

assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCL Movements in the
catrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recogmition of mpairment gains
or losses, interest income and forsgn exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loas.
When the financial asset is derccopgnised, the cumulative gain or Joss previcusly recopnised B other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss snd recopnised in other grins/ (osses). Interest
income from these financial assets is inchoded in finunce income wsing the effective interest rate method, Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other ggins / (Josses) and impaimment expenses are presented as
separase ling em in the consolidated statement of comprehensive moome,

= [WTPL: Assets that do not meet the cntena for amorosed cost or FYOCT are measured as FYTPL. A gain or
toss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured st FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented

net within other gains,/ (fosses) in the period in which it anses.
345 Financial asscts at FYTPL

Fimancial assers ar FYTPL ave:

{1} assets with contractusl cash fAows that are oot 3PP o and
() assets that are held in a basiness model ather than held o collect contractual cash fows or held o colisce
and gell; or
(i) assets designared ar FWVTPL using the fair valae option,
These assets are messured 2t fair valoe, with any pains/losses arising on remessorement récognised in profit or loss.
Fair value opoon: A financial instrument with @ reably measumble fair value can be destgmated as FVTPL (the fair
value option) on its initiz] recognition even if the finencial instrument was not acquited o incorred principally for the
purpose of scliing or reporchasing, The fair value option can be uscd for financial assees if it climinates or significandy
8 measurement of recognition inconsistency that would otherwize ardse from mensuring 2saets or Labilites or
recopnising related péins and losses on o different basis {an "accountng mismatch').

366 Heclassificatons

If the business model under which the Group holds Ansncial asseta changes, the financial assers affeceed are
rectassified. The classification and measurement requirsments redated to the new catepory apply prospectively feom
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model thar resudts in reclassifying the
Group’s Onancial agsess, During the current Gnancisl year and previcus sccountng period, there was no change in
the business model under which the Group holds financial assets and thersfore no reclassifications were made,

17



Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Marerials P.5.C.

Motes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Bummary of significant accounting policies {continwed)
A6 Fimancial instroments (continued)
Jo.?  Impaloment

The Group recogmiges loss allowances for expected credic losses on the following fnancsl instruments chat are not

ineasored at FVTPL:

*  Cazh and cash equivalents; and

*  Trade and ather receivabiles,

With the exception of puschssed or oginated eredit impaived (POCT) Anancial assets (which ate considered separately

hekra), BCLs are required o be measwred through a loss allowsnce at an amount equal mo:

*  12-manth ECL, i.c. loss allowance st an amount equal to 12-month BECL ac the cumment reporting dare, {referred
to as Stage 1); ar

*  full lifetime ECL, ie Hfetime ECL thar resubt from all possible defanlt events over the life of the financial
instmament;, (refemed to a5 Smge 2 and Stage 3).

* A loas allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for & financia! instrament if the credit fsk on that financial
instrument has increased significandy since inital recoprition. For all other fnancial instroments, ECLs are
mezsured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL

The Group has elected to measure boss sllewance for cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables atan
arnpudt equal bo Life dme ECLs.

Loss allowance for Bnancial mveestments measured ar gmortsed costs e deducted Erom gross careyving amenent of
assers, For debt securities st FVTOCI, the loss allowance is secognised in the OCI, instead of reducing the carrping
amount of the asset,

When determining whether the credit sk of a financial asses has increased sipnificandy since inidal recopnigon and
when estimating ECLs, the Group considers regsonable and supportable information thae is relewant and availeble
without undue costs or effort. This includes both quantdrative and qualitative informaton and analysis, based on
Ciroup's histordeal expenence and mfomnmed credit assessment and including forssrd-loaldng informetion.

For ceftain catégaries of fnandal asset, assetd that are assessed not o be impaited individually are, in addition,
asseased for impalement o a collective basis. Objective evidence of impaisment for a portfolio of receivables sould
inchede the Group's past experence of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfalio a3 well ag obgservable changes in matonal or loeal economic comdigons thar coerelae wah defaolt on

receivables.
Impairment losses related 1o cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables ave presented separarely in the
consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income

The Group considers a debt security to have low credin sk when its credit msk maong is equivalent to the globally
enderstocd definition of investment,

6B Measurement of ECL

The Groap employs stansocal models for ECL calculations, ECLs are a probabilitg-weighted estimate of credit losses.
For mepsuring BCL under TFRS 9, the key input would be the teom sttuctore of the following varinbles:

«  probability of deful (PD);
»  loss given defsult (LGD); and
*  pxposure 3t defaul (BEAD)

These parameters will be dedved from the Group’s internally developed statisteal models and other histonical data,
They will be adjusted tor peflect Fotward-looking information.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materals P.S,C.

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (condnued)
36 Financial instaments {oontinomed)

3.6.0  Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asser only when the contracnual nghts tw the cash fows from the asser expire, o

when it cransfors the fnancial esset and substantally all the rigks and rewards of ownership of the a3set to anothes

entity, If the Group neither mansfers noe retains substandally all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues m

control the ttansferred asses, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an assodased Habilicy for

amounts it may have w pay. I the Group rétaing substandally all the risks and rewnrds of ewnersbip of 3 rransferred

financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the finamcial asser and also recognises a collareralised borrowing for

the procesds received.

On detecogniton of & Bnancind asset mezsured at amortised cost or measered st FVTPL, the difference beoween the

as5eC's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration recefved and reccivable is recognised in profit or loss,

Oin derecognition of a Grandal asset that & classified as FYTOCL the cumulative gain or loss previously secumulated

in the cumulative changpes in fair value of secuntes reserve is not reclassified to profic or loss, but is reclassified 1w

retained earnings,

3600 Presentaon of alowence for ECL in the congolidated Anancial statemeants

Loss allowences for BECL are presented in the in the conselidated Bnancial seatements a5 foblows

= for financial assets measured at amontised cost (tede and other receivables (excluding advances o suppliers and
prepayments) and cash and cash equivalents): as a deduction from the gross carrying amouns of the assets;

* for debt instruments measured ar FYTOCIE: no loss allowance is recognised in the consolidaced stacement of
Bruneil position as the carrying amount is at far vahee, However, the loss ellowance is included a5 pasc of the
revaluation amount in revaluation reserve and recognized in other comprehensive inoome.

37 Firrancial labilides and equity insimunvents lssued by the Group

371  Classification as debt or equity

Dbt and equity instraments are classified as either Anencizl babilites or a5 equity in sccordance with the substance
of the contracnoal arrangement.

3.7.2 Financial liabilirice

Liahilisies within the sCnpe of IFRS 9 are elassified as financial lmbilises at FYPL ar ather liahilites, as q:.Flmp]:iat.:.
A financial lisbilicy is derecognised when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or cancelled of expires.

Finandal liabilives inchuded in trade and other payables are recognised initially ar fair value and subsequentdy at
amortised cost. The fae vabhse of 3 noo-interest bearng Bability Is i discounted repayment amount, [f the due date
of the liability is less chan one year, discounting is amieted,

373  Equity instruments
An equity mstrument is any contruct that evidences a tesidual interest in the assets of an enticy after deducting all of
irs lizhilines, Equity instruments issoed by the Group ase recovded ac the procesds received, net of direct ssue coits.

174 Demcognidon of inancial Habilides

The Group dereeogndica Anancial Habilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire.

375  Dividend distribation

Divdend distnbugian to the Growp's sharchalders i recognised s a lisbility in the Group's consolideted financial
statements in the pericd in which the dividend is spproved by che Group's sharehalders.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Matetdals P.5.C,

MNotes 1o the congolidated financial statements (continued)
For the yvear ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {contnued)

3.8 Inventories

Inventorics are measused st the lower of cost and net realisable valoe. [Nét realisable walue is the esumared sclling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated coss necessary to
minke the sale.

Spare parts and ather inventonies cost comprises of their purchase price.

Rawe materials cost comprises of purchase cost and ather costs incarred in bringing the mw matesial to their present
location and condition. Prodiecrs in process enst comprses rmw materdals, wages and industrdal eosts that consmibute
in transforming rrer materials into produces in process. Finished goods cost comprises rawr materials, wapes and
industrial eosts that eontribute In transforming rw materials it finished products. Cost i3 caloulsted using the
welphted average mechod.

When inventores are sold, the carrying amounts of those invenrorics are secognised as an expense in the perdod in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write down of inventoties 1o net realisable value and all
lowses of inventorics are secognised as an expense in the period the write down ar loss oceors. The amoun: of any
reversal of any write down of inventoties, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are tecognised as reduction
in the amount of inventaries récojmised as an sxpense in the petiod in which the reversal occars.

39 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when present oblignnons as a result of a past event will probably lead 1o an outflow of

economic resources from the Group and smeounts can be estmated reliably. Timing or amount of the cucflowr may
still be uncertain, A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulred
Froamn past events,

Provisions are measared gt the estmared expendinure requited m settle the present oblipaton, based on the most
relinble evidence avadlable at the reporting date, including the dsks and uneerinties associated with the present
ohligation. Where thers are 8 number of similar obligatons, the Bkelihood dhat an outflow will be required in
settlement i determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present
walues, whens the time valoe of money is marerial,

All provistons sre reviewed at each repoming date and adjusted vo reflect the current best catimate. In those cases
where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered improbable or
remote, mo liahility is recognised,

310 ITmpaioment of non-finencial assets

The Group assesses at each reporing date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impaizment vesting for an zsset is required, the Group estimares the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset™s o cash-penemtng wnits (CGUY Fair
value kess costs o sell and ies value in use. Where the carrving amount of 2n asset or QG exceeds its tecoverable
amount, the ssser 15 considered impaired and is written down w0 it recoweeable amount.

In assessing value in wse, the estimated fanee cash fows are discounted to their present value vsing discount mates
that reflect current market assessments of the ome value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 1n derermining
Fafr vabue less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model ks wsed. These caleulations are corroborated by vaheation
multiples or other available fait vabue indicators.

Impairment losses are recogrised n the statement of profi or koss,

For assets excloding poodwdll, an asessment s made at each reporting date as to whether there i any indication that
previously recognized inparment kosses may no longes exist or may have decreased. 1F such indicaiion exists, the
Gronp makes an estimate of the asset’s or OGU's secoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estmates vsed to determine the asset's recoverable smount since the
Last impairment loss was tecognized, IF that is the case, che careying arnolnt of the asset i increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amonoe cannct exceed the carrying amount thar woubd have been determined, net of
amottisation, bad no impamment loss been recomised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recopnised in the
statement of profic or lose.




Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
EEI_I! the year ended 31 Decernber 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

311 Cash and cash equivalems

Cash and cash equivalents are hems, which are readily convertihle o known amounts of cash and which are subjece
to an insignificant risk of chanpes in value. Cagh and cash equivalents in the staternent of financisl position comprise

casl on hand and current sccounts with bank and short-term deposics with coginal matartes of doee moaths or
less, bess bank overdrafts

312 Share capital and reserves

Share capital represents the aominal value of shares that have been msued, Ordinary shares are casified as equity.
Statuzory reserve i requised o be created by UAE Pederal Law No. [Z) of 2015 & amendid a8 deserbed in note 10,
Rerained earnings include a1l current and prios petiod retined profies.

313 Employee benefies

3.131 Defined contribution plan

LULAE. nadonal employers of the Group are members of the Government-managed retirement pension and social
security benefit scheme pursuant to UAE. labour law no. 7 of 199 The Group is required o commbute 12.5% of
the “contribution calculation salary™ of payroll costs m the retirement benefit scheme to fund the bonefies, The
employees 2nd the Government contelbute 5% and 2 5% of the “contdbution calculaton salary™ respectively, to the
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the setirement pension and social securty scheme is to
ke the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or loss,

3132 Annual leave and leave passage

A acesual i made for the estimated Babslity for emplovess” entitlement to annual leave and leave passage a3 a regult
of services rendesed by eligible emplovees up to the end of the year.

3133 Provision for emplovees® end of sendee indemmdry

Prevision i¢ also made for the full amount of end of serdce mdemnity due o non-UAE. nations employees in
accordance with the ULAE. Labour Law and is based on cusrent remunerxtion and their period of service at the end

of the teponting period.
The seerual relating to annusd leave and leave passage is disclosed 05 a coment liability, while the provision relating to
end of service indemnity is disclosed as a non-current lability,

314  Bonowings

Bortouings are recopnised indttally st falr value, net of transacdon costs incarred. Boowings are subsequently stated
ar amoatised cost; any difference between proceeds (net of mransaction eosts) and the redemption value is recognised
tn the profit or loss owver the period of the borrowings wsing the effective interest method,

Bormowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amoant of a financial lizhilicy that
has been extinguished of transferred to another party and the comsideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or |inhilities assumed, is recognieed in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Where the rerms of a financial Lability are renepotated and the entity issues equity instrements 1o 4 creditos oo
-E:I'J':'Ig;li'r.'.il all o part of the '|.u]:|.|1|_"T -[debt fear equjt'.,.' uwu.p}, a Eu.m or loax i n:l:n_gﬂtad i F'ru-ﬂ.t ar boss, which i3
measured as the difference berween the carrping smount of the financia] labiliy and the fair vahe of the equity
instraments issued. Borrowings are classified as corrent liabalities unless the Group has an unconditonal right to defer
settlement of the lnhilioy for at least 12 months after the seportingr period.

Borrowing costs incurred fod the constroction of any cqualifying ssset are capitalised dudegr the pedod of dme that is
required to complete and prepare the asses for its intended wse. Other bormowing costs are expensed as incurred within
profit ar loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement 8 Construction Materials P.5.C.

Motes to the consolidated Anancial smrements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {comtinwed)

315  Leases

The derermination of whether an armngement is, o conoins a lease is based on the substanor of the arangement at
inception date of whether the fulfilment of the armngement is dependent on the use of a specific assar or asses or

the arrangement conveys a tight to use the asset.
Group as 2 lessee

Where applicable, leases are recognised se a rghr-of-use asser and 2 corsesponding Bability ar the date st which the
bensed asset is available for wse by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the lishilicy and finance cost.
The fEnance cost i@ charged to profit or loge over the lese period so a5 1o produce 4 constant penodic mte of interest
on the remaining balance of the lizbiliy for each perind. The righr-of-use asser is depreciared over the shorter of the
asset’s veeful life pnd the lease ferm on a straight-line basis,

Assers and liabilities arising from 2 lease are initially messured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities inclode the net
present vatue of the following lease payments

¢  fized payments (incloding in-substanee fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

warimble Jease payrment that are based on an index or o are

amounts expected 1o be paynble by the lessee under resddual value puarintees

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lesses & reasonably cemsin o exercise that option, and
payments of penalties for terminating the kease, if the leaze term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lense poyments are discounted wsing the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, o the
Crroup’s incremental botnowing rate.

Righr-of-use assers are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial mesurement of lease ahiliey

any lense payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease tncentives meceived
any inital divecr eosts, and

PEELOERLOH OOBLS.

116 Hevenue
The ﬂmup Eters into tansections involving supply of poads.

To devermiine whether b0 revognise tevenue, the Group follows a 5-atep process:
- |dentifying the conmract with a customer

1

2 Identifying the performance obligations

5 Dhetcemining the transaction poce

&, Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

3 Recopmising revenoe when/ss performance ohligaton(s) are saosfed,

Ln all eases, the total transection prdce for o contract s allocated amongst the vatious performance cblipasons based
on their relative stand-alone sefling prices. The ransaction price for a coneeact excludes any amounts collected on
behalf of third parties g, vabor sdded rax.

Revenue & recognised at 2 point in ame for sale of goods when the Group sanshes performance obligations by
tranzferting the promised poods or services g s cestomers,

Sale of goods

Gk of poods comprises the sale of white cement, lime products and blocks. Revenoe & secogmised at point in dme
when the Crroup has ransfecred 1o the buyer the contol of ownership of the goods supplied. Control are geneally
considered to be ransferred to the buyer when the customer has taken undispated delvery of the goods.

317 Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s ripht m recesve payment has been
extablished.




Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C,

Motes to the congolidated financial statements (continued)
For the yeat ended 31 December 2021

4. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
317 Dvidend and ntecest income (continued)

Interest ineome is accrmed on 2 time basic, by reference to the principal ourstanding and ar the effective interest rate
applbcable, which is the rate that exsctly discoants estimated future cash receipts through the sxpected life of the
finamclal aset to the ssset's net carmying amount.

318 Value sdded tax

Effective 1 Janaary 2018, the Grouwp recognises value added tax {"VAT"™) in line with the noles and regulations set out
in the VAT law ser out by the Federal Tax Authority of the Government of United Arab Emiestes (“UAE"), The kear
reguires that all sales, mq:phr.a and consumptions within UAE efigible © 3% VAT, The sales, supplies and
consumptons oatside the LAE or to desipnated areas, those are subiject to zero percene VAT,

Revenue, expenses, assets and babiities are recopnised net of the amount of VAT, except where the VAT incurred
on 4 purchase of assets of services is ot secoverable from the tax authaorities, in which case the VAT is recognised ns
part of the cost of acquisition of assets or as pant of the expensed item as applicable.

319 Eaming per share

Basic earnings per share is codeolaced by dividing:

*  The profit attributable to sharchodders of the Group, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shmres.

= by the wdghted average number of ondinary shares outstanding during the financial year, sdjusted for bonus
ebements in ordinary shares isswed during the year and excluding treasury shares if any.

320 Sepment reporting
For management purposss, the Group is organised into business wnits based on thetr products 2nd senvices and has
repartable sepments as follkws

a) Manufacraring of white cement, lime products, cement prochaces.
by Investments in marketable equity seoarites,

There are no sales between segments during the year.

Muanapement monitors the operuting results of it business units for the purpose of making decisions about resouree
alloeation and pesformance assessment. Segrment petformance is evaluated based on ner profit or loss and is measored
consistently wath operating profic or koss in the consolidated financial sttements,

3M  Crifical sccounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

When preparing the finoncial stitements management undertakes 8 number of judgments, estimates and assurmpicns abooe
recopmition and measwrement of assets, Babilites, income and expenses. The actual tesules maoy differ from the judgments,
estirnares and assumptions made by management, and will seldom equal the esdmaced resulrs.

Information about sigmificant judgements, sitimates and sssumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition
and measaremnent of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below,

{a) Impairment of finencial asseis

Measuremnent of Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") 5 o dgnificant estimate that invebees determination methodology,
models and data inpuets. The following components have a major impact on credit loss allowance: definiton of defanlt,
SICR, probability of defaulr (“PD™), exposure at defaule ("EAD™), and loss given defaule (“LGD"), s well as models
of macro-gconomic scenaros. The Group repularly reviews and validates the models and inputs o the medels to
reduce any differences between expected credic Joss estimares and actual credit Joss expenience.

The expected lozs rates are based on aging of recefvables. The historical loss eates are adjusted for to reflecs forward-
looking information on macsoeconomic factors affecting the ability of the costomers m settle the recervables.




Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Consttuction Materals P.5.C.

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {contnued)
321 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continned)

(b} Allowance for slow moving and obgolete inventories

Inventories ane stated at the lower of cost or net realizable valoe. Adjustments o reduee the cost of Inventory o s
net realizable walue, if sequiced, are made at the product level for estimared excess, obsolescence or mpaired balances.
Factors influencing these adjustments include changes in demand, rechnological chanpes, physical deteriomtion and
qualizy isswes. Based on the factors, management haes identified inventory itermns as slow and non-moving to caloulare
the allowance for slow moving and obsolete invenmories. Revisions m the allowance for slowr moving inventosics would
be required if the ontcome of these indicative factors differ from the estmates,

() Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the residual valoes and estimated wseful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
annual reporting perod in sccordance with TAS 16 Management determined that carrent year expectatons do not
differ from previouws esdmates based on is review.

{cl) Classification of investments

Management designates at the ime of acquislioon of securities whether these shoold be classified as 5t FVTOCT or
FVTPL. In jodging whether investments in sacusites ase 08 at FVTOCT or FVTPL, managernent has considered the
detailed critetia for determination of such classification as ser our IFRS 9 Financial Instroments. Management i
satisfied that its investments in securities are appropriately clussified.
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Ras Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Constmction Marerials P.5.C.

Motes w the consalidated Anancial staterments (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

5 Investments in securities

(i} Investmients carried at fair valor through other comprehensive income (FVITOHCT)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprebenaive income (PYOCT) comprise:

Equity securities which ate not held for trading, and which the group has irrevocably clected at initdal eecogniton o
recogniss in this category. These are stramgic investments, and the group considers this classification to be more

televant.
2021 2
AED AED
Chucted = at fair value
Inthe UAE 112,399 840 120018, 644
In other GUC countries 61,574,405 B2,641,010
173,974,245 211,659,656
Morvemient in mmvestmieoss carried ar FVTOCT were as follows:
2021 2020
AED AED
Fair value a the begnning of the year 211,659,656 165,639,077
Purchased dhuring the year 36,962,776 02,458,827
Diepesad during the year (93,067,577) (38,679,740
Increase f{decrease) in fair vabue of investments at FVTOCT 18,413,3%) (7,7 5B, 508)
173,974,245 211,550,656
{ii} Investments carried ar fair valoe theough prodit or loss (FVTPL)
The group casgifies the following Annncial sssets at fair vadee theough profit o loas (FYFL):
. pguiry investments that are held for weading, and
" equity investments for which the entity has not elected o recognise fair value gaing and losses throwgh OCL
201 2020
AED AED
Crusoted = at fale walue:
I the LLAE. &T,515,.804 23,179,065
In other GCC countries 14,435,471 1,385,907
41,951,275 25,164 972
Movement in investmaents carned st FVTPL were as follows
21 220
AED AED
Fair value at the beginmng of the pear 25,164,972 30,885 832
Purchased during the year 5,559,554 22,812,608
Disposal during the year (50,027,418) {33,352,733)
Untealized pain/(loss) on investments earried ar FVTPL 1,254,167 (4,180,735
41,951,275 25,164,572




Fas Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.8.C.

Motes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

5 Invesiments in securities (continmed)

Dugng the yesr, the Groop purchased and bwvested in shasss amounting w AED 102522330 (2020 AED
115,271,435}

Tevestment bn securities with a fair valos of AED 104,287,301 (20200; AED 141,705,946} are pledged to the bank againse
credic facilites granted v the Group {Noee 123,

6. Inventories

M2 200

AED AED

Finished goods 14,886,776 18,004,731
Raw marerials 5,101,725 6,504,083
Work in progres 51,135,827 57,905,668
Bays, fud, and hubricant 10,479,446 7,305,578
B1,603,774 Sl 110,560

Spare pars HL986,022 28,576,490
Alloweanice for show-movingwite down invenmony {17,886,397) (17,386,357}
Goods in transit 1,675 3,887
04,705,074 100,504,940

The amount of matedald consumed incduoded in cost of sales dusng the year was AED 66,944 205
(2020 AED 57 269097,

7. Trade and othor receivables

20 2030
AED AED
Financial asacts

Trade recervables 43,543,157 G AB00LT
Lese provison for expeeted credit losses (2,M8,43) {2.048.434)
d0,894, 723 63,431 583
Cither receivables 1605 968 105,98
42,500,691 63,537 551

Mon-financlal assets
Aubvance to sueppliers 1,216,224 7,163,308
Prepaid expenses 1,547,055 1,727 912
2,763,279 £.911 821
45,263,970 TL 449372

Before accepting new customers, the Group generslly obiaing bank goarearees o lerter of exedit from the potenoal
eustomers. OF thve tosal trade and other receivables balanee st the end of the year, AED 1879 million repeesenting
d2.00F% of the mde receivables (020 AED 32 million representing 48.20% of the trade receivahles) sre due from the
Crroup's 3 customers (ZF20 5 muor costomes).

The Group measures the loss allownnce for made receivables at an amount equal to life-dme BCL. The expecred credic
losses on rade receivables are estimaved using a provision marrix by reference o past default experiznce of the deboe

and an amalysis of the debior's cument financial positon, adpested for facioes thar ere specific e the deboors, general
economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an sssessment of both the current as well as the

forecast dircction of conditons ar the reporting dare

28



Ras Al Ehaimah Co. for White Cement & Construciion Materials PS.C.

Motes o the consolidated Anancial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

7. Trade and other receivables (continued)

All of the Group’s wade and other seceivables in the comparative pedods have been roviewed for indieaton of
impatnment. The impaired trade recervables are mostly due from cusmmers in the business-to-business market thar ase
expesiencing hrancial dEffioulnes.

The Groap woives off 4 wade receivable when thete is information mdicating that the debsoz B8 in severe financisl
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debror has been placed under Bguidaton or has
entenad mito bankmuptey peoceedmgs sic

The followig table shows the movement in loss allowance that has been recognised for rade receivables,

2021 2020

AED AED

At 1 [anuary 2,048,434 2783434

Provision during the year - 165,000

At 31 December 2,948,434 2948434
Anabysis of trade receivables a5 set out below:

2021 2020

AED AEDY

Secured agains: unconditional bank guarantees 11,593,860 12842714

Secured ayines Jester of credit 15,283,996 33,304,952

Open credit 16,559,301 20,232 351

43,843,157 66,380,017

The average credit perind on sales of poods is 62 days. Mo interest is charged on outseanding recesvables.

B. Cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
AED AED
Cash an hand 175,853 68,376
Pordfalio acooun: 35,316,344 4879327
39,992,107 4,947,703
Bank balanees;
Cuatrent accounts 11,188,269 2.960,745
Call depoaits 12,997 482 4,156,208
Fixed deposir 63,331,886 31,074,750
87,518,337 38,101,703
Cash and rash equivalents 127,510,534 43,130,400
By peographical ares;
Tn the UAE. 114,078,013 36,331,223
In other GOU countres 13,432,521 3,508,183
127,510,534 43,139 400

Bank balances are held with local and intermational branch of reputable banks. Mamageroent views these banks as
having a sound pecformance history and satisfacvory coedit ratings (Nowe 24.7),

The average interest rapes for the bank deposits duzing: the year weee 0.1% [2020: 0.1% per annsm,
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Motes w the consolidated Anancial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

9. Share capltal

021 2020
AED AED
Tsswed and fally paid 500,157,000 ordinary shares of ABID 1 each 500,157,000 500,157 000

10, Rescrves
Stamitory reaerve

In accordance with the ULAE. Federnl Commercial Companies Low Mumbes (2} of 2005 23 amended and the
Company's Amicles of Associadon, 10% of the profit for each year is tansferred to the stamtory reserve. The
transfer to stamitery reserve may be suspended when it reaches 50% of the paid-up shane capital. During dhe year
ended December 31, 2021, the Group has transferred AED 3,287,176 to smmatory reserve (2020 AED 1,268,985,

This reserve is not aviilable for dispdbugon except in clrcumstances sdpuliced by the low. The Group adjuses the
stztutory reserve to mansfer 10% of oot profic

Voluntary reserve

Appropiations to the volunfary reserre sccount represents approprstion of 10% of the profic for cach yeas, The
transfer 1o voluntary reserve may be suspended by the ordinary general nssembly at the recommendaton of the
Board of Directors or when it reaches 20% of the Group’s paid-up share capital. As at Diecember 31, 2018, vohertary
resceve balance reached 20% of the Group's paid-up share capiml. Ar the recommendanon of the Boasd of
Directors, an ordinary genesal assembly meeting was held on 20 April 2019 and it ams deeided o suspend the
transfer to volunmry reserve as the ol of the reserve has reached 200 of the Group’s paid-up share capital. 5o,
no farthes wansfer will be made to the reserve and it hes been transférred to retained eamings dudng 2020 according
to & resohition passed in general assembly meeting,

Statutary reserve Voluntary resenve Tatal

AED AED AED

As at Jamary 1, 2020 111,437,714 100,031 400 211,465,114

Transferred 1o stamarory reseeve 1,268,985 - 1,266,955

Transferred 1o remined carnings . (100051, 400, CO0051 #00

As ar December 31, 2020 112, TG 699 = 112,706,650
Transferred oo stamabory pesctve 3,287,176 - 3267176
As ar Decemyber 31, 2021 115,993,375 - 115,993,675

11. Employees” end of service benefits

Employees” end of service benefis indude gratoicy and movement is as follows:

2021 2020

AED AED

At January 1, 8,856,815 0,292 503
Charge For the pear 015 968 HT5 000
Reversals dunng the vear > (410,436)
Payments during the year (511,625} (901,341}
Balance 3t December 31, 0,261,158 8A568L5
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Rag Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materals P.5.C.

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements (condnued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

12, Bank bormwings

Bialance ar Janoary 1
Repayment during the pear
Balance as ar December 31

Mon=current
Current

Finance costs on bank borrowings

2021 2020

AED AED
95,511,745 118,011,745
(22,500,000} (22,500,000)
73,011,745 95,511,745
50,511,745 73,261,708
22,500,000 22 240 047
73,011,745 95,511,745
{1,573,576) (2,963, %04)

In additton, o the above the Group has entered into 2 eredit facility apreement of bank overdraf, shor term loan

and letter of credit samounting ro AED Nil (2020: AED 73 million).

Property, plant and equipment items having a carrying amount of AED 110 million (2020: AED 110 milkan) are
pledged 10 a bank against above facilitics granted by the bank undl the end of facilities teom or full serdemment of

the ahove credit Faciltes (note 4). In addition, bank

ings are secured by o pledpe over invesoments in

secutities with a fair value of AED 104,261,301 (2020: AED 141,705,946). Bank borrowings catried an interest rate

in the range of 1.88% to 2% per annum 2020: 2% to 3.7% per annem),

The Group has complied with the foancal covenants of its borrowing facilities during the vear 2021 and 2020, see

note 23 for details,
13. Trade and other payables

Financial Habilives
Trade payahles
Apcruals and other Pu.].'nhh-_'l:

Mon-financial Habdlicy
Adwvances from customers

4. Revenue

Bevenue recognised ot polnt in tere:

Local sales
Export pales

2021 2020

AED AED
29,065,785 32,764,084
(36,218,045 71,729,733
95,273,830 104,493,817
4,494,978 2 449 837
99,768, 808 106,983 654
2021 2020

AED AED
102,361,891 o9 163,124
137,447,155 122,029,536
235,809 (Ma 221 192,660
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C,

MNotes wo the consolidated financial statemenis {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

15, Staff costs
20X 2020
. AED AEDy
Salaries and wages 20,376,179 20207 753
Oither benefits 2,617,B11 2950,203
End of service benefis 915,968 E75. 999
32,909,958 31,033,955
Staff oot 35 allocated as folkrars;
Production cost ), GER B 19.370,942
Selling, general and admdnistrative expenses 12,221,105 11,663,013
32, M0, 958 31.0335?5‘5
16, Selling, general and admdnisteative expenses
2021 2020
AED AELY
Payroli and refated expenses 12,221 105 11,663,013
Lyl and professional fees 4,782,767 5,007 862
Marketing 3,090,440 2912793
Office expensas 1,106,559 1,305,057
Depreciation of property, piant and equipment (note 4) 451,712 464,617
Bank charges TH6,104 554,893
Oither expenses 1,628,954 1,401,265
24,067,641 23,300 50
17, Investment income
2021 2020
AED AED
Dividende income 5,982 416 8,004,563
Unreslised gain,/{loss) on revaluation of investments carded ar
FYTTL 1,254,167 (4, 160,735)
Reslised gain/{Joss) on sale of investments carried at FVTPL 0,366,943 (2,220, 458)
Interest income 23,050 17062
Investment management fees {1,804, 328) (532 6E0Y
11,626,288 1,187,722
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Ras Al Khaimah Co, for White Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C.

Motes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

18, Other incomie

2021 2020

AED AED

Gain on reversal of kabilioy ) 9,014,518 A0 435
Chhers 565,847 102 545
9,580,465 513,251

*Gain of AED 000,000 was due 1o the reversal of provision In repards to 2 favorable legal case outcome thar
accerred durng the year,

19. Basic camings per share

2021 2020
Profit for the year (AED) 2871759 12,589 548
Mumber of shares i, 157,000 500,157 000
Basic earnings per share (AED) 0.07 03

Buaske eamings pet share has been calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the number of shares outstanding
at the end of the reporting yeas.

There were no potentially dilutive shares ax 2t 31 Desenber 2031 and 220,

20, Related party

The Group in the normal course of business camies on wansactons with other enterpeises that fall within the
definition of related pardes. Parties are consddered o be melated to the Group if the party has the ability, ditectly ar
indirecdy, to excecise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,
or where the Group and the party are subject 10 common control or significant influence. Transactions with relaced
partics are measured at amount agreed to by bath the parties

Druring the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no balances or transactions with related parties ather than
the below disclosed mansactions:

201 2000
AED AFED
Board of Direcross’ remuneracion 1, 1440, D0d) 1,200,000
Shart term benefis 424,996 471 096

21. Dividernds

At the annual general mesting held on 12 April 2021, the Sharcholders approved eash dividends of 5% from share
capital amounting o AED 25.01 million to the shareholders in respect for the year ended 31 December 2020,
They have also appeoved the Board of Directors’ remuneration for an smount of AED 1,14 million.

At the annual general meeting held on 21 June 2020, the Shareholders did not approve any cash dividend to the
shareholders in respoct of the year ended 31 December 2019 and it has approved the Board of Directoss’
remureration by an amount of AED 1.2 million,
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C.

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

I, Commitments and contingent Habilities

2021 2020
AED ABDy
Letters of puamntee 2,688,299 B, 7

23, Capital tisk management

The Group manages its capital 0 ensute that the Group entities will be able to continue 18 a going concem while
maximising the retum to stakehalders through the optimisstion of the debis and equity balance.

The capital strueture of the Group consists of bank borrowings, bank balances and cash and equiry, compeising
issued capital, ressrves and retained earnings.

The Group reviews the capital structare on o gemd-annual basis. Ax part of this review, the Group considers the
cost of capital and the osks associared with capiral The Growp does noc have a formalised optimal target capieal
strusture of kEget mbos in connection with fts capital osk management objscove,

As ar 31 December, the geadng ratios of the Group was as follows:

2021 2020

AED AED
Bank borrowings Motz 12 73,011,745 05511,745
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Nate: )  (127,510,534) {43,139 406)
Met debt (54,498,780 52372330
Total equity 793,776,103 755,778,140
Tiwtal 739,277,314 B0, 150,479
Crearing ratio 7.4% 0.5%

Under e terrns of the bomowing Facilities, the Group is required to comply with the following financeal covenanes:
*=  The mngible net worth must not, at any tme, be less than AED 650 million,

*  The rotal debr oo ner wonh rato (geating} must not, in respect of any celevant period, be moee than 1:1; and
*  Current sano must not, in respect of any relevant perod, be kess than 1:1,

The Grroup has complied with these covenants throughout the reponting year.
24. Financial instraments

The Graup is potentally exposed o a range of financial risks through its financial assers and financial Babilities. In
particular, the key finuncial tisk i thar in the long-term s invessment proceeds aee not sufficlent 1o fund the

oshligations ansing from its investment contracts. The most important components of this finanesal sk are cash
fevor and fair value Interest mate dek, equity poce sk, forelpn currency msk, credic risk and Bquidin: sl

These risks arise fioen open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed w
general and speciiic market rmovements. The faks that the Group peimasily faces due to the nature of its investmients

and financial [fabilities are interest rate risk and equity price risk.
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Ras Al Ehaimah Ca. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C.

Notes o the consolidated financial starements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

24, Financial instruments (contined)
241  Sipgnificant accounting policics

Details of the significant sceounting policies and methods sdopeed, ineluding the critersa for recognition, the basis
of measarernent and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each chiss of financial
asset, financial linhikiey and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial sarements,

242 Categores of financial instruments

20 2020
AED AED
Financial assets
At amostsed cos
Teade and other receivables (Mote T) 42 500,651 (3,537 551
Cash and cash equivalents (Note ) 127,510,534 43,139,406
170,011,225 106,676,957
At fair value
Investmente cartbed at fair value thraugh other eomprehensive
income (FYTOCT (Mot 5 173,974,245 211,659,656
Irvestments carried at faie value through tor loss 1
MNore 5 BRI R 41,951,275 25,164,972
215 925, 83 236,824,624
385,936,745 343,501,585
Financial liabilities
A amontizsed cost
Bank borrowing (Mote 12) 73,011,745 05,511,745
Trade and other payables (More 13) 05,273,830 10,495 8517
168,285,875 20H) 005,562

24.3  Market risle

The Group's activites expose it pnmarily so the financial tisks of changes in foreign currency exchange mates, cash

flow and fair walue interest rates and equity price risks.
Market risk exposures are imveasured using sensitivicy analysis.

244  Foreign currency fisk management

Majorcy of the Group’s transactons are depominated in AED or in currencies AED 15 pegped to. However, the
Croup undertakes certain transpetons denominated in other Freip cirrencies. Hene, exposures to exchange rate

flucteations arise,

Liahilities
2021 2020 2021 200
AED AED AED AED
Kurwait Dinar . 79,363,795 B, 704,033
Euro 790,793 104,610 X024 27348
JPY = 11,854 2
QAR . - 2,229,677 1,B64,663
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MNotes to the consolidated Gnancial statements (contnued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

24, Financial instraments (continued)

4.5  Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group 15 maznly exposed to Kuwaiti Dimar, Saudi Riyal and Qatard Rival Based on the sensitivity analysis w a
10%% Increase or decrease in the AED 'HE-’I:IL'IEE Fwaiti Dinar, Saudi Rival and Qatari Rival the Groop's profir for
the yeas ended 31 December 2021 and equity as of and 31 December 2021 would have increased or decteased by
spproximately AED 808 million (2020 AED B65 millisn). The Group has no matedal exposure apainst Buro aad
Japanese Yen, 10% is the sensstivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally 1o key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange raes,
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
transhation at the pedod end for 8 10% change in forsign curmency cates.

2466 Cash flow and fair value interest rate sk management

The Group's exposure te interest eate rish is imited to fixed deposits and call deposits with banks ar foating intesest
mates snd bormroaings from banks ar Boatng raves of interest linked wo EIBOR. Ar 31 Decenber 2021, hank fixed
and call deposits carnied an interest mee in the range of 0.10% (2020: 0.10% per anmum) and bank loans carted an
ineerest rate in the range of 1.8B% to % per ennum (20EE 2% o 3.7% per anmam),

If interest rares had been 50 basis points higher/Jower throughout the year and all other vanisbles were held
canstant, the Grroup’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and equity as at 31 December 2021 would have
decreased fincreased by approximatety AED 0,30 milion (2020: decrease/increase by AED 0,54 million].

24.7  Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that 2 coonver pasy will defandt on'its contracoual obligations resulting in financial koss
ta the Group, The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with credibworthy coenterparties as a menns of
mitigating the fisk of financial loss from defaults. The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of mmssctions concluded is spresd amongst approved
eounterparties. Credit exposure 15 controlled by counterparty limits thatr are seviewed and appresved by the
management annuslly.

Trade recesvables comsist of a number of customen. On-going credit evaluation is performed on the financial
condition of trade receivables, Further derails of credir risks an teade and other seceivables and short-term deposits
ase disclosed n Mates T and B

The credit risk associated with the Goop's made recenmbles (note T) is considersd limited as the Group holds
receivables amounting to AED 27.28 million (2020 AED 441 million) fully covered by unconditional bank
maamntecs and kewers of credit to seoure the collectability of these trade receivables.

Crther financeal assets represent investments carred at fair valoe through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)
and investrments earried at fair value throogh profit and loss (FVTPL), where all their investments are listed equity
secudties as at 31 December 2021 (Note 24.10).

Credit risk with reapect 10 eoneentration of trade receivables by peographical area is as folows;

221 20

AETY AED

Unired Asabs Ermisares 22,220.033 24,938,430

Other Gulf Cooperation Council countries i, 1100, 525 7,067,014
Oither countries 15,503,599 34374573

ﬂpﬂﬂﬂﬂ_ HJM.ET?

For banks and financial institatons, bank rmongs are reviewed on an annual basis. Management does not expect
wny lnases Bom aon-performance by these eounterpartes.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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. Financial instruments {continued)

4.7 Credir risk manigement (contnued)

The table below shows the balance and Moody's credic rnng of the bank with which balances are mainained by
the Ciroup ar the repotting date.

Rating 2021 2000

AED AED

Basik 1 Baal 79,334,767 36,623,830
Bank 2 Al 3,957,711 555,521
Bank 3 A3 3,999,326 43,040
Bank 4 Aad 226,533 574,253

§7,518,337 38,191,703

The mhle shove excludes portfolio accounts amoundng to AED 34,816,344 (2020: AED 4,878327) and cash on
hand arnounting w ABED 175,853 2020 AED 682376} which ane unrated,

The castying amounts of the financial assets recorded in the financial starements, which is net of impairment
losses, represents the Group's maxirmem exposure to credit risks.

248  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk also referred to a8 funding risk is the fisk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising Funds
to mett commitments assocated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may resalt from an inability o sell a
finamcial ageer quil:k]!," at cloze to ity fair value. The G-m-ul:': J.nq1.'ﬂ|:'ﬁ'h_l.' rizk is the n.'l'n.ihl:r'rJi.'l.].' of funds o cover fupise
commitments, The Group manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of funise commitments.

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in sssessing and managing liquidicy dsk, in particular
its ensh resources and erade recetvables,

The Group's non-dervative financial liabilites have contracrual matrites (nclading mterest payments where
applicable) as summarised below:

Less than Berween

1year 1-5 years Total
AED AED AED

2021
Borrowings 22934, 765 B1487,777 74,422 542
Trade and other payables (note 13) 95,273,830 - 98,273,830
118,208,595 51,487,777 169,696,372

20030
Borrowwing, 22679 880 T4,67T 427 97,357,307
Trade and other payables (note 13) 104 403 817 - 104,493 817
12 173,697 74,677 427 21 _E51 124

249  Equity price duk

The proup’s exposure to equity securities price rsk ardses from invesmments held by the Group and dassified in the
consolidated staterment of financial positon either 25 & fir value through other comprehensive income (FVYOCT)
{note 5) or at fair valae through profit or loss (FYPL) {(note 5). To manage its price nsk ardsing from investments
i equity secusities, the Group diversifies s portfolio,

Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the bmits set by the group. The majoriry of the group’s
equity investments are publicly rraded.
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Bas Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Matedals P.5.C.

MNotes wo the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

24, Financlal instruments {continued)

249  Equity price risk (continued)
Sensithvity analysis

Ar the reporting date if the equity poices are 205 higher/’ lower as per the assumptions mentianed below and all
the other variables were held constant, the Group's consolidated statements of income and comprebensive income
would have incressed,/ decrexsed by AED 8.34 million and by AED 34.80 million, respectively (2020 AED 5 million
and by AED 42.3 million, respectvely).

Method and assumprions for sensigvity analysis
b The sensitvity analysis has been done based on the axposure 1o equity price risk & acthe reporing date.

. As at the reporting date if equity prices sre 20% higher/lower on the market value uniformiy for all
equities while zll other variables are held constant, the impact an prafit or loss &nd other comprehensive
income has been shown abowe.

L A 2% change in equaty prices has been used to give o cealidtic assessment as a plausible event

2410 Fair value measurements

Fair vabue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Eshility in an orderly transacton
between market patticipants at the measurement dage. As soch, differences can arise berween book values and the
fair value estimates. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern
withour any intenton or requizement o matenally curtal the scale of its operation or to undertake 3 trapsaction on
adverse terma.

{a) Padr vabee of fpancial instrements carried at gmoctised coat

Mussapernent considers that the carrying amounts of Bnancial assen and fnancial Habilities recognised at
amaortised cost in the financial starements approximare their fair values.

{b)  Pair value of the Group's financial assers thar are measured ar fair value on recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assers are measured at fair vabo: ar the end of the reporting penod. The following
rable pives informaron abowr bovwe the Fair valuss of these financial assees are determined:

Financial Fair walue as ar
P H0E 2020 Valuwtion Helationship of
technigques Significant unnbssrvable
Fuir value und key  unobservable inpuss to fuir
AED AED  lderarchy s inpaat value
Investments
cagried at
FVTOHCL
Lisged exquity Chied bid
Hecurites prices in an
Mote 5) 173,974,245 21T 658650  Levell acHve mathes Mione M/A
Financial
asieis
carrled an
F¥TPL
Listed equity Ouovsd laid
Secyrinies [prices in an
ot 5) 41,051,275 25164972 Level 1 actrve market, Mure MSA




Ras Al Ehaimah Co, for White Cement & Construction Maternals PP.5.C.

Motes to the consolidared financial statements (continued)
Far the vear ended 31 December 20021

24, Financhil instruments {continoed)

24,00 Fair value measurcments (contimed )

Fair valee hicrarchy

The following table provides an snalysis of financial and non-financial instruments that are measured o
to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 o 3 based on the degree 1o which the fair value is

ohaerealile:

bl Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active matkets for identical assets or Habilities Jevel 1).

» Inputs other than quoted prices incladed wathin level 1 that are obsarvable for the asset or babilicy, cicher
direcdy {that is, a8 prices) or indiceeshy (that is, derived from prices) (level 2}

- Inpuars for the asses or liahility that are not based on observable markes data (that &, unohservahle inpots)

{Jewed 3).
H December 2021
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial ssses canried at
FWTOCL
Cruoted equitges Mote 3} 173,974,245 173,974,245
Finaneial assets carried an
FVTIFL
Oueated equities (Mebe 5) 41,951,275 - - 41 951 275
215,925,520 - - __ 215,925,520
31 Drecember 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assers caeried ar
FWTOCT
Quoted equities (Note 5) 211,650 656 - 211,659 456
Financial assets carried at
FWVTFL
Crooted cquities THote 5) 25,164 U732 - 25,164072
230,824 628 - 136,824,628

There were no transfors between the levels durng the year. There are no Anancial labilises which should be
measured st falr value and accordingly no disclosure is made in the above table.

In presensing information on the basis of peoptaphical aress, revernes is based on the geojraphic location of costomers,

2021 mzn

AED AED

United Arab Ernirates 102,361,891 00,163,124
Culf Cooperation Councl countries 41,211,224 375947 254
India 70,068,259 62,979,184
Jozdan 1,669,349 6,197,431
Yemen 2,534,198 2260144
Other countries 21,963,125 12,645,543
239,309,046 221,192 660




Ras Al Ehaimah Co, for White Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial staternents (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 20021

26. Comparitives

Ceértain comparative figures have been eeclassified in order m conftm to current year's presemation. Hiowever,
there is no effect on previously reported togal equity, profit for the year and the net chanpe in cagh and cagh
squivalents.

27. Subsequent events

On 31 January 2022, the UAE Minisery of Flnance announced the Insoducton of 8 9% federal corporate tax rate
effective for fiscal years commencing on ot after June 1, 2023, There are no implications to the consolidated
financial and reporting year ended December 31, 2021, Management is in the process of evaluating the
consequences i the conselidated financsl statements and will communicate the conclusion of their evaluation st
an appropriate foture tme.

There have been no ather evamnes subsecuent to the eonsolidated staternent of fnancial position date that would
sigmificantly affect the smounts reported in the consolidated fnancial stacements for the year ended December 31,
2021,

28, Social contributions

The sodal conmibutions (including donations and charity) made during the year amounted v AED 245,000
(2020 AED Z75,331).
29, Segment information
Management has detenmined the operating segments based on the repors reviewed by the Board of Directors thae
are usedd to make stratepe decisians,
For management purpases, the Group is orpanized into business units based on their products and seevices and the
following reportable seginerns:

(1) Manufactoring of white cement, lime produets, cement products

(2] Investments in marketable aquity securites.
“There are no sales beroreen sepments during the year,

Management monitors the opemting results of is bosiness units for the purposs of making decisions ahout resourcs
albocation and performance asséssment Segment performance is evalusted based on net profit or loss and is
measured consistently with operating profit or loss in the consolidated Anancial staternents,
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Hus Al Khaimah Co, For White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Directars” Report

The Direciors submit their report 1ogesher with the audited consolidated financial statements of Ras Al
Khammah Co_ for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S C. and its subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2022

Incorporation and regiviered office

Ras Al Khaimsh Co for White Cement & Construction Materials PSLC., Has Al Khaimah {ihe
“Company®) is incoparated s¢ a public sharsholding company by Emin decree number 13/8] dated 3
Oectober 1981 issued by His Highness the Ruler of Bas Al Khaimah The address of the Company”s
regisiered office it PO Box 1492, Rac Al Kkaimah, United Arsh Emirates

The “Group” compnses Ras Al Khaimah Ce. for White Cement & Constroction Materials PS.C and

its subsidianies

Froportion of  Countryof  Principal
Name of subsidiary ownership  incorporation  acthviiles

Imferest
aclory Manufacturing of eoncrete blocks,
gﬁﬁiﬁ:ﬂ: 100% UAE interlock tiles and cement
products

;:E:'l..lu:ﬁh:mlh Lime Co 100% UAE Manuizciuring of lime products

The princapal sctivities of the Group ars manufactuning and supply of white cement, lime products and
cement producis and investing, establishing and managing relevant sctivites

Results and appropriotion

The operating results and the consolidated financial pesition of the Groop are fully set oat in the
aitsched coosolidated financia! statements The Group reported a net profit of AED 21.08 million for
the year ended December 3|, 3022 (2021 net profit of AED 32 £7 million),

Privideneis

At the annual general meeting held on March 1, 2022, the Bharcholders approved cash dividends of
|0% amounding to AED 50,015,700 1w the sharsholders in respect for the year ended December 31,
2021, ‘They have also approved the board of Directors’ remaneration for an amount of AED 285
mkllion

At the annual general mecting held on April 12, 2021, the Shareholders approved cash dividends of 58%;

amounting to AED 25,007 850 ix; the sharcholders in respect for the yesr ended December 11, 2020
They kave also approved the board of Directors’ remuncration Tor an amoant of AED |14 million

Aunditors

Talal Abu Ghazaleh & Co. International -~ RAK were appointed as auditors for the year ended
December 31, 2022 and being eligible, they have expressed their willingness to continue in office once
clecied at the forthcoming Anmual General Mesting,

These cansolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
comparatives) were appreved by the Board of Direciors on February 25, 2023 asd were signed

=_ — R

Chairman Chief Exeentive OiMices
al=
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Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co. International

(slobral Company for Auditing and Accounting e A laay 3 Sads o

DEPEND UDITOR'S RT

The Sharcholders,

M5, Ras Al Khaimah Co, For White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C
Ras Al Khaimah

United Arab Emirates.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ras Al Khaimah Co. For White
Cement & Construction Materials P.5.C (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion. the accompanying consolidated financial staternents present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as st December 31, 2022,
and s consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the vear then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ([F RSs).

Baxls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (158As). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors® Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board of Accountants Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code™ together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our sudit of the consolidated financial satements in the United
Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Other Matrer
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 were audited by

another auditor who expressed an unmedified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements on February 26, 2022,

2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR RAS AL KHAIMAN ©0. FOR WHITE CEMENT &
CONMSTRUCTION MATERIALS P.S.C FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 (Continued...)

Report on the Aodit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued...)
Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those maners thal, in our professional judgmeni, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current vear, These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statemenis as a
whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

irment loxses o fvables

As at December 31, 2023, trade receivables were AED 47,452,447 against which impairment

loss allowance of AED 3,616,295 was recorded (Note 7 tw the consolidated fimancial
statements).

Management exercises significant judgement when determining both when and how much to
record as trade receivable impairment allowance as per requirements of IFRS ¢ "Financial
instruments”, Because of the significance of these judgements and the materiality of trade
receivables, the audit of irade receivables impairment loss allowance is & key area of focus.

The work that we performed 10 address this key audit matter included the following
procedures:

* We obtained an understanding of the Group’s process for estimating impairment loss
allowance.

» Tested the reasonableness of management's key assumptions and judgments used in the
determination of impairment loss allowance and its consistency with TFRS 9.

* Tested the accuracy and completeness of data used in the determination of impatrmeni
loss allowance.

* Tested the adequacy of the disclosures pertaining to impairment loss allowances included
in these consolidated financial statements.

Alfowance for siow MOoving Imveniories

As at December 31, 2022, Gross value of Inventories amounted to AED 109,809,236, against which
provision for slow moving inventories amounted to AED 31,342,762, Inventories inchude various
types of inventories that are reported at the lower of cosi of net realizable value. Assessing net
realizable value of inventories is an area of significant judgement, in particular with regard to the
estimation of allowance for slow-moving inventories.

The management has relied upon their experience, physical verification, operational condition and
understanding of the nature and use of sparc parls, and has accordingly made estimations for

allowance for slow moving inventories. Since significan Judgement is involved in assessing the
required allowance, we have identified this as a key area of focus,

3.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR RAS AL KHAIMAHN CO. FOR WHITE CEMENT &
CONSTRLUCTION MATERIALS P.8C FOR THE YEAR ENXDED DECEMBER d4, 2022 (Continued...}

Repart on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued...)

Key audit matters {continued...)

The work thai we performed to address this key audit matter included the following
procedures:

* We inquired of the management to understand the procedures underiaken by them as pan of
the inventory review and assessment of allowance for slow moving items,

* Verified the physical existence and good condition of randomly selected samples of the
inventory,

* Tested the valuation of year-end inventory including challenging judgements taken

regarding obsolescence, net realizable value provisions, historical usage and future usage
expectation.

Other Information

The Board of directors are responsible for the other information. Other information consists of
information included in the Director’s report, other than the consolidated financial stalemenis
and our auditors” report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of conselidated financial statement. our responsibility is 1o read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
malerially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statemenis or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other mformation that we obtained prior 1o the
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the prepamation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs and in compliance with the applicable provisions
of the Articles of Association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, and
for such intemal control as management determines is necessary (o enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud
OF 1T,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or 10 cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do o,

Those charged with govemance arc responsible for overseeing the Group's consolidated
financial reporting process,

4.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR RAS Al KHAIMAN ©0. FOR WHITE CEMENT &
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS P.5.C FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2027 (Continued.,,.)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued...)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 10 fraud or error, and
W issue an auditors’ report that includes our epinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAS, we exercise professional judgment and maimain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidsted financial
statemenis, whether due to fraud or error, design snd perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of intemnal control relevant 1o the audit in order 1o design audil

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of sceounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropristeness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related 1o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclude that & material unceriainty exisis, we arc
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report 0 the related disclosures in the
cansolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our
muditors” report, However, filture events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 1o
Continue as a going concern.

* Evaluaie the overall presentation, structure and conten! of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair presentation,

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entilies or business activities within the Group 10 express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with povernance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

5.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR RAS AL KHAIMAN 0. FOR WHITE CEMENT &
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS PS.C FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2022 (Continned,..)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued.,.)

Auwditors" Responsibilities for the Auwdit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
{continued...)

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to beéar on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matiers that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulstion precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rmre circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
hecause the adverse consequences of deing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we repor that for the vear ended
December 31, 2022;

| We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for purposes of our audit.

2. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material

respect with the applicable provisions of UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 and the
Articles of Association of the Company,

3. The Group has maintained proper books of sccounts.

4. The consolidated financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with
the books of aceounts of the Group.

5. Invesimenis in shares and stocks are included in note 5 1o the consolidated financial
statements.

6. Transactions and term with related parties disclosed in Note 21.

7. The Group made social contributions as disclosed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
stalements.

8. Based on the information that has been made available to us, nathing came 1o our atftention
which causes us to believe that the Group has contravened during the financial year ended
December 31, 2022, any of the applicable provisions of UAF Federal Law No. (32) Of
2021 or the Articles of Association of the Company which would have a material effect on
its activities or on its consolidated financial position as at December 31, 2022,
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ASSETS

Nop-curreni asseis

Propeity, plant and equipment
Investments at fair value through other
comprehensve meome (FYVTOCT)
Total win-current assels

Carrent apsets

Inveniories

Trade and other receivables
Imvestments st fair value through
praifit or boss (FYTPL)

Cath and bank balances

Toial curreni asseis

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Ehare capial

Slatubiny reserve

Cumulative changes m fair valoe (FYTOCT)
Retmned eamings

Net equity - Exhibit C

Nos-carvent liabilities
Employees” end of service benefits
Tuotal non-corrent lishilitics

Curront labilities
Bank bomrowings

Trade and other payables
Todal currend Habilities

Tatal Habilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Sib)
L]

1l
12

11
13

2 2021

AED AED
dinh 1,947 A52 412716
107312273 173,974,245
573,409,220 566,386,961
T8 466,474 81 248 709
51,681,491 45,952 556
31,504,588 41,051.274
— 7119440 137,510,534
Eﬂlgﬂ_ﬂ- 05 663,074
bRl 963,050,033
500,157,000 500,157,000
118,102,515 115,993 875
PRIIE2TN)  (50,746,724)
__ 202.811,080 71,952
2155324 793,776,103
10,485,524 9,261,158
. 50,511,745
10.485,524 55,772,903
- 22,500,000
89,540,365 87,001,020
BOS40365 109501025
100,025,889 _ 169,273.932
—tlELELS, 963,050,035

To the best of our knowledge, the consolidated financial information included in these consalidated
ﬁl‘ltn-r!ll statements fairly preseats in all material respects the financial conditon, consolidated resuli of
opentien and consolidated cash flows of the Group 2 of, and for, the periods presented therein.

These consolidated financial stalements were approved for issue by the Board of Direcior

25 2073 srgned-on their bebalf by
= !i-:%—-—-—:b

Chairman

L

>

s

Chief Executive Officer
The sccompanying notes fram | to 30 are &n integral pan of this consolidated financial statements



ONSOLIDAT TATEMEN F I ROF R

For Tug Year Expen Decemeer 31 . 2022

. XHIBITB-1

Note 1013 0]

AED AED
Sales 14 147,668,393 239,809,045
Cost of sales 15 (213,525,.258)  (202,443.235)
Gross profit 34,143,135 37,365,811
Greneral and administrative expenses 16 (21,997.856) (24,067,641)
Other income 17 BR4,415 B, 580 465
Operating Profit 13,029,604 22 878 635
Investiment income I8 10218447 11,826,288
Impairment allowance for expected eredit losses 7(h) (667.861) .
Fareign exchangs loss (690,766) (259,588)
Finance cost (803,117) (1,573,576)
Profit for the year - Exhibits B-2 & n ﬁﬁ 33 £71.750
Basic earnings per share 19 004 L7

The accompanying notes from 1 10 30 are an imtegral pant of this consolidated financial statements



Ras Ar Knaman Co. For Wiite Cement & Construcion Maririats P.S.C.

Rus Ar Kuan
Unitep Aran EMIRATES
ConsoLinaten Starement OF
iR Comrr ME

For Tue Year Expep Decemper 31, 2022

BITB -2

222 201
AED AED
Prefit for the year — Exhibit B- | 11086397 32871759
rehen i
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently 1o prafit or loss
Changes in fair value of investments st FVTOC) 11,530,453 18419300
Realized gain on disposal of investmeniz st FYTOC) 8328071 12 B54 664
Total ather comprehensive income for the vear — Exhibit C 10,156,524 31.274.054
Total comprehessive income for the year - Exhibit C 41,244,921 64,145,813

The accompanying notes from 1 to 30 arc an integral part of this consolidated financial statements.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Profit for the year — Exhibit B - |

Adjustments:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Provision for emplovees' end of service benefils
Dividend income

Interest income

Investment management fees

Profit on sale of investment at FVTPL
Impairmeni allowance for expected credit losses
Finance cost

Unrealized loss/(gain) on investmems a1 FYTPL
Operating profit before working capital changes
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Employees' end of service benefils paid

Board of Directors Remuneration paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Dividend received

Purchase of investments at FYTOC]

Purchase of investments at FYTPL

Proceeds from disposal of investments at FVTOC]
Proceeds from disposal of investments at FVTPL
Interest received

Management fees paid

Term deposits with maturity more than three months
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment of term loans

Finance cost paid

Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF

THE YEAR - NOTE &

P&.C
EXHIBIT D

2022 2021

AED AED
21.086.397 32.871.759
33,875,016 33486259
1,435,168 915,968
(6,147.012) (5,982,416)
(1,349 832 (23,090)
601,745 1,800,328
{9.312,018) (6,366,943
66T 861 -
803,117 1,573,576
5,988,670 (1,254,167
47,649,112 021,274
2,782,235 6,009 866
(5,131,586) 27,185,402
(1,758,975 (9,171,560)
(210,802) (511,625)
(2,850,000 {1, 140,000)
40,479,684 79,483 357
(7.559,247)  (11.986,967)
6147012 3982416
(31,591,713) (36,962,776)
(39,874,675)  (65,559,554)
118,412,219 105,922,241
53,644,710 56,394 361
84,922 23,080
(601.745) (1,800,328)
(124,865,000) 4
(26,203,527 52,012 483
(T3,011,745)  (22,500,000)
(1,046,084 (1,550,053)
(45,474,412) {23,074,659)
(119,532,251) (47,124,712}
(105,256,094) 84,371,128
127,510,534 43,139,406
22,254,440 127,510,534

The accompanying notes from 1 10 30 are an integral pan of this consolidated financial statements.
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Notes To Tue Consormaren Fivanciar Starements

For Tue Year Exvep Decevser 31, 2022

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION:

Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C. (the "Company") is
incorporated as a public shareholding company by Emiri decree number 13/81 dated 3
October 1981 issued by His Highness, The Ruler of Ras Al Khaimah. The address of the
Company's registered office is P.O. Box 1492, Ras Al Khaimah, and United Arab Emirates.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group") are manufacturing
and supply of white cement, lime products, cement products and investing, establishing and
managing similar activities. The "Group” comprises of Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White
Cemenl & Construction Materials P.5.C. and its Subsidiaries.

At the Annual General Assembly Meeting held on March 31, 2022, the shareholders
approved to amend Company's anticle of association with respect to Article 5 (2) - Purposes
of the Company and Article (7) — Percentage of Ownership and on April 13, 2022 the
changes were applied,

Details of Company's subsidiaries ai December 31, 2022 are mentioned in Note 3: Basis of
consolidation.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of consolidated finsncial statements are
consistent with those applied by the Group in the interpretation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 except for the adoption of the
following new standards, interpretation and amendments,

1.1 Standards, interpretations issued and effective for the current year
The Group has adopted all the applicable new and revised standards and interpretations

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the Intemational

Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the IASE that are relevant 1o
its operations and effective for the vear beginning on 1 January 2022,

-12-
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2, NEW AND REV ARDS, IN RETATION AND NDMENTS
{continued.._.}

2.1 Standards, interpretations isswed and effective for the current vear (continued...)

* Proceeds before intended use (Amendments to IAS (16) Property, Plamt and
Eguipment.

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an ftem of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced before that
asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items,
and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss,

The amendments also clarify that an entity is ‘esting whether the msset is
functioning properly” when it assesses the technical and physical performance of
the assel.

If not presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated financial statements shall disclose the amounts of procesds and
cost included in profit or loss that relate to ftems produced that are not an output of
the entity's ordinary activities, and which line item(s) in the consoljdated statement
of comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds and cost,

* Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3.

Minor amendments were made 10 IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ to updaic the
references 1o the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting and add an
exception for the recognition of liabilities and contingent liabilities within the SCope
of 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and IFRIC 7]
Levies. The amendments also confirm that contingent assets should not be
recognized al the acquisition date.

* Omerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments fo IAS 37).

The amendments specify that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs
that relate directly 1o the contract. Costs that relute directly to a contract consist of
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example, direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(for example, allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling tha contract, among others)

Before a separate provision for an onerous contraet is established, an entity

recognizes any impairment loss that has occurred on assets used in fulfilling the
contract,
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2. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS
(continued...)

2.1 Standards, interpretations issued and effective for the current year (continued...)

*  Annwal improvemenis to IFRS 2008-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
IFRS 16 and IAS 41)

~ IFRS 1 Amendments, First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards

The amendment provides additional relicf to a subsidiary which becomes a first-
time adopler leter than its paremt in respect of sccounting for cumulative
translation differences. As a result of the amendment, & subsidiary that uses the
exemption in IFRS 1; D16 (a) may elect, in its financial stalemenis, to measure
cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrving
amount that would be included in the parent’s consolidated financial siatements,
based on the parent's date of transition 1o [FRSs, if no adjustments were made
for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in
which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is available 10 an
associate or joint venture that uses the exemption in IFRS 1: D16 (a).

= IFRS % Amendments, Financial Instrumients

The amendments clarify the fees an entity includes when it applies the *10 per
cent’ in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability, an entity includes
only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's
behalf.

= [FRS 16 Amendments, Leases

The amendment to illustrative example 13 accompanying [FRS 16 removes
from the example the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold
IMprovements.

= JAS 41 Amendments, Agriculture

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of 1AS 41 for the

entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value under 1AS
41

These amendments had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
=
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NEW A VISED STANDARDS, INTERFRETATION AND DMENTS
confinu

2.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments in issue not yet effective and not early

adopted:
Effective date

IAS 1 = Amendment Classification of Liabilities as Currént 1 January 20023

or

Non-current
IFRS- 17 = New Insurance Contracis | Jenuary 2023
1AS 1 - Amendment & Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 Jenuary 2023
IFRS practice statement 2
IAS §- Amendment Definition of Accounting Estimate | January 2023
IAS 12- Amendment Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1 January 2023

Liabilities arising from a from a
Single fransaction
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets Indefinite
Amendments between an Investor and an and its effective date
Associate or Joinl Venture

If applicable, the Group intends to adopt these new and amended siandards and
interpretations when they become effective. The management anticipates that the
adoption of the above standards and interpretations in future perinds may have an
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Statement of compliance:

The Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance, and comply with,
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and IFRS Interpretations Commitiee
{IFRIC) applicable to the proup compamies reporting under IFRS and applicable
requirements of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) Of 2021.

Basis of preparation:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for the messurement at fair value of financial instrument. Historical cost is
generally based on fair value of the consideration given in the exchange for the asset.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into accoun! when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purpose in these consolidated financial
siatement is determined on such basis, and measurement that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in 1AS 2 or value in use in [AS 36.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of preparation:

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into
Level 1,2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs 1o the fair value messurements in it entirety,
which are described as follows:

* Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date:

* Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or mdirectly; and

= Level 3 inputs are unobscrvable inputs for the asscts or liability.

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of
liquidity, with a distinction based on expectations regarding recovery or seftlement within
twelve months after the reporting date {current) snd more than twelve months fler the
reporting date (non-current), presented in the notes.

Basix of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements of Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement &
Construction Materials P.S.C and its subsidiarics (the "Group") incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and the entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved when the Group:

« Has power over the investee;

» Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the mvestee;
and

» Has the ability to use its power 1o affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
mdicate that there are changes 10 one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability 1o
direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterall ¥
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The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Giroup's voting rights in an invesiee are sufficient 1o give it power, including.

* The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative 1o the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

*  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;

*  rights arising from other contractual arrangements: and

* Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of & subsidiary begins when the Group obiains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statement of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group accounting policies,

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flow relating 10
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Campany has the following subsidiaries over which i exercises effective control:

Name of Proportionof | Country of [ Principal
subsidiaries Ownership | incorporation activities
interest _
Modern Block Factory 1004 Ras Al Khaimah | Manufacturing  of  concrete
Establishment UAE blocks, interlock tiles and
cement products.
Ras Al Khaimah Lime 100% Ras Al Khaimah | Manufacturing ~ of  lime
Co. Noura LLC ! U.AE. products.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation CUrrency

lems included in the consolidated financial statements are messured and presented in
United Arab Emirates Dirhams (AED), being the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates (the functional currency’). The consolidated

financial statements are presented in AED. which is the Group's functional and
preseniation curtency.
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Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transections are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the trensactions or valuation where jtems are re-
measured. Foreign exchange pains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of meonetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencics are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except when deferred in other comprehensive income as
qualifying cash flow hedges.

Balances and transactions denominated in US dollars (“LISD"} have been translated into
the presentation currency at a fixed rate as the exchange rate of AED to USD has been
pegged.

Property and equipment:

Property and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes are initially recognized at their cost being their purchase price
plus any other costs direcily attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for them 1o be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Management.

Afier initial recognition, the property and equipment are carried, in the consolidated
siatement of financial position, at their cost Jess accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, which reflects
the pattern in which the assel's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by
the Group over the estimated wseful lives of the assets and accordingly annual
depreciation rates are decided for each class of assets,

The annual rate of depreciation used are as follows:

Asset category _._il'.‘,‘l!ﬂlu-ff
Buildings and huilding improvements 5-21)
Plant and machinery 3-30
Tools, equipment, fumire and fixture 3-20
Vehicles 5.10
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Fro ' uipment: [continued...

The depreciation charge for each vear is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The estimated useful lives, residual
valves and depreciation method arc reviewed al each Year-end, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

On the subsequent derecognition (sale or retirement) of the propernty and equipment, the
resultant gain or loss, being the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carying amount, is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income,

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments are
either financial asscts or financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amornized cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevani Year. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exacily discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected lifi of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter Year, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Any asset that is: cash, an equity instrument of another entity, or a debt instrument of
another entity (a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another
entity, or fo exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with ancther entity under
conditions that are potentially favorable to the entity, or a comtract that will or may he
seitled in the entity’s own equity instruments).

a) Initial measurement:
Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomis parly to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset ot af fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Trade receivables are measured a1 the amount of consideration io which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third party, if the trade
recervables do not conain a significant financing component at initial recognition,



inancial instrumenis

b}

€)

d)

e)

Su Lenl meas H

= Dbt Instruments

Subscquent measurement of debt instruments depends on an entity’s business
model for managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
assel. The Group's financial assets are mainly debt instruments that are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, The Group's financial assels are held
for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost,
Financial assets are measured al amonized cost using the effective interest
method, less impairmeni. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the assets are derecognized or impaired, and through amortization process.

Impaiment:

The Group assesses on & forward looking basis the cxpected credit losses (ECL)
associated with its debt instrument assets carmied al amortized cost and FVTOCL For
trade receivables, the Group measures the loss allowance al an amouni equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses,

A financial asse| is derecognized where the contractual nght to receive cash flows
from the asset has expired. On derecognition of & financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehenzive
income for debt instruments is recognized in profit ar loss,

Fi

cial des; t fair value
wity 3 ments (“FYTOCT™

ive Income —

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect 1o classify irrevocably its equity
investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCT when they
meet the definition of equity under TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basic.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are pever recycled o profit or loss.
Dividends are recognized as gain on investments in the consolidated staterment of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group
henefits from such procesds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCI, Equity instruments designated at fair
value through OCI are not subject 1o impairmnent assessment,
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued..)

Financial instruments {continued... )
e) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity insruments)

[H 0 e .

Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
represent investmenis that the Group intends to hold for the long term for strategic
purposes. The Group elected to classify irmevocably its listed equity investments
under available for sale category as financial assets designated at fair value through
OcCl.

f) Financial assets a1 Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL"

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or
FVTOCI are measured st FVTPL. Specifically:

* Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group
designates an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as at FYTOCT on initial
recognition.

*  Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cosi criteria or the FYTOC]
criteria are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debi instruments that meei either
the amortized cost criteria or the FYTOC] criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recogmition inconsistency (so called ‘accounting mismatch') tha
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and
losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value a1 the end of each reporting
peniod, with any fair value gains or losses recognized in profit or loss,

Despile the foregoing. the Group may make the following irrevocable election /
designation at inifial recognition of a financial assei;

*  The Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and

*  The Group may imevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

=21-
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ash and cash eguivalent

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash comprises ¢ash on hand
and demand deposits where cash equivalents arc short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 10 an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial lighilities
a) Imitial o and

b)

d)

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilitics are recognized initially at fair value plus in the case of
financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, direcily attributahle
transaction costs.

b x
Afler initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liahilities are
derecognized, and through the amortization process,

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liahility is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derccognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified

payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt nstrumen.

Financial guarantees are recognized inmitially as a liability at fair value, sdjusted for
iransaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guaraniee.
Subscquent 1o initial recognition, financial pusrantees are measured a1 the higher of
the amount of the impairment loss allowance and the amount initially recognized Jess,
when appmoate: the ermmulatiine amami i b b s e o g
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Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable
value i5 the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Spare parts and other inventories cost comprises of their purchase price

Raw materials cost comprises of purchase cost and other costs incurred in bringing the
raw muaterial to their present location and condition. Products in process cast comprises
raw materials, wages and industrial costs that contribute in ransforming raw materials
into products in process. Finished goods cost comprises raw materials, wages and
industrial costs that contribute in transforming raw materials into finished products. Cost
iz caleulated using the weighted average method.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognized as
an expensc in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of any
write down of inventories 1o net realizable value and all losses of inveniories are
recognized as an expense in the period the write down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable
value, are recognized as reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs,

Impairment of nop- cial

At each consolidated statement of financial position date. the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its asscts 10 delermine whether there is any indication that those
assets have been impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, being
the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the value
in use. The assel's fair value is the amount for which that assel could he exchanged
between knowledgeable, willing parties in arm's length transaction. The value in use is
the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the profit or loss, unless the relevant assct

is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impaimenl loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the ssset is
increased o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, bui the increased Carrving
amount due to reversal should not be more than what the depreciated historical cost
would have been if the impairment had not been recognized in prior Years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued

amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
nerease.
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Related party transaciions

Related parties includes persons (or a close member of that person’s family) that are
related to the Group, has control or joinl control over the Group, has significant
influence over the Group, and’or member of the key management personnel of the
reporting entity, or of a parent of the reporting entity. The Group is related to another
entity if they are members of the same Group (that is all entities within Group are
related to each other).

Transactions with related parties, normally, comprise of transfer of resources. seTvices,
or obligations between the parties. At the consolidated statement of financial position
date, the related parties' receivables are stated at the net realizable value.

Emplovees' end-of-service benefits

Provision for employees' end-of-service benefits is calculated in acordance with the
Federal Labour | aws of United Arab Emirates.

Provisions are present obligations (legal or constructive) resulted from past events, the
settlement of the obligations is probable and the amount of those obligations can be
estimated reliably. The amount recognized as a provision is the bes! estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation a1 the consolidated statement of
financial position date, that is, the amount that the Group would rationally pay to settle
the obligation at the consolidated statement of financial position date or to transfer it 1o a
third party.

Provisions are reviewed and adjusted at esch consolidated statement of financial
position date. If cutllows, (o settle the provisions, are no longer probable, reverse of the
provision is recorded as income, Provisions are only used for the purpose for which they
were onginally recognmized.

Contingent liabilitics
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations depending on whether some uncertain

future events oceur, or they are present obligations but payments arc not probable or the
amounts cannot be measured reliably, Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the
consolidated financial sistements but are disclosed.

s ~
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The (roup presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial

position based on current/non-current Classification. An asset is classified as current

when it 1s;

- Expecled to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cyele;

- Held primanly for the purpose of trading;

= Expected 1o be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cvcle;

- Nis held primanily for the purpose of trading;
Itis due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There 15 no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liahility for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Yalue added tax (*VAT")
Expenses and assets are necognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

- When the YAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case, the VAT is recognized as pant of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included. The net
amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or pavables in the consolidated statement of financial pasition,

Ca cash equiv

Cash and cash equivalents are items, which are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated siatement of financial position comprise cash on hand and
current accounts with bank and short-term deposits with original maturities of three
months or less.
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3 EUMNMEI OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: {continued...)
Share capital and réserves

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Ordinary
shares are classified as equity.

Statutory reserve is required to be created by UAE Federal Law No. {32) Of 202] as
described in note 10,

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at an amount that reflects the consideration, to which an entity

expects 1o be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customer.

excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is adjusted for expected
discounts and volume discounts, which are estimated based vn the hisiorical dma or
forecast and projections. The Group recognizes revenue from contracts with customers

based on a five-step model as set out in IFRS 15

Step 1:  Identify contract{s) with a customer A contract is defined ss an agreement
between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and
sets out the eriteria for every contract that must be met.

Step2:  Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with & customer o transfer a good or service to the
customer.

Step 3 Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Group cxpects to be emitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services 1o a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Step4:  Allocate the transaction price o the performance obligations in the contract:
For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group
allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that
depicts the amount of consideration 10 which the Group expects 1o be entitled
in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 31 Recognize revenue: When (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not meL, revenue is
recogmized at the point in time at which the performance obli pation is satisfied.

Revenue from coniracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or
services are transferred to the customer al an amount that reflects the consideration 1o
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNI

Dividend and int inco
Dividend income from investment is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive
payment has been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time hasis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assel o the assel net
CATYINg amounl.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculaied by dividing:

+ The profit attributable 10 shareholders of the Group, excluding anv costs of SETVICINE
equity other than ordinary shares.

* By the weighted average number of ordinery shares outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding tressury shares if any.

Segment reporting
For management purposes, the Group is orgamzed into business units based on their
products and service and has repartable segments as follows:

a) Manufacturing of White cement, lime products, cements products,
b} Investment in marketable equity securities,

There are no sale between segmenis during the yvear.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units for the purpose of
making decisions aboul resources allocations and performance assessment. Segment
performance is cvaluaied based on net profit or loss and is measured consistently with
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

S0 uf estimatio ceria
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the Management is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the reporting amounts of assets,
liahilities, income and expenses that are no readily apparent from other sources, The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expenence and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual resulte may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the Year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that Year or in the Year of the revision and future Years if the
revigion affeets both current and future Years,
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The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the date of the consolidated statement of firancial position, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial Year,

Impairmemnt of financial ASSELY

Measurement of Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") is a sipnificant estimate that involves
determination methodology, models and data inputs, The following componenis have a
major impact on credit loss allowance: definition of default, SICR, probability of default
{("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD"), and loss given default ("LGD"), as well as models of
macro-economic scenarios. The Group regularly reviews and validates the models and
inputs to the models to reduce any differences between expected credit loss estimates and
actual credit loss experience.

The expected loss rates are based on aging of receivables, The historical loss rates are
adjusied for o reflect forward-looking information on macroeconomie factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables,

lowance for slow moving inveriories

Invenlories are stated al the lower of cost or net realizable value. Adjustments to reduce the
cost of inventory 1o its net realizable value, if required, are made at the product level for
estimated excess, obsolescence or impaired balances, Factors influencing these adjusiments
include changes in demand, technological changes, physical deterioration and quality
issues. Based on the factors, management has identified inventory items as slow and non-
moving 1o calculate the allowance for slow moving inventories. Revisions to the allowanee
for slow moving inventories would be required if the outcome of these indicative fuctors
differ from the estimates.

Useful lives of property, praani ind equipment

The cost of property and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful life, which is
based on expected usage of the assets, ex pected physical wear and 1ear, which depends on
operational factors such as repair and maintenance program and physical obsolescence, The
Management has not considered any residual value as it is deemed immaterial.

=2 8-
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3. SUMMARY OF TACCOUN POLICIES: inued...
Critical accounting judgments and key  sources of estimation uncertainm:

{continued...)
Classification of investmenis

Management designates at the time of acquisition of securities whether these should be
classified as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. In judging whether investments in securities are as at
FVTOCT or FVTPL, management has considered the detailed criteria for determination of

such classification as set out IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Managemeni is satisfied that its
Investments in securities are appropriately classified,



LFG'9G0'99F  BOF'6R0'F U By BER'GEE sCIPOTITE THF'9EF'EN CO8°LSTIT
SIL TIFTEF BLGBEFS SITESL"| FFL 655 BT GER'TLYFL CORLSITIT
O£6°LS6'LRE - 699 [66°L1 £0F99 1z EILCILLLIE  S9STS0C =
QIOSLE'EE . SCLELl OlL'66L OIS ELIDE CS0BLT]
FIGTROPEE - Pre' L9879 ECL'O98 0T FET 860" LGT E10°05T'6l ¥
GET9REEE = 6RETER ChiRE0 090" S0e" 08 Cifarr'l -
COO0COZE - SEECER'S] RT6'L91'0C Fi 1 E69 957 Bol008° LI =
LLE'PSO'PSE  BOF'GHOF GOL0F'TL ILLT9ITSL EEE'SLOEFL  LOLP9GET BN LI 1T
LPT'BSS'L BOF 680y LBL'EEY FEEDLS OI6LIET B08°1%7 -
DEYSororR - TCh0E'TT BE6 OFY'TT BLG'LSTObL GORTTLEE E6RLEN'IT
- (ZoS 1 1ve) - - W01 6 - .
L9 oRa'l 1 FO1PSTS o B | s 1T6 0S0'E6E D60°L0T :
EOU'BOS'FER  ROL'LPI'y BEL'SDL'LE BEPRILIT OTPECETEL BOR'SISEE CHE'LS1'IT
aav v aiav aav aav aav aav
(] (TR XTI SHIAIA COUeE  SuawsAoddm SpuE
JapUn 5)asEy  PUE JNIEing PUE ju

“Suamdmn

S0 ]

W UYL - TT07 1€ Squiadag) 1y
¥ NQIGgRE - | 20T "1 € Squuana 1y

ROy FUPLIE ) N

TT0T “ 1§ Jqueanag] 1y

224 ) 4y pafiey)

IZ0Z 1 € Jquuaoagy 1y

sead ay) o) painey )

(T W - PIBISA) (E0T °] £ g 1y
A pAIEnEnIY

TT0T “1f Jaquanaq v

Jead a1 FuLmp suonippy

1Z0T *[ £ queoagg 1y

Jaysuml |

1ead 241 SuLnp swonippy

(HT AON - pawisa) 0707 | Jquianac] 1y
H T




AL Kuaiman Co. For Waite CeMex N 0N Erials P.S,

Ras Ai Knuman

Usirep Aran Emmates
No o Tue C aten Fin L MENTS
Fi Y ear Exnen Diece 31, 2022 inued...

4. FROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: (continued...)

b)

¢)

d

e)

Plant and machinery having a canrying amount of AED 44 million (2021: AED 110
million} is pledged 1w bank against facilities obtained by the Group,

Clinker and lime production facilities, administrative office buildings arc constructed

on lands shown in Note 4 (a). These lands are situated in Ras Al Khaimah and owned
by the Group.

Assels under construction amounting to AED 4,089,408 (2021: AED Nil) as shown in

Note 4 (a) represents expenditures incurred on installation of New Silo machine which
15 under progress.

No borrowing costs have been capitalized during the current vear (2021: AED Nil) as
the amount eligible are immaterial.

f) Depreciation expense classified as follows:
012 2021
AED AED
Cost of sales 33,404,563 33,034,547
CGieneral and administrative expenses 470,453 431,712
3. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES:
a) stments gl fair valve through oth mpre e i FvV |

Equity securities which are not held for trading and which the group has irrevocably
elected at initial recognition 1w recognize in this category, These are stratepic
investment and the group considers this classification to be more relevani.

2022 2021

AED AED
Equity shares, Quoted - Local - UAE 100,166,391 112,399 840
Equity shares, Quoted - GCC couniries 7,145 882 61,574,405
Total = Exhibit A 107,312,273 173,974,245
Movement details are as follows: 2022 21

AED AED
Balance at beginning of the year 173,974,245 211,659,656
Purchase during the year 31,591,723 36,962,776
Disposal during the year (110,084,148) (93,067,577
Change in fair value 11,830,453 18,419,390
Balance at end the year 107312273 173,974,245
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5. TMENT IN H timued. . .
h) Investments at fair value through profit and Joss (FYTPL):

This item comprise of equity investments that are held for trading and equity
investments for which the entity has not elected to recognize fair value gains and lnsses

through other comprehensive income.
2032 2021
AED AED
Equity shares, Quoted - Local - UAE 20,715,802 27,515,804
Equity shares, Quoted - GCC countries 10,788,786 14,435,471
Total - Exhibit A 31;&&5 qllslj!!g"fs
Movement details are as follows: 2022 2021
AED AED
Balance at beginning of the year 41,951,275 25,164,972
Purchase during the year I 874,675 63,359,554
Disposal during the year (44332,692)  (50,027418)
Change in fair value (5,988,670) 1,254,167
Balance at end the vear 31,504,588 41,951,275
6. INVENTORIES:
This item comprises of the following: 2022 2021
AED AED
Finished goods 14,293 885 14,886,776
Raw materials T.615827 5,100,725
Work in progress 47,946,314 51,135,827
Bags, fuel and lubricants 7,244,347 10,479,446
Spare parts 32,694,581 30,986,022
Total 109,794,954 112,589,796
Allowance for slow-moving inventories (31,342,762) (31,342,762)
Goods in transit 14282 1,675
Net - Exhibit A 78,466,474 81248, 709
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7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES:

8) This item comprises of the following: 2022 2021
AED AED
T'rade accounts receivable - Note 7 (¢ 47,452,447 44,104,921
Impairment allowances for expeeted credit losses -
Note 7 (b) (3,616,295) (2,948,434)
Net 43,836,152 41,156,487
Prepaid expenses 1,547,650 1,121,522
Advance (o suppliers 1,665,038 1,216,224
Refundable deposits & other receivables 4,632,611 2,458,323
Total - Exhibit A 51,681,491 43,952,556

Before accepting new customers, the Group generally obtains bank guarantee or letter
of eredit from the potentinl customers. Trade receivables af the end of year amounting to
AED 22.56 million representing 47.54% of the total trade receivables (2021: 18.79
million representing 43.60% of trade receivables) are due from the Group's six
customers (2021 five customers).

The average credit period on sales of goods is 73 days, No interest is charged on
outstanding receivables. The Group measures the impairment allowance for expected
credit losses at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credil losses on trade
receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference w past default
experience of the deblor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position,
adjusted for the factors that are specific to the customers hank guarantees, and letters of
credit provided, peneral economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors
Operale and an assessment of both the current as well 2s the forecast dircction af
conditions at the reporting date.

All the Group trade receivables in the comparative periods have been reviewed for
indicators of impairment. The impaired trade receivables are maosily due from customers
in the business to business market that are expenencing financial difficuliies.

The Group write off trade receivables when there is information indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficull ¥ and there is no realistic prospect of TECOVETY, E.2.
when the debior has been placed under liquidation or has entered inta bankruptey

proceedings etc,
h) Movement details of impairment allowances for expected credit losses are as follows:
2021 2021
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,948,434 2,948 434
Net increase/(decreasc) during the vear - Exhibit B 667,861 -

Balance ai the end of the year El 6,295 2048 434
m
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€} Analysis of trade receivables are set out below: 2022 2021
AED AED
Secured against unconditional bank guaraniees 15,602,758 11,999,860
Secured against letter of credit 14,288,383 | 5,283,994
Open credit 17,561,306 16,821,065
Total 47,452,447 44,104,921
8. CASH AND BANK BALANCES:
This item comprises of the following: 2022 2021
AED AED
Cash in hand 190,095 175,853
Checking accounts with bank 7,181,166 11,188,969
Portfolio accounts 3377387 39,816,344
Call deposits 3,695,322 12,997 482
Term deposits with maturity less than three months 7,810,500 63,131,886
Cash and cash equivalents - Exhibit D 12,254 440 127,510,534
Term deposits with maturity more than three months 124,865,000 -
Total -Exhibit A 147,119,440 127,510,534
By Geographical area;
In the ULAE 138,368,315 114,078,013
In other GCC countries §,751,125 13,432,521

Bank balances are held with local and international branch of reputable banks,
Management views these banks as having a sound performance history and satisfactory
credit ratings.

The average interest rates for the bank deposits during the year were 4,5% (2021: 0.1% per
anrumj.

9. SHARE CAPITAL:
This item comprises of the following 2022 2021
AED AED
Issued and fully paid 500,157,000 shares of AED 1 each
- Exhibiis A & C 500,157,000 500,157,000
eSS —————— .

10. STATUTORY RESERVE:

In sccordance with the UA.E Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 and the Company's Articles of
Association, 10% of the profit for each vear is transferred to the statutory reserve, The
transfer 1o statutory reserve may be suspended when it reaches 50% of share capital.
During the vear ended December 31, 2022, the Group has transferred AED 2,108,640
(2021: AED 3,287,176) to statutory reserve. This reserve is not available for distribution
except in circumstances stipulated by the law,

34-
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Movement details are as follows: 2022 2021
AED AED
Al January | 9,261,158 8.856,815
Charge for the year 1,435,168 915,968
Payments during the year (210.802) {311.625)
At December 31 - Exhibit A 10,485,524 9.261,158
12. BANK BORRO = H
a) This item consists of the following: 2022 2021
AED AED
Term Loan - Note 12 (b) & (¢) - 73,011,745
Total -Exhibit A - 13 !'EII I!'ME
Classified as follows:
Bank borrowings - current — Exhibit A o 22,500,000
———
Bank borrowings - non-current - Exhibit A 5 50,511,745
b) Movement of term loan are as follows: 2022 2021
AED AED
Upening balance 73,011,745 95,511,745
Payment during the vear (73,011,745) (22,500,000)
Ending balance - 73,011,745

—_—— . e

) Term loan were obtained from UNB, as pant of merger between UNR and ADCB which
resulted in existing loan taken over by ADCB and new facilities of AED 118,011,745
commenced in November 2019 that is repayable over 4 years, On August 25, 2022, the
Group settled all the outstanding dues against the term loan,

d} The Group has amended credil facility agreement for bank overdrsits, short term loan
and letter of credit amounting to AED 63,000,000 {Previously AED 73,000,000,

e) Bank facilities are secured by pledge of propenty, plamt and equipment; (Refer to Note
4.
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13. TRADE AND OTHER PAVABLES:
This item comprises of the following: 2022 202
AED AED
Trade accounts payable 29,529,137 29,055,785
Dividend payable 39,900,041 35358.763
Accrued expenses and other provisions 13,853,708 16,711,563
Advance from cusiomers/contract lishilities 6,257,479 5874918
Total - Exhibit A 89,540,365 __ §7.001,029
14. SALES:
This item comprises of the following: 2022 2021
AED AED
Local sales 95,937,551 103,277,715
Export sules 151,730,812 136,531,331
Total - Exhibit B- | 147,668,191 EEIEU‘?IM
15. COST OF SALES:
This item comprises of the following: 2022 2021
AED AED
Material and spare parts consumption cost 78,278,768 76,922,002
Natural gas. electricity and water 80,324,260 69,567,884
Salaries, wages and relaied benefits 21,079,068 20,688,853
Depreciation 33,404,563 33,034,547
Other expense 418,599 2,229 949
Total - Exhibit B - 1 213,515258 202,443,235
This item comprises of the following: 2022 2001
AED AED
Salaries and related benefits 13,167,024 12,396,105
Legal and professional fee 1,775,925 4,607,767
Marketing expense 2,273,420 3,090,440
Oflice expense 1,286,508 1,106,559
Depreciation 470,453 451,712
Bank charges 873,702 786,104
Other expense 2,150,824 1,628,054
Total - Exhibit B - 1 21,997,856 24.067.64]
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17. OTHER ﬂﬂg!!@:
This item comprises of the following: 2022 2021
AED AED
Reversal of liability® 382,841 9,014,618
others 501,574 565,847
Total - Exhibit B - 1 15 9,580,465

* Reversal of liability include an amount of AED Nil (2021: AED 9,000,000) representing
reversal of provisions in regards to a favorable legal outeame that occurred during the year,

18, INVESTMENT INCOME:

20.

This item camprises of the following; 2022 2021
AED AED
Dividend income 6,147,012 5982416
Unrealized (loss)/gain on revaluation of invesiments
al FVTPL (5.988,670) 1,254,167
Realized gain on sale of investments at FVTPL 9312018 6,366,943
Interest income 1349832 23,08
Investment management fee (601,745) (1,800,328)
Net — Exhibit B- 1 10,21 8447 1 LB26 288

E NGS PER RE:

The basic eamings per share computed by dividing the profit for the vear by the weighied
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

2021 2021

AED AED
et profit for the year 21,086,397 32,871,759
Weighted average number of shares outstanding S00,157, 0400 SO0, 157,000
Basic earnings per share (AED) .04 0.07

Diluted ezrnings per share as of December 31, 2022 and December 3 I, 2021 are equivalent
to basic earmnings per share,

DIVIDENDS:

At the Annual general meeting held on 31 March 2022, the shareholders approved a cash

dividend of 10% amounting to AED 50,015,700 in respect of the year ended December 31,
2021.

At the Annual gencral meeting held on 12 April 2021, the shareholders approved cash
dividends of 5% amounting 10 AED 25,007,850 in respect of the vear ended December 31,
2020,
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Zl. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key managemen! personnel of
the Group, and entitics controlled, jointly controlled or significant influenced by such
partics. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Groups
management and mutually agreed with the related parties.

2022
AED
Trade accowms receivable:
Ultratech Cement Limited - India 4,086,620
(Parent of significant sharcholder w.e.f. date of change in control i.e. June 23, 2022}
Transactions with related party as followe: From
June 23 {o
December 31,
2022
AED
Sales (Including frefght).
Ultratech Cement Limited - India 6,365,954

(Parent of significant shareholder w.e.f. date of change in control i.e. June 23, 2022)

Key Management Personne] Compensation. 2022 2021
AED AED

Shori-term benefits 515,99 424,99

Board remuneration paid 2 .850,000 1, 140,000

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

This itern comprises of the following:

2022 2021
AED AED
Letter of guarantees 2,755,024 2,688,294
23. RISK MANAGEMENT:
a) ital risk agement:

The Group manages s capital to ensure that Croup entities will be able to continue as i
going concern while maximizing the return o sharcholders and benefit to other
stakeholders through the optimization of the debi and equity balance.
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23, RISK MANAGEMENT {continued...):
a) Capital risk management (continued. . .):

The Group reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review,
the Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with capital. The Group
does not have a formalized optimal target capital structure or target ratios in connection

with its capital risk management objective.

The Group changed its strategy during the year by settling all its term loan and
currently its capital structure consist of equity, comprising issued capital, reserves and

reteinad earmings.

b) Market risk:

The Group activities expose it primarily to the financial rsks of changes in foresgn
currency exchange rates, cash flow and fair value interest rates and equity price risk.

Market nisk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis.

o Foreign currency risk management:

Majority of the Group transactions are denominsted in AED or in currencies AED
is pegged 10. However, the Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in
other foreign currencies. Hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

Liabilities Assets

2022 2021 022 2021

AED AED AED AED
Kuwaili dinar - 23,582,993 79,303,795
Euro 371645 790,793 3 22024
(JAR - - - 2229677
GBP - . TA68 -
TPY 35,887 - 31213 .

The Group is mainly exposed 1o Kuwaiti Dinar in 2022 (2021 Kuwaiti Dinar and
Catari Riyal). Based on the sensitivity analvsis 1o a 10% increase or decrease in the
AED aguinst Kuwait Dinar the Group's profit for the vear ended December 31,
2022 and equity as of and December 31, 2022 would have increased or decreased
by approximarely AED 1.79 million (2021: AED 8.08 million). The Group has no
material exposure against Euro, Qatar Rivals, British Pound Sterling and Japanese
Yen, 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk intemally
to key management personnel and represemts manogement's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 10%/ change in foreign currency rates.
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11 RIS

ANAG conftinued...):

b) Market risk (continued...}:
o Cash fTow and fair value interest rate ri

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk is limited 1o fixed deposits and call
deposits with banks at floating interest rates and horrowings from banks at floating
rates of interest linked to EIBOR. At December 31, 2022, bank fixed and call
deposits carricd an interest rate in the avg. of 4.5% pa. (2021: 0.1% p.a.) and bank
loans carried an interest rale in the avg. of 2.2% p.a. (2021: | 88% 10 2% p.a.),

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower throughout the year and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended December
31, 2022 and cquity as at December 31, 2022 would have decressed /fincreased by
approximately. AED 0071 million (2021 decrease/ increase by AED 0,39 million).

Eguity price risk:

The Group's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by
the Group and classified in the consolidated statement of financial position either as
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH (note 5) or at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL) (note 5). To manage its price risk ariging from
Investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio,

Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits sei by ihe
group. The majority of the group's equity investments are publicly traded.

Sensitivity analysis

Al the reporting date if the cquity prices are 20% higher/ lower as per the
assumptions mentioned below and all the other variables were held constant. the
Ciroup's consolidated stalements of income and comprehensives income would have
increased/decreased by AED 6.30 million and by AED 21.46 million, respectively
(2021, AED 8.34 million and by AED 34.80 million, respectively).

Method and assumptions for sensitivity analysis:

— The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposure to equity price risk
as at the reporting date. ;

— As at the reporting date if equity prices are 200 higher/lower on the market

value uniformly for all equities while all other variables are held constani, the

impact on profit or loss and other comprehensive income has been shown
above,

= A 20% change in equity prices has been used to give a realistic assessment ac a
plausible event,

-4t
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13, RISK MANAGEMENT: (continued...)
¢) Credit risk managemeni:

Credit nsk refers 10 the risk thet a counter party will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group, The Group has adopted a policy of
only dealing with creditworthy counterparties az a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties arc continuously monitored, and the agpregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by
counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the management annually.

Trade receivables consist of a number of customers. On-going credit evaluation is
performed on the financial condition of rade receivables, Further details of eredit risks
on trade and other receivables and shon-term deposits are disclosed in Notes 7 and §

respectively.

The eredit risk associsted with the Group's trade receivables (note 7) is considered
limited as the Group holds receivables amounting 10 AED 29.89 million (2021: AED
27.28 million) fully covered by unconditional bank guarantees and letters of eredit to
secure the collectability of these trade receivables.

Other financial assets represent investments carmied ai fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCT) and investments carried at fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL), where all their investments are listed equity securities as ai
December 31, 2022 (Note 25).

Credit risk with respect to concentration of trade receivables by geographical area is

follows:
2022 2021
AED AED
United Arab Emirates 17,713,198 22,490,797
Other GCC countries 6,852,068 6,110,525
(Other countries 12887181 15,503,599
Total 47,452,447 44,104,921
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13. RISK MANAGEMENT: (continued,..)
d} Liguidity risk:

Liquidity risk also referred 1o as funding risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments
Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its
fair value. The Group liquidity risk is the availability of funds w cover future

commitments. The Group manages liquidity through an ongoing review of future
commitments.

The Group considers expected cash flows from finaneinl assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk, in particular its cash resources and trade receivables.

The Group non-derivative financial liabilities have contractual maturities as
summanzed below:

Liess than one More than

year Ome Year
AED AED

As at December 31, 2022

Employees” end of service benefits - 10,485,524
Trade and other payables 83,282 886 -
As at December 31, 2021

Bank borrowings 22,500,000 50,511,745
Employees' end of service benefits - 9,261,158
Trade and other payables 81,126,111 -
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5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants al the measuremeni date. As such,
differences can arise between book values and the fair value estimates.

The following table provides an analysis of financial and non-finencial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value. grouped imto level 1 10 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable;

* Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),

* Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the assel
or liahility, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(level 2).

* Inputs for the assets or liability that are not hased on observahle market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Level 1 Level 2 vel 3 Tatal
December 31,2022 AED AED AED AED
FYTOCI
Quoted equitics 107,312,273 - - 17,312,273
FVTPL
Cucted equities 31,504,588 - - 31,504,588
I - Dt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2021 AED AED AED AED
FYTOC]
Quoted equities 173,974,245 : - 173974,245
FVTPL
Cuoted equities 41,951,275 - - 41,951,275

Iiiﬂiﬂﬂ- - - 1159 1]
_— =
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26. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION:
In presenting information on the basis of geographical area, revenue is based on
geographical location of customers.
1023 2021
AED AED
United Arab Emirates 95935302 102,361,891
Other GCC countries 38,031,522 41,211,224
[mchia 91,527,256 70,069,259
Jardan 1,360,184 | 669,349
Yemen 1,761,090 2,534,198
(Other countries 19,053,039 21.963 125
Tuotal — Exhibit B - | M?ﬁ&?ﬂ 239.809.046

iy IAL CONTRIBUTION:

The social contribution (including donation and charity) made during the year amounted to
AED 240,000 (2021: 245,000).

18, ATE

During the year ended December 31. 2022 the Management decided to reciify
misstatements and the fullowing restatements were made for prior year consolidated

financial statements. There was no effect an the performance of the Group as a result of
below restatements,

As previously
re Bﬁmltg_]gun As restated
Account description AED AED AED
Property, plam and equipment (cost) 830,594,293 3,914,370 834508 663
Property, plant  and equipment
(Accumulated deprecistion) (316,682,285) (3.914,370)  (320,596,655)

-
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19. CORPORATE TAX:

Un 3 October 2022, the United Arab Emirates (UAE) Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) issued
Federal Decree-Law No. 47 of 2022 on the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses,
Corporate Tax Law (“CT Law™) to implement a new CT regime in the UAE. The new C'T
regime is applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2023,

Generally, UAE businesses will be subject 1o a 9% CT rate, however o rate of 0% could be
applied 1o taxable income not cxceeding a particular threshold or to certain types of
entities, 10 be prescribed by way of a Cabinet Decision,

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these laws and regulations and will apply
the requirements as further guidance is provided by the relevant tax authorities,

. C IVE FIGURES:

Comparative figures have been reclassified in accordance with IAS | ‘Presentation of
financial statements’ in order to conform 1o the presentation for the current year,

Consolidated statement of financial position

* Cerain provisions for inventories of AED 13,456,365 had been presented in other
provisions under Trade and other payables. As at December 31, 2022, these provisions
were classified along with Allowances for slow-moving inventories resulting in
increase of Allowances for slow-moving inventories from AED 17.896.397 0 AED
31,342,762,

* Cerlain advances of AED 688,586 were previously classified as a reduction from trade

receivables, These advances were reclassified to advances from customer under trade
and other payahles,

The above chanpes had an effeci only on the total assets and total liabilities reporied

previously and had no effect on previously reported total equity, net profit for the VEAr or
net changes in cash and cash equivalents,

| ¥
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{Announcement of intent to make an acquisition offer)
UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
|a company incorporated in the Jebel Ali Free Zone {IAFZA), United Arab Emirates)
Cammercial Registration Number 132239

ANNOUNCES ITS INTENTION TO MAKE A PARTIAL OFFER TO ACQUIRE 31.6% OF THE IS5UED AND PaID-
UP ORDIMARY SHARE CAPITAL OF RAS AL KHAIMAH CO, FOR WHITE CEMENT & CONSTRUCTION
PAATERIALS

27 May, 1024
DISCLAIMER STATEMENT

THE SECURITIES AND COMMODITIES AUTHORITY [THE "SCA") AND THE ABLI DHABISECURITIES EXCHANGE
{THE “ADX"] SHALL NOT BEAR ANY LIABILITY FOR THE CONTENT OF THIS ANNOUNCEMENT AND SHALL
NOT SUBMIT ANY CONFIRMATION IN RELATION TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETEMNESS THEREQF, AND
HERERY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIN THEMSELVES OF ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY LOSS ARISING FROM THE
CONTENT OF THIS DOCUMENT OR FROM RELYING ON ANY PART THEREQF.

STATEMENT FROM THE ACQUIRING PARTY "ULTRATECH CEMENT MIDDLE EAST INVESTMENTS
LipAITED™

ULTRATECH ACCEPTS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION COMTAINED IN THIS
ANNOUNCEMENT, THE INFORMATION CONTAIMED N THIS ANMOUNCEMENT FOR WHICH |IT 15
RESPONSIBLE IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FACTS.

Unless otherwise stated, terms defined in the SCA Rules shall have the same meaning in
this Announcement.

The Offer UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
("UltraTech” or “Acquiring Party”) notified the Board
of Directors of Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement &
Construction Materials PSC ("RAKWCT") on 27 May,
2024, that it intends to make a partial conditional cash
offer to acquire 158,049,610 shares lisied on the ADX,
representing 31.6% of the ordinary shares of the issued
and paid up share capital of RAKWCT in accordance
with Article 10 of Decision of the Chairman of SCA
Board of Directors No. (18 / RM) of 2017 concerning the
rules of acquisition and merger of public
shareholding companies  (“Takeover Code™) (the
"Offer"), subject to the fulfilment of the terms referred 1o

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
[# Epemgsany incorporated under JAFZA Offshone Companies Riglulations, a003)
(Bapsaralion Ko, 133239}
Bigistered offos: 0. Box 4421, Dubai, UAE, Tal: +5T1 4 J27 TR0 Fax Ma. 4371 £ 2733718
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in the Terms of the Qffer and the Conditions section
below,

If the number of RAKWCT Shares offered at the end of
the Offer Period is more than the specific number of
ghares set out in the Offer, UltraTech will acquire from all
the RAKWCT Sharcholders who have accepted the Offer
a number of RAKWCT Shares pro rata to the total
number of shares set out in the Offer. Fraction shares wrill
be adjusted to the benefit of minority RAKWCT

Sharcholders.

Under the terms of Article 6 of the Takeover Code and the
Offer, holders of shares in RAKWCT (excluding
UltraTech and its affiliates) that decide to accept the Offer
will be entitled to receive AED 1.15 in cash for each of
their shares in RAKWCT (the "Offer Price”).

The Offer Price may not be lower than the highest price
of the following:

a) The market price on the first day of the Offer.

b) The closing price prior to the first day of the Offer
commencement.

¢} The average price during the 3 months preceding
the start of the Offer.

d) The highest price paid by the Acquinng Party to
buy the shares during the 12 months preceding the
submission of the Offer.

Terms of the Offer The implementation ol the Offer will be subject to

and its Conditions

conditions which will be agreed and set out in an
implementation agreement to be entered into between
UltraTech and RAKWCT. Details of the Offer terms and

UltraTech Cement Middie East investments Limited
{4 Compary incorporated under LAFDA OFore Coimpanict Ragulations. 2003

|Higistration Bo. 132 250)

Registered oifice: PO Bog 8131, Duka, LAE, Tel 1 <871 4 237580 Fas Mo, 4571 4 273117115



Real identity of
UltraTech and its key
shareholders

Details of the shares

held by UltraTech
and its associated
group during the
term of

the acquisition

Details of the shares

subjeet of the offer
Irrevocable
obligations in
relation to
acceptance of the
Offer

Details of any

arrangements  with
RAKWCT which
may have a material
impact on the Offer
bty

ADITYA BIRLA
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conditions will be set out in an offer document to be
provided to RAKWCT on 27 May 2024,

As per paragraph 1 of Article 19 of the Takeover Code,
RAKWCT will appoint a financial adviser to prepare a
report and will inform the RAKWCT shareholders of the
outcomes and recommendations of the report.

UltraTech is & company incorporated and registered in the
Jebel Ali Free Zone (JAFZA), United Arab Emirates with
commercial registration number 132239 and is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of “UltraTech Cement Limited”,
incorporated in India.

As at the date of this Announcement, UltraTech had an
gwnership  interest representing  29.39%  (being
147,000,000 shares) of the shares in RAKWCT.

UltraTech (through an offer made to all shareholders of
RAKWCT) wishes to acquire 158,049,610 shares,
representing 31.6% of the ordinary shares of the issued
and paid up share capital of RAKWCT.

As at the date of this Announcement, UltraTech has not
sought or obtained any irrevocable undertakings pursuant
to which any RAKWCT shareholders undertook to
irrevocably accept the Offer,

As at the date of this Announcement, there are no
agreements entered into  between UlraTech and
RAKWOT in relation to the implementation of the Offer.

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
{4 Company incorporatsd under IWFIA Cffshera Companies Reguirtions. FLAEE]

R pistration Ko, 133239)

Regiterad olfice: POL Bow 443, Dukal, UAE, Tl - 497 4 I22IGE0 Faw Mo 4571 4 2]33TES



The arrangements
related to the
termination fees

The intentions, plans
and purpose of the
Transaction

lsgwed for and on behalf of

UltraTech Cement Middle East investments Limited

s,
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As at the date of this Announcement, UltraTech has not
entered into any arrangement or agreement with
RAKWCT in respect of termination fees in the event this
transaction does not complete.

By increasing its ownership percentage in the share
capital of RAKWCT, UltraTech wishes to better benefit
from its expertise in the field of white cement
manufacturing through expanding the business of
RAKWCT locally, regionally and globally, including
providing modern products such as wall care putty and
other new products.

K"

Milesh Garg

Board Member

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
|4 Compary iecerpionated under JAFTA Offchone Companies s pulations, 2002

{Reglatration Mo, 133233]

Hegigtandd office: PG o #4721, Dubak, LIGE, Ted 1 #0714 2227580 Fan Mo, 4571 4 2133715



THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you should seek your own independent financial advice immediately
from an independent financial adviser who is licensed by the SCA.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your RAKWCT Shares (other than pursuant to the Offer), please send this document at once
to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, broker, or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for delivery to the
purchaser or transferee. However, the foregoing documents must not be forwarded or transmitted in or into any Restricted
Jurisdiction (as defined below) or in or into any jurisdiction where to do so would constitute a violation of the relevant laws in
that jurisdiction. If you have sold or transferred only part of your holding of RAKWCT Shares, you should retain this document and consult
your professional adviser.

This Document has been prepared based on the provisions of the Decision of the Chairman of SCA No. (18 / RM) of 2017 regarding the
rules for acquisition and merger of public joint-stock companies and the Administrative Decision No. (62 / RT) of 2017 regarding the technical
requirements for acquisition and merger rules.

Capitalised terms in this UltraTech Offer Document shall have the meaning given to them in Annex VI (Definitions).

Offer Document

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited's conditional cash offer to acquire 31.6%
of the issued and paid-up ordinary share capital of Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement &
Construction Materials PSC for

AED 1.15 in cash for each RAKWCT Share
DISCLAIMER STATEMENT:

The SCA and the ADX shall not bear any responsibility for the content of this UltraTech Offer Document and shall not submit any
confirmation in relation to the accuracy or completeness thereof, and hereby expressly disclaim any responsibility for any loss arising from
the content of this offer document or from relying on any part thereof.

Offeror
UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

P.O. Box 4421, Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Legal adviser to Transaction Manager
the Offeror
Baker & McKenzie LLP ADCB

Baker
McKenzie.

445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS



RAKWCT Shareholders wishing to accept the Offer must contact their broker where their shares are deposited and instruct them
to place their Sell Order as a good till canceled order with a limited price equating the Offer Price no later than 2.00 pm on 24 June
2024 (or such later date as may be notified by UltraTech to RAKWCT).

Submission of the Sell Order shall be construed as acceptance of the Offer. Further guidance on the procedures for acceptance
of the Offer and placing the Sell Order are set out in this UltraTech Offer Document.

This UltraTech Offer Document is dated 27 May 2024.

il

445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS



ULTRATECH'S DECLARATION
1 Responsibility

UltraTech and its Board of Directors are fully responsible for the validity and accuracy of the information contained in this
document. The information contained in this document for which it is responsible is in accordance with the facts and does not
intentionally omit or ignore any material fact likely to affect the importance or completeness of such information within this
UltraTech Offer Document and there are no material facts that have been omitted or left out, and the Board of Directors of
Ultratech Cement Middle East Investments Limited has acted in good faith in preparing this document.

iii
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TO ACCEPT THE OFFER

RAKWCT Shareholders wishing to accept the Offer must contact their broker where their shares are deposited and
instruct them to place their Sell Order as a good till cancelled order with a limited price equating the Offer Price no later
than 2.00 pm on 24 June 2024 (or such later date as may be notified by UltraTech to RAKWCT).

Submission of the Sell Order shall be construed as acceptance of the Offer. Further guidance on the procedures
for acceptance of the Offer and placing the Sell Order are set out in this UltraTech Offer Document. If you have any
questions relating to the procedure for acceptance of the Offer, please contact the Transaction Manager on
+97128126481 between 8.00 A.M. and 4.00 P.M. from Monday to Friday or at CapitalMarketsTeam@adcb.com,
or you may contact your broker. The Transaction Manager cannot provide advice on the merits of the Offer nor
give any financial, legal or tax advice.

You are advised to read the whole of this document carefully.

THE OFFER CLOSING DATE IS 2.00 P.M. ON 24 JUNE 2024

445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS
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EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Event Date

Announcement to the Offer Monday, 27 May 2024

Dispatch of the UltraTech Offer Document Monday, 27 May 2024

to RAKWCT

Offer opening date Tuesday, 28 May 2024

Offer Closing Date 2.00 p.m. on Monday, 24 June 2024

Offer results announcement Tuesday, 25 June 2024

Settlement of the applications for Within a period not exceeding Thursday, July 18,
acceptance 2024, being: a period of 28 days (the closure of the

Offer Period) + 21 days (the period required to fulfill
all Offer Conditions, including holding the RAKWCT
GM) + 3 days (the period stipulated for settlement of
the consideration after all Conditions have been met).

445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

IMPORTANT: If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, it is recommended
that you seek your own independent financial advice from an independent financial
advisor who is licensed by SCA.

No person should construe the contents of this document as legal, financial or tax advice.
Overseas RAKWCT Shareholders

This document has been prepared in compliance with applicable laws and regulations of the
UAE and the information disclosed may not be the same as that which would have been
disclosed if this document had been prepared in accordance with the laws and/or regulations
of jurisdictions outside the UAE. The Offer is being made in relation to securities of a UAE
company and you should be aware that this document and any other documents relating to
the Offer have been or will be prepared in accordance with UAE disclosure requirements,
format and style, all of which may differ from those applicable in other jurisdictions.

The Offer is not being made, directly or indirectly, in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction
where to do so would violate the laws in that jurisdiction, and the Offer is not capable of
acceptance from or within a Restricted Jurisdiction. Accordingly, copies of this document and
any accompanying document are not being, and must not be, directly or indirectly, mailed or
otherwise forwarded, distributed or sent in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction where to do
so would violate the laws in that jurisdiction, and persons receiving this document and any
accompanying document (including custodians, nominees and trustees) must not mail or
otherwise distribute or send them in, into or from such jurisdictions as doing so may invalidate
any purported Sell Order. The availability of the Offer to RAKWCT Shareholders who are not
resident in the United Arab Emirates may be affected by the laws of the relevant jurisdictions
in which they are resident. Such persons should inform themselves about and observe any
applicable legal or regulatory requirements of their jurisdiction.

If you are a resident of the United States, please read the following:

The Offer is being made to acquire the securities of RAKWCT, a company incorporated and
registered in Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab Emirates, and is being made in the United States
in reliance on, and compliance with, the exemption from the US Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, afforded by Rule 14d-1(c), Section 14(e) and Regulation 14E thereunder.
The Offer shall be made in the United States by UltraTech and no one else.

The Offer is subject to the disclosure and procedural requirements of the United Arab Emirates,
which differ from those in the United States, including with respect to withdrawal rights and
offer timetable that are different from those applicable under US domestic tender offer
procedures and law. In addition, the payment and settlement procedure with respect to the
Offer shall comply with the relevant United Arab Emirates rules, which differ from United States
payment and settlement procedures, particularly with regard to the date of payment of
consideration. Neither the SEC, nor any securities commission of any state of the United
States, has approved the Offer, passed upon the fairness of the Offer or passed upon the
adequacy or accuracy of this document. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offence in the United States.

Financial information relating to RAKWCT included in this document has been prepared in
accordance with IFRS and other mandatory reporting requirements applicable in the UAE and
may not be comparable to financial information of US companies or companies whose
financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States.

445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS



It may be difficult for investors to enforce their rights and any claim they may have arising
under US federal securities laws, since UltraTech and RAKWCT are UAE companies, and
some or all of their officers and directors are residents of countries other than the United States.
Investors may not be able to sue a non-US company or its officers or directors in a non-US
court for violations of the US securities laws. It may be difficult to compel a non-US company
and its affiliates to subject themselves to a US court's judgment.

The receipt of cash pursuant to the Offer by a US holder of securities of RAKWCT may be a
taxable transaction for US federal income tax purposes and under applicable state and local,
as well as foreign and other tax laws. Each holder of securities of RAKWCT is urged to consult
his independent professional adviser immediately regarding the tax consequences of a Sell
Order.

Any person (including custodians, nominees and trustees) who would, or otherwise
intends to, or may have a contractual or legal obligation to forward this document to
any jurisdiction outside the United Arab Emirates, should read paragraph 5 of Section
Il (Further Terms of the Offer) to this UltraTech Offer Document before taking any action.

Information provided as at the date of this UltraTech Offer Document

Statements contained in this UltraTech Offer Document are made as at the date of this
UltraTech Offer Document, unless some other time is specified in relation to them, and the
publication of this document (or any action taken pursuant to it) shall not give rise to any
implication that there has been no change in the facts or affairs of RAKWCT as set out in this
UltraTech Offer Document since such date. UltraTech expressly disclaims any obligation to
update such statements other than as required by law or by the rules of any competent
regulatory authority, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

No representations

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representations other
than those contained in this document and, if given or made, such information or
representations must not be relied on as having been authorised by UltraTech or any of the
other advisers in connection with the Offer.

Publication on website

This document shall be available on RAKWCT's website at Investor Relations (rakcc.ae) by
the next Business Day in the UAE following the date of this UltraTech Offer Document.

Rounding

Certain figures included in this UltraTech Offer Document have been subjected to rounding
adjustments. Accordingly, figures shown for the same category presented in different tables
may vary slightly and figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic
aggregation of the figures that precede them.

Forward-looking statements

This UltraTech Offer Document (including information incorporated by reference in this
document), oral statements made regarding the Offer, and other information published by the
Offeror (or any of the Offeror's affiliates) contain statements which are, or may be deemed to
be, "forward-looking statements". Such forward-looking statements are prospective in nature
and are not based on historical facts, but rather on current expectations and on numerous
assumptions regarding the business strategies and the environment in which RAKWCT
operates in the future and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those expressed or implied by those statements. The forward-looking

445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS
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statements contained in this document relate to RAKWCT's future prospects, developments
and business strategies, expectations in relation to the timing of the Offer and the outcome of
various stages of the Transaction and other statements which are not historical facts. In some
cases, these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking

terminology, including the terms "believes", "estimates", "will look to", "would look to", "plans”,

"prepares", "anticipates", "expects", "is expected to", "is subject to", "budget", "scheduled",
"forecasts", "synergy", "strategy", "goal", "cost-saving", "projects", "intends", "may", "will",
"shall" or "should" or their negatives or other variations or comparable terminology. Forward-
looking statements may include statements relating to the following: (i) future capital
expenditures, expenses, revenues, earnings, synergies, economic performance,
indebtedness, financial condition, dividend policy, losses and future prospects; (ii) business
and management strategies; (iii) the effects of global economic conditions and governmental
regulation on UltraTech's or RAKWCT's business; and (iv) steps in the Transaction process
the outcome of which is dependent on third party acts / omission or otherwise beyond
UltraTech's control. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risk and uncertainty
because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may occur in the future.
These events and circumstances include changes in the global, political, economic, business,
competitive, market and regulatory forces, future exchange and interest rates, changes in tax
rates and/or regimes and future business combinations or disposals. If any one or more of
these risks or uncertainties materialises or if any one or more of the assumptions prove
incorrect, actual results may differ materially from those expected, estimated or projected.
Such forward-looking statements should therefore be construed in the light of such factors.
Neither UltraTech nor any of their respective associates or directors, officers or advisers,
provides any representation, assurance or guarantee that the occurrence of the events
expressed or implied in any forward-looking statements in this UltraTech Offer Document shall
actually occur. Given these risks and uncertainties, potential investors should not place any
reliance on forward-looking statements.

Presentation of financial and other information

RAKWCT's audited consolidated financial statements for the three years ended 31 December
2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 are prepared in accordance with IFRS. Save
where expressly stated otherwise, financial information incorporated by reference into this
document as set out in Annex || (RAKWCT's Financial Statements) is based on management
estimates and has not been independently verified by auditors or otherwise. Save as disclosed
otherwise, all financial information is set out in AED.

No profit (or loss) forecasts or estimates

No statement in this document is intended as a profit (or loss) forecast or profit (or loss)
estimate and no statement in this document should be interpreted to mean that earnings or
earnings per RAKWCT Share for the current or future financial years would necessarily match
or exceed the historical published earnings or earning per RAKWCT Share or to mean that
RAKWCT's earnings in the first 12 months following the Offer, or in any subsequent period,
would necessarily match or be greater than those of RAKWCT for the relevant preceding
financial period or any other period.

Language

This UltraTech Offer Document has been prepared in both English and Arabic. The English is
an unofficial English translation of the formal UltraTech Offer Document published in the Arabic
language.
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Definitions

Certain words and terms used in this UltraTech Offer Document are defined in Annex VI
(Definitions) of this UltraTech Offer Document.

Dates and time

All references to dates and times shown in this UltraTech Offer Document are to the Gregorian
calendar and UAE time, respectively, unless otherwise stated.

Date of publication
The date of publication of this UltraTech Offer Document is 27 May 2024.
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LETTER FROM ULTRATECH CEMENT MIDDLE EAST INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated and registered in JAFZA, UAE with commercial registration number 132239)
Monday, 27 May 2024
OFFER FOR YOUR SHARES IN RAKWCT
Dear RAKWCT Shareholder,

UltraTech is making a partial conditional cash offer to you, as a RAKWCT Shareholder, for the
shares you hold in RAKWCT in return for the payment in cash of AED 1.15 per RAKWCT
Share you hold in accordance with the process set out in this UltraTech Offer Document.

This UltraTech Offer Document has been prepared in connection with a conditional cash offer
(the "Offer") and is made by UltraTech (the "Offeror" or "UltraTech") in order to acquire 31.6%
of the issued and paid-up ordinary shares of RAKWCT (the "Offeree" or "RAKWCT") not
already held by UltraTech on the terms and conditions set out in this UltraTech Offer Document.

This Offer becomes unconditional only if the Conditions are fulfilled or waived, as set out in
paragraph 5 of Section | (General Information and Details of the Offer) of this UltraTech Offer
Document and has been constituted in compliance with applicable laws and/or regulations and
certain approvals and exemptions granted in respect of this Offer.

The Offer is in accordance with the procedure applied by the ADX and will be executed as
follows:

(a) the Shares of RAKWCT shall be traded in accordance with the trading rules applicable
to ADX;

(b) buy & sell orders will be placed on the “Negotiated Deal” board of ADX; whereby,
UltraTech’s buy order will be placed daily with ADCB Securities LLC, the brokerage
subsidiary of the Transaction Manager (‘“ADCBS”);

(c) Sell Orders will be placed on the “Negotiated Deal” board daily by a licensed broker;
(d) Sell Orders placed on the “Negotiated Deal” board of ADX are valid for one day only;

(e) ADX will consider Sell Orders placed on the “Negotiated Deal” board which are
consistent with the terms of this Offer; Sales Orders which are placed on the
“Negotiated Transactions” board but whose prices differ from the price shown in this
Offer Document will be cancelled;

(f) orders will only be entered during the Offer Period, with no execution until the closing
date/time of the Offer Period; and

(9) Sell Orders on the last day of the Offer Period shall be entered in the electronic trading
system starting 10:00 am until 2:00 pm of the same day without executing any such
order and the trading system shall proceed to the execution of these orders after trading
hours.

Background to and reasons for the Offer

On the same day of the announcement of Ultratech's intention to carry out an acquisition in
accordance with Article 22 of the Takeover Code, UltraTech will send to the board of directors
of RAKWCT this UltraTech Offer Document. UltraTech and RAKWCT will also enter into an
Implementation Agreement.

10
445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS



Within 14 days of receiving this Offer Document, the board of RAKWCT will dispatch to you
the RAKWCT Offeree Circular which UltraTech expects will contain the recommendation by
the board of RAKWCT to the RAKWCT Shareholders to accept this Offer and vote in favour
of the resolutions proposed at the RAKWCT GM in respect of this Offer.

If the number of RAKWCT Shares offered at the end of the Offer Period is more than the
specific number of shares set out in the Offer, UltraTech will acquire from all the RAKWCT
Shareholders who have accepted the Offer a number of RAKWCT Shares pro rata to the total
number of shares set out in the Offer. Fraction shares will be adjusted to the benefit of minority
RAKWCT Shareholders.

The intentions, plans and purpose of the Transaction

By increasing its ownership percentage in the share capital of RAKWCT, UltraTech wishes to
better benefit from its expertise in the field of white cement manufacturing through expanding
the business of RAKWCT locally, regionally and globally, including providing modern products
such as wall care putty and other new products.

Key benefits for RAKWCT Shareholders
Under the terms of the Offer, RAKWCT Shareholders will be entitled to receive:
AED 1.15 in cash for each RAKWCT Share (the "Offer Price")

The Offer Price may not be lower than the highest price of the following:

(a) The market price on the first day of the Offer.
(b
(c
(

~

The closing price prior to the first day of the Offer commencement.

~

The average price during the 3 months preceding the start of the Offer.

d) The highest price paid by the acquiring party to buy the shares during the 12 months
preceding the submission of the Offer.

Offer Conditions

The Offer will be subject to the fulfilment of the Conditions set out in paragraph 5 of Section |
(General Information and Details of the Offer) of this UltraTech Offer Document. Key
Conditions of the Offer include the passing of certain resolutions of the RAKWCT GM by the
RAKWCT Shareholders and the receipt of any required regulatory and statutory approvals.

If the RAKWCT GM is not held, none of the RAKWCT Shareholders will be entitled to receive
the Offer Price including those RAKWCT Shareholders who may have already submitted a
Sell Order to the broker.

Please refer to paragraph 5 of Section | (General Information and Details of the Offer) of this
UltraTech Offer Document for the complete list of Conditions.

Shareholder actions to be taken

RAKWCT Shareholders wishing to accept the Offer must contact their broker where their shares
are deposited and instruct them to place their Sell Order at the Offer Price no later than 2.00 pm
on 24 June 2024 (or such later date as may be notified by UltraTech to RAKWCT).

Submission of the Sell Order shall be construed as acceptance of the Offer. Further guidance
on the procedures for acceptance of the Offer and placing the Sell Order are set out in this
UltraTech Offer Document.
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By placing the Sell Order, the RAKWCT Shareholders would agree that they may be blocked
from trading by the ADX in respect of those RAKWCT Shares for which they have placed the
Sell Order.

As a RAKWCT Shareholder, you are encouraged to read this UltraTech Offer Document in full
and to attend the RAKWCT GM and, if you are in agreement with the Offer, vote in favour of the
resolutions proposed at the RAKWCT GM to support and accept this Offer, even if you have
successfully placed the Sell Order.

Yours faithfully,

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
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SECTION I: GENERAL INFORMATION AND DETAILS OF THE OFFER
1. Summary of the terms of the Offer

UltraTech offers to acquire (on the terms and subject to the Conditions set out in this UltraTech
Offer Document) 31.6% of the issued and paid-up share capital of RAKWCT for cash.

UltraTech and RAKWCT shall enter into an Implementation Agreement setting out the rights
and obligations of the parties as they relate to the Offer among other things. In particular,
UltraTech shall undertake to pay the Offer Price for the RAKWCT Shares which it acquires
pursuant to the Offer, subject to satisfaction of certain Conditions including those in paragraph
5 of this Section | (General Terms and Details of the Offer) below.

In consideration of the offer:

Under the terms of the Offer, holders of RAKWCT Shares (excluding UltraTech) shall receive
the following Offer Price:

AED 1.15 in cash for each RAKWCT Share

The offer price was determined in accordance with the provisions of Article (6) of the Takeover
Code which provides that the Offer Price may not be lower than the highest price of the
following:

(a) The market price on the first day of the Offer.
(b) The closing price prior to the first day of the Offer commencement.
(c) The average price during the 3 months preceding the start of the Offer.

(d) The highest price paid by the acquiring party to buy the shares during the 12 months
preceding the submission of the Offer.

The closing price of RAKWCT Shares, for the first day of each of the six months preceding the
date of publication of this UltraTech Offer Document is:

Date Closing Price (AED)
01/05/2024 0.98
01/04/2024 1.06
01/03/2024 1.15
01/02/2024 1.16
01/01/2024 1.14
01/12/2023 1.17
01/11/2023 1.18

The price of RAKWCT Shares on the last day preceding the commencement of the Offer
Period is AED 1.09 and on the last day available before the UltraTech Offer Document
publishing date is AED 0.97.

The Offer is to acquire RAKWCT Shares (which are not owned by UltraTech) that comprise
31.6% of RAKWCT's issued and paid up share capital as at the date of this UltraTech Offer
Document, being 158,049,610 RAKWCT Shares of a nominal value of AED 1.00 per share.

The total amount of the Offer, in respect of the RAKWCT Shares (being 158,049,610 ordinary
shares in RAKWCT) subject to this Offer, will be AED 181,757,052.

The RAKWCT Shares shall be acquired by UltraTech under the Offer on the basis that the
RAKWCT Shares are paid up and free from all liens, charges, equities, encumbrances, options,
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rights of pre-emption and any other third party rights and interests of any nature whatsoever
and together with all rights now and hereafter attaching or accruing to them, including, without
limitation, voting rights and the right to receive and retain in full all dividends and other
distributions (if any) declared, made or paid, or any other return of value (whether by reduction
of share capital or share premium account or otherwise) made, on or after the date of this
UltraTech Offer Document.

The Offer shall be subject to the Conditions and further terms set out or referred to in
paragraph 5 of this Section | (General Terms and Details of the Offer) to this UltraTech Offer
Document.

If the number of RAKWCT Shares offered at the end of the Offer Period is more than the
specific number of shares set out in the Offer, UltraTech will acquire from all the RAKWCT
Shareholders who have accepted the Offer a number of RAKWCT Shares pro rata to the total
number of shares set out in the Offer. With rounding of fractions to the benefit of minority
RAKWCT Shareholders.

On 25 June 2024 (being the day following the Offer closing date), UltraTech will announce the
acceptance results of the Offer provided that all Conditions, requirements and approvals
related to the Offer are met, so that the offer becomes unconditional in all respects. UltraTech
will, within a period not exceeding Thursday, July 18, 2024 (being: a period of 28 days (the
closure of the Offer Period) + 21 days (the period required to fulfill all Offer Conditions,
including holding the RAKWCT GM) + 3 days (the period stipulated for settlement of the
consideration after all Conditions have been met)), settle the consideration due to the
accepting RAKWCT Shareholders through payment by ADX of the cash consideration to the
broker who submitted the Sell Order who will in turn make the payment into each accepting
RAKWCT Shareholder respective account with them.

2, Information on RAKWCT (the "Target Company")

Detail of RAKWCT key financial information for the last 3 years is outlined below. Please refer
to RAKWCT's audited consolidated financial statements for the three years ended 31
December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 as attached in Annex Il for further

information.
(Amount in AED)
2021 2022 2023

Sales 239,809,046 247,668,393 255,898,035
Net profit before tax 32,871,759 21,086,397 20,543,520
Tax Paid Nil Nil Nil
Net Profit after tax 32,871,759 21,086,397 20,543,520
Net Profit including
comprehensive income 64,145,813 41,244 921 14,080,349
Exceptional Items Nil Nil Nil
Minority Interest Nil Nil Nil
Dividend paid (related to
previous year) 25,007,850 50,015,700 Nil
Profit for each share 0.07 0.04 0.04

The list of the assets and liabilities based on the interim condensed consolidated statement of
financial position commencing on 31 December 2023 and ended in 31 March 2024, the cash
flow statement for the three-month period ended March 2024, and the statement of profit or
loss for the three-month period ended March, 2024, are as attached in Annex Il
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There have been no material changes to the financial or commercial position of the RAKWCT
Shares after the latest audited financial statements published.

The sales, net profits or losses, and any exceptional items, minority interests, and the total
amount of dividends, proceeds, and profits for each share announced in the initial
announcement or initial financial statements issued since the publishing of the latest audited
financial statements are detailed below:

(Amount in AED)

3 months ended March 2024

Sales 63,039,599
Net profit before tax 14,318,196
Tax Paid 1,193,634
Net Profit after tax 13,124,562
Net Profit including comprehensive income 9,632,211
Exceptional Items Nil
Minority Interest Nil
Dividend paid (related to previous year) Nil
Profit for each share (annualized) 0.10

There have also been no amendments to the accounting policy of list of RAKWCT since the
publishing of the latest audited financial statements.

3. Information on UltraTech (the "Offeror")

UltraTech is a company incorporated and registered in the Jebel Ali Free Zone (JAFZA), Jebel
Ali, United Arab Emirates with commercial registration number 132239 and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of UltraTech Cement Limited, incorporated in India. The ownership structure of
UltraTech and its associated group is attached in Annex IV.

There have been no dealings of RAKWCT shares by UltraTech or its associated group during
the six months preceding the date of this UltraTech Offer Document.

Given the Offer is an offer of cash consideration, RAKWCT Shareholders will not be issued
shares in UltraTech and therefore any accepting RAKWCT Shareholder will not be affected
by future profits or losses or changes to the assets or business of UltraTech.

4, Financing of the Offer and cash confirmation

The source of financing for the cash consideration payable in full under the Offer is
credit/financing from Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank in the United Arab Emirates which is
licensed by the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates.

A copy of the certificate confirming the availability of the cash consideration with UltraTech to
implement the Offer and fulfill the full cash consideration for the Offer is attached in Appendix
V.

5. Conditions to the Offer

The Offer is subject to the Conditions and further terms set out below and in Section Il (Further
Terms of the Offer) to this UltraTech Offer Document, which include:
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(a) receipt of all required governmental, corporate, regulatory and statutory approvals,
exemptions and/or waivers in connection with the Transaction, including receipt of the
final written approval(s) of the SCA in relation to the Offer;

(b) provision by RAKWCT of all of the information required or requested by the SCA in
relation to the Transaction;

(c) dispatch of the RAKWCT Offeree Circular by RAKWCT to the RAKWCT Shareholders
(and no subsequent revocation of or change to the recommendation by the board of
directors of RAKWCT to the RAKWCT Shareholders to accept the Offer and vote in
favour of the relevant resolutions at the RAKWCT GM);

(d) the RAKWCT Shareholders passing the requisite resolutions in relation to the Offer at
the RAKWCT GM;

(e) no Material Adverse Effect having occurred prior to the satisfaction of all the Conditions,
requirements and approvals related to the Offer;

) obtaining the approval of the Ministry of Economy with regards to the Offer; and

(9) obtaining any necessary approvals required from any third parties pursuant to any
commercial contracts of RAKWCT.

6. Tax

The tax consequences for RAKWCT Shareholders pursuant to the transaction contemplated
by the Offer depend upon the shareholders' individual circumstances. RAKWCT Shareholders
should therefore consult their own tax advisers as to the particular tax consequences on them
of accepting the Offer.

7. Rights of the RAKWCT Shareholders

All RAKWCT Shareholders will have equal rights and liabilities arising from, or in relation to,
the Offer.

8. Accuracy and fairness standards

The highest accuracy and fairness standards were observed in the content of this UltraTech
Offer Document.

9. Recommendation or Opinion of a Financial Advisor

In accordance with Article 19(1) of the Takeover Code, RAKWCT will appoint an independent
financial advisor to prepare a financial study with regards to the Offer to be presented to the
shareholders of RAKWCT.
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SECTION II: FURTHER TERMS OF THE OFFER

The following further terms apply, unless the context otherwise requires, to the Offer. Except
where the context requires otherwise, any reference in this Section Il (Further Terms of
the Offer):

to the "Offer" shall mean the Offer and any revision, variation or renewal thereof or
extension thereto and shall include any election available in connection with it;

to "acceptances of the Offer" shall include deemed acceptances of the Offer and
placement of Sell Orders; and

to the "UltraTech Offer Document" shall mean this document and any other document
published by UltraTech and stated to constitute a UltraTech Offer Document containing
details of, the Offer.

1. ACCEPTANCE PERIOD

(a)

(e)

The Offer will initially be open for acceptance until 2.00 p.m. on the Offer Closing Date.
UltraTech reserves the right (but shall not be obliged, other than as may be required
by the SCA) at any time or from time to time to extend the Offer Period beyond that
time and to make consequential changes to other dates referred to in this UltraTech
Offer Document, subject to the approval of the SCA. If UltraTech exercises such right,
it shall make an announcement stating the revised Offer Period.

Following the Offer Closing Date, UltraTech will not receive any sell orders from
RAKWCT Shareholders who have not accepted the Offer by the Offer Closing Date.

A Sell Order may be withdrawn by a RAKWCT Shareholder once submitted to the
broker.

RAKWCT Shareholders who have accepted the Offer may withdraw their acceptance
of the Offer after a period of 14 days from the Offer Closing Date in the event that the
Offer does not acheive its minimum number of acceptance applications during the Offer
Period or the period specified by SCA.

Although no revision is contemplated, if the Offer is revised (in its original or previously
revised form(s) and either in its terms or conditions or in the value or form of the
consideration offered or otherwise), the benefit of the revised offer shall be made
available to a RAKWCT Shareholder who has accepted the Offer. UltraTech reserves
the right to treat a Sell Order relating to the Offer (in its original or any previously revised
form(s)) which is received by the broker after the announcement or issue of any revised
offer as a valid acceptance of the revised offer.

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Following the Offer Closing Date, UltraTech shall make an announcement in the UAE stating
the number of RAKWCT Shares, respectively, and specifying the total number of shares for
which the Offer has been accepted.

3. GENERAL

(a)

The Offer will lapse unless all the conditions set out in paragraph 5 of Section | (General
Information and Details of the Offer) have been fulfilled by midnight on 19 July 2024 or
such later date as UltraTech may decide (subject to the approval of the SCA) and if
UltraTech exercises such right it shall make an announcement stating such date.
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(b) Settlement of the consideration to which any RAKWCT Shareholder is entitled under
the Offer will be implemented in full in accordance with the terms of the Offer without
regard to any lien, right of set-off, counterclaim or other analogous right to which
UltraTech may otherwise be, or claim to be, entitled as against such RAKWCT
Shareholder.

(c) The Offer Price shall be the only amount payable by UltraTech in connection with the
acceptance of this Offer and the placement of the Sell Order. For the avoidance of
doubt, neither UltraTech nor any member of the UltraTech Group will be responsible
for any taxes, costs or expenses that a RAKWCT Shareholder may incur in connection
therewith, including, but not limited to, any costs of any advisers and/or brokers, any
banks charges or any costs / losses / taxes incurred in relation to the conversion of the
Offer Price into a foreign currency or otherwise.

(d) The Offer, this document, and all elections thereunder or pursuant thereto and all
contracts or Sell Orders made pursuant thereto and action taken or made or deemed
to be taken or made under any of the foregoing shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with UAE Federal Law. The making of an Sell Order by a RAKWCT
Shareholder will constitute the making by such shareholder of the representations,
warranties and agreements in relation to all matters arising out of or in connection with
the Offer and the acceptance, to the jurisdiction of the Courts of Abu Dhabi and his
agreement that nothing shall limit the rights of UltraTech to bring any action, suit or
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the Offer and acceptance in any other
manner permitted by law or in any court of competent jurisdiction.

(e) Any accidental omission to dispatch this document or any notice required to be given
under the terms of the Offer to, or any failure to receive the same by, any person to
whom the Offer is made or should be made shall not invalidate the Offer in any way or
create any implication that the Offer has not been made to any such person.

(f) UltraTech reserves the right to treat acceptances of the Offer and/or elections pursuant
thereto as valid if received by or on behalf of either of them at any place or places orin
any manner determined by them otherwise than as stated herein.

(9) The Offer extends to any RAKWCT Shareholders other than overseas shareholders to
whom this document, and any related documents, may not have been dispatched or
by whom such documents may not be received and such shareholders may obtain
copies of those documents at RAKWCT's website at Investor Relations (www.rakcc.ae).
UltraTech reserves the right to notify any matter in relation to this Offer, including the
making of the Offer, to all or any RAKWCT Shareholders with a registered address
outside the UAE (or whom UltraTech knows to be nominees, trustees or custodians for
such persons) by announcement in the UAE or paid advertisement in a daily
newspaper published and circulated in the UAE, in which event such notice shall be
deemed to have been sufficiently given notwithstanding any failure by a RAKWCT
Shareholder to receive such notice and all references in this document to notice, or the
provision of information in writing, by UltraTech, and/or its respective agent and/or
public relations consultants shall be construed accordingly.

(h) The Offer is made on 27 May 2024 and is capable of acceptance from and after 28
May 2024. The Offer is being made by means of this document, after the SCA's
approval.

(i) UltraTech reserves the right to make such alterations, additions or modifications as
may be necessary or desirable to give effect to any purported acceptance of the Offer.
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()] All references in this document to any statute or statutory provision shall include a
statute or statutory provision which amends, consolidates or replaces the same
(whether before or after the date hereof).

(k) Any RAKWCT Shareholder who has pledged or otherwise subjected his RAKWCT
Shares to any form of security or attachment (such as a court order) must contact the
bank or entity in whose favour the RAKWCT Shares have been pledged or any other
security over the shares has been granted or attached and obtain written clearance
from that bank or entity to transfer those RAKWCT Shares to UltraTech. The written
clearance (or a certified copy thereof) must be lodged with the Sell Order, otherwise,
those RAKWCT Shares may not be transferred to UltraTech and the Offer may not
have been accepted in respect of such RAKWCT Shares.

)] If a RAKWCT Shareholder lodges a Sell Order with a broker in respect of RAKWCT
Shares, it may not subsequently transfer any or all of its RAKWCT Shares to a third
party prior to the Offer Closing Date.

4. If you have accepted the Offer and placed a Sell Order in accordance with the terms of the
UltraTech Offer Document, UltraTech will, within a period not exceeding Thursday, July 18,
2024 (being: a period of 28 days (the closure of the Offer Period) + 21 days (the period required
to fulfill all Offer Conditions, including holding the RAKWCT GM) + 3 days (the period stipulated
for settlement of the consideration after all Conditions have been met)), settle the cash
consideration due to you pursuant to this Offer through payment by ADX of the cash
consideration to the broker who submitted the Sell Order who will in turn make the payment
into your respective account with them.

5. OVERSEAS RAKWCT SHAREHOLDERS

(a) RAKWCT Shareholders in Restricted Jurisdictions should inform themselves about
and observe any applicable legal requirements. It is the responsibility of any such
shareholders wishing to accept the Offer to satisfy themselves as to the full observance
of the laws of the relevant jurisdiction in connection therewith, including the obtaining
of any governmental, exchange control or other consents which may be required, the
compliance with other necessary formalities and the payment of any issue, transfer or
other taxes or duties due in such jurisdiction. Any such shareholder will be responsible
for any issue, transfer or other taxes or other requisite payments by whomsoever
payable and UltraTech, and any person acting on its behalf, shall be fully indemnified
and held harmless by such shareholder for any such issue, transfer or other taxes or
other requisite payments as UltraTech, and any person acting on its behalf may be
required to pay. If you are a RAKWCT Shareholder resident in a Restricted Jurisdiction
and you are in any doubt about your position, you should consult your professional
adviser in your relevant jurisdiction.

In particular, unless otherwise determined by UltraTech and permitted by applicable
law and regulation, the Offer is not being made, directly or indirectly, in or into or by the
use of the mail, or by any means or instrumentality (including, without limitation, telex,
facsimile transmission, telephone, internet or other forms of electronic communication)
of interstate or foreign commerce, or by any facilities of a national securities exchange
of, a Restricted Jurisdiction and the Offer cannot be accepted by any such use, means
or instrumentality or otherwise from or within a Restricted Jurisdiction. Accordingly, this
document, and any accompanying document are not being, and must not be mailed or
otherwise forwarded, distributed or sent in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction to any
resident or national of a Restricted Jurisdiction, including (without limitation) to
RAKWCT Shareholders with registered addresses in a Restricted Jurisdiction or to
persons whom UltraTech knows to be trustees, nominees or custodians holding
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RAKWCT Shares for such persons. Persons receiving such documents (including,
without limitation, trustees, nominees or custodians) must not distribute, send or mail
them in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction or to any resident or national of a
Restricted Jurisdiction, or use any such instrument for any purpose directly or indirectly
in connection with the Offer and so doing may invalidate any related purported
acceptance of the Offer. Persons wishing to accept the Offer must not use mails of a
Restricted Jurisdiction or any such means or instrumentality for any purpose directly or
indirectly related to acceptance of the Offer or such election.

(b) Neither UltraTech nor any agent or adviser or general manager of UltraTech or any
person acting on its behalf shall have any liability to any person for any loss or alleged
loss arising from any decision as to the treatment of acceptances of the Offer, pursuant
to the provisions of this paragraph 5 of this Section Il (Further Terms of the Offer) or
otherwise in connection therewith.

(c) If, in connection with the making of the Offer, notwithstanding the restrictions described
above, any person (including, without limitation, custodians, nominees and trustees),
whether pursuant to a contractual or legal obligation or otherwise, forwards this
document or any related offering documents in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction or
uses the mail of or any means or instrumentality (including without limitation facsimile
transmission, electronic mail or telephone) of interstate or foreign commerce of, or any
facility of a national securities exchange of, a Restricted Jurisdiction in connection with
such forwarding, such person should: (i) inform the recipient of such fact; (ii) explain to
the recipient that such action may invalidate any purported acceptance by the recipient;
and (iii) draw the attention of the recipient to this paragraph 5 of this Section Il (Further
Terms of the Offer).
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ANNEX I:
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. Interests and Dealings
(a) Interests in RAKWCT Shares
As at the date of this Offer Document:

(i) UltraTech had an ownership interest representing 29.39% (being 147,000,000 shares)
of the shares in RAKWCT.

(i) The directors of the board of directors of UltraTech do not have an ownership interest
of 5% or more in RAKWCT Shares.

(iii) No persons acting in agreement with UltraTech owns or controls an ownership interest
of 5% or more in RAKWCT Shares.

2. Arrangements

Save as disclosed in this document, there are no agreements entered into between UltraTech
(or any person acting in agreement with UltraTech) and RAKWCT in relation to the
implementation of this Offer.

UltraTech and RAKWCT shall enter into an Implementation Agreement setting out the rights
and obligations of the parties as they relate to the Offer (among other things).

3. Documents available on website

Copies of the following documents shall be made available on RAKWCT's website at Investor
Relations (www.rakcc.ae) until the end of the Offer:

3.1 the Announcement;
3.2 this UltraTech Offer Document;

3.3 annual reports of RAKWCT for the years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2023 (see Annex Il for relevant web addresses); and

34 the RAKWCT Offeree Circular and the notice of the RAKWCT GM.

The content of the website referred to in this document is not incorporated into and does not
form part of this document.
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ANNEXII:
RAKWCT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table sets out financial information in respect of RAKWCT. The documents referred to
in the table are incorporated into this document by reference. If you are reading this document in hard
copy, please enter the web addresses below in your web browser to be brought to the relevant
document. If you are reading this document in soft copy, please click on the web addresses below to
be brought to the relevant document.

Information incorporated by  Source of Web Address
reference into this UltraTech Information
Offer Document

Financial statements for the RAKWCT https://adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdo
year ending 31 December 2021 wnload.aspx?doc=2488506
Financial statements for the RAKWCT https://adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdo
year ending 31 December 2022 wnload.aspx?doc=2821825
Financial statements for the RAKWCT https://adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdo
year ending 31 December 2023 wnload.aspx?doc=3042647
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https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdownload.aspx?doc=3042647__;!!Hj9Y_P0nvg!QI_pO-vW9OxgJUOO7AAisjspjlxiig6JYlenR3bizhxe0l7FZKzHkxmjPOqzqnjSFIfFl_5nAIIYVKnkgWT24g3BcnkEHF54$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdownload.aspx?doc=3042647__;!!Hj9Y_P0nvg!QI_pO-vW9OxgJUOO7AAisjspjlxiig6JYlenR3bizhxe0l7FZKzHkxmjPOqzqnjSFIfFl_5nAIIYVKnkgWT24g3BcnkEHF54$

Annex lll

List of the Assets and Liabilities & Cash Flow Statement

1. Assets and Liabilities
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2. Cash Flow Statement
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3. Profit and Loss Statement
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Annex IV

UltraTech Ownership Structure
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Annex V

Cash Confirmation from Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank
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AED
ADCBS

Announcement

Business Day

Companies Law

Conditions

ADX
ADX CSD

GM

Governmental Body

Group

IFRS

Implementation Agreement

Legal Adviser

Material Adverse Effect
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ANNEX VI
DEFINITIONS

the UAE dirham, being the lawful currency of the UAE
means ADCB Securities LLC

the announcement dated 27 May 2024 of UltraTech's intention
to make an offer for RAKWCT pursuant to Article 24 of the
Takeover Code

any day, other than Saturdays, Sundays or public holidays in
the UAE, on which banks are normally open for business in
Dubai

UAE Federal Decree-Law No. 32 of 2021 concerning
commercial companies of the UAE (as amended)

the conditions of the Offer set out in paragraph 5 of Section |
(General Information and Details of the Offer) to this document,
and Condition means any one of them

The Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange

means the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange Clearing,
Settlement and Depository

a general meeting of RAKWCT Shareholders

any government, government department, or governmental,
quasi-governmental, supranational, statutory, regulatory,
environmental or investigative body, institution or authority
(including any competition or merger control body)

in relation to a party, its holding companies (excluding, in the
case of RAKWCT, UltraTech) and subsidiaries (excluding, in
the case of UltraTech, RAKWCT) and any subsidiary of any
such holding company from time to time

International Financial Reporting Standards

the implementation agreement to be entered into between
UltraTech and RAKWCT setting out the rights and obligations
of the parties in connection with the Transaction

Baker & McKenzie LLP, being UltraTech’s legal adviser to the
UAE, English and US law in respect of the Offer

means any event, occurrence or change in circumstances
occurring after this UltraTech Offer Document which
individually, or when aggregated with all such other events,
occurrences or changes, has or could reasonably be expected
to: (i) have a material adverse effect on the business, assets,
liabilities, financial position, profitability or prospects of (as
applicable) RAKWCT Group (taken as a whole); or (ii) directly
prevent or materially impede or delay (where such delay would
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UltraTech
UltraTech Group

UltraTech Offer Document

Offer

Offer Closing Date

Offer Completion

Offeror
Offer Period

Offer Price

Overseas RAKWCT
Shareholders

RAKWCT

RAKWCT GM
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reasonably be expected to result in the Completion Date not
taking place on or prior to an agreed long-stop date) the
consummation of the Transaction (including any court or
regulatory authority order or direction, or other form of valid
objection to the Transaction or completion of any of the
Conditions, preventing or impacting the Transaction, its
implementation or any of the steps (as set out in this
Agreement) required to effect completion of the Transaction

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

UltraTech and its holding companies and subsidiaries
(excluding RAKWCT) and any subsidiary of any such holding
company from time to time

this offer document (and any subsequent offer document)
issued by UltraTech containing or amending the terms and
conditions of the Offer

the offer, made by UltraTech, to acquire 158,049,610 shares,
representing 31.6% of the issued and paid up ordinary shares
of RAKWCT (not already owned by UltraTech) to be settled in
cash at the Offer Price and on the terms and subject to the
Conditions set out in this document and including, where the
context permits, any subsequent revision, variation, extension
or renewal of such offer

24 June 2024 (or as otherwise notified by UltraTech to
RAKWCT)

completion of this Offer being the transfer and re-registration of
the relevant RAKWCT Shares (subject to a valid acceptance
and Sell Order in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this UltraTech Offer Document) to UltraTech

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

the period beginning on and including 28 May 2024 and ending
on the earlier of: (a) 24 June 2024; (b) the date on which the
Offer lapses or is withdrawn; and (c) such other date as the
SCA may decide

AED 1.15 per RAKWCT Share

RAKWCT Shareholders (or nominees of, or custodians or
trustees for RAKWCT Shareholders) not resident in, or
nationals or citizens of the United Arab Emirates

Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction
Materials PSC, a public joint stock company incorporated in the
Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah in the United Arab Emirates, having
its registered office address at PO Box 1492, Ras Al Khaimah,
United Arab Emirates

the general assembly meeting of RAKWCT to be convened in
connection with the Offer
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RAKWCT Offeree Circular

RAKWCT Shareholders

RAKWCT Shares

Restricted Jurisdiction

SCA
SEC
Sell Order

Takeover Code

Transaction

Transaction Manager

United Arab Emirates or UAE
United States or US

US Securities Exchange Act of
1934
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the offeree circular prepared by RAKWCT in accordance with
applicable law, including the recommendation of the board of
directors of RAKWCT to the RAKWCT Shareholders in
connection with the Offer

holders of RAKWCT Shares that appear on RAKWCT's share
register from time to time

the unconditionally issued and paid-up ordinary shares of a
nominal value of AED 1.00 each in the capital of RAKWCT

any jurisdiction where extension or acceptance of the Offer
would violate the law of that jurisdiction

the Securities and Commodities Authority of the UAE
the US Securities and Exchange Commission

means the deposit of the sell order at the Offer Price
by a RAKWCT Shareholder wishing to accept the
Offer with the broker where their shares are
deposited which shall be deemed an acceptance of
the Offer

the Decision of the Chairman of SCA Board of Directors No.
(18 / R.M.) of 2017 concerning the rules of acquisition and
merger of public shareholding companies

the completion of the Offer
the Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank PJSC
the United Arab Emirates

the United States of America, its territories and possessions,
any state of the United States of America, the District of
Columbia and all other areas subject to its jurisdiction and any
political sub-division thereof

the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as
amended) and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder.
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